
Multiple files are bound together in this PDF Package.

Adobe recommends using Adobe Reader or Adobe Acrobat version 8 or later to work with 
documents contained within a PDF Package. By updating to the latest version, you’ll enjoy 
the following benefits:  

•  Efficient, integrated PDF viewing 

•  Easy printing 

•  Quick searches 

Don’t have the latest version of Adobe Reader?  

Click here to download the latest version of Adobe Reader

If you already have Adobe Reader 8, 
click a file in this PDF Package to view it.

http://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep2.html




COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Commissioners Commissioner Robert Horgan


Recognition of the Fayette County Kiwanis Club who donated a van to Fayette Senior Services.  


Fayette Senior Services would like to thank and acknowledge the Kiwanis Club's donation of a $45,339.38 wheelchair-accessible van.  
Fayette Senior Services' van fleet is aging and cannot transport more than one wheelchair-bound individual at a time.    
 
The donated van provides a low-cost, flexible ability for seniors and disabled citizens to travel to locations such as the grocery story, the 
doctor, or the hospital. 
 
Ms. Debbie Britt who represents Piedmont Fayette Hospital and Ms. Nancy Meaders who represents Fayette Senior Services will attend 
the meeting to thank representatives from the Kiwanis Club. 
 
 


Recognition of the Fayette County Kiwanis Club who donated a van to Fayette Senior Services.  


Not Applicable.


No


No


Yes


No


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Presentation/RecognitionThursday, December 13, 2012








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Planning and Zoning Pete Frisina


Consideration of Ordinance 2012-13 amending the Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 20. Zoning Ordinance, Articles III, V, VI, 


and VII concerning the number of animals in the A-R zoning district.


At the September 5, 2012 Board of Commissioners Workshop meeting, Commissioner Hearn proposed that the Zoning Ordinance be 


amended to remove the limit on the number of animals (cats and dogs) in the A-R zoning district. 


 


The Board of Commissioners instructed staff and the Planning Commission to review the Zoning Ordinance concerning the number of 


animals, and to return to the Board with recommendations.   


 


At the October 3, 2012 Board of Commissioners Workshop meeting, staff presented the recommendations as directed.  The Board 


consented for staff to move the issue to public hearings with the recommended amendments.


Approval of Ordinance 2012-13 amending the Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 20. Zoning Ordinance, Article III. Definitions, 


Article V. General Provisions, Article VI. District Use Requirements, and Article VII. Conditional Uses, Nonconformances, Transportation 


Corridor Overlay Zone, and Commercial Development Standards concerning the number of animals in the A-R zoning district.


Not Applicable.


Yes Wednesday, October 3, 2012


No


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Public HearingThursday, December 13, 2012







































































1 


 


STATE OF GEORGIA 


COUNTY OF FAYETTE 


 


 ORDINANCE NO.  2012 - 13 


 


AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE FAYETTE COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES, 


CHAPTER 20. ZONING ORDINANCE (2010), AS AMENDED, SPECIFICALLY ARTICLE 


III, (DEFINITIONS), ARTICLE V (GENERAL PROVISIONS), ARTICLE VI (DISTRICT USE 


REQUIREMENTS), AND ARTICLE VII (CONDITIONAL USES, NONCONFORMAMNCES, 


TRANSPORTATION CORRIDOR OVERLAY ZONE AND COMMERCIAL 


DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS) ; TO PROVIDE FOR SEVERABILITY; TO REPEAL 


CONFLICTING LAWS, ORDINANCES, AND RESOLUTIONS; TO PROVIDE AN 


EFFECTIVE DATE; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES ALLOWED BY LAW. 


  


 WHEREAS, the duly elected governing authority of Fayette County is the Board of 


Commissioners thereof; 


 


 WHEREAS, the governing authority desires to amend the provision that provides for the 


regulation of land development as allowed by the State of Georgia; 


 


 WHEREAS, the health, safety, and welfare of the citizens of Fayette County, Georgia shall 


be improved and protected by adoption and implementation of this Ordinance. 


 


BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF FAYETTE COUNTY 


AND IT IS HEREBY ORDAINED BY AUTHORITY THEREOF: 


 


Section I. The Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 20. Zoning Ordinance (2010), as 


amended, is hereby further amended by amending the definitions of “Animal”, “Dog Pen/Run’ 


“Kennel”, and “Livestock” (in alphabetical order) in Article III (DEFINITIONS) to read as 


follows: 


 


Animal.  For the purpose of this ordinance, the word animal shall mean either a domestic dog 


(canis familiaris) or domestic cat (felis catus.)  This term shall not include livestock (see 


Livestock.) or household pets (see Household Pet.) 


 


Dog Pen/Run.  For the purposes of Article V., Accessory Structures and Uses, a dog pen/run is an 


outside open air enclosure, consisting of 400 square feet or less of space per animal, used for the 


purpose of containing animals. 


 


Kennel.  An establishment for the boarding,  breeding and/or  sale of animals for commercial gain 


that may in addition provide grooming and/or training services, and a pet rescue operation where 


the animals are primarily housed or kept outside of the principal residence in accessory structures, 


pens, or enclosures. A Hobby Breeder, as defined herein, shall not be considered a kennel.  


 
Livestock.  Animals including, but not limited to:  horses, cattle, goats, sheep, pigs, pot bellied 


pigs, chickens, ducks, geese, mules, rabbits, emu/ostrich, buffalo, chinchilla, fox, mink or other 


fur-bearing animal, and llamas. This term shall be deemed to specifically exclude animals (see 


Animal.) and household pets (see Household Pet.) 


 
Section 2. The Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 20. Zoning Ordinance (2010), as 







2 


 


amended, is hereby further amended by adding “Hobby Breeder”, “Household Pet”, “Pet 


Rescue”, and “Pet Store” (in alphabetical order) to Article III (Definitions) to read as follows: 


 


Hobby Breeder.  A breeder of animals who sells less than 30 animals per year. 


 


Household Pet.  A household pet shall include rodent pets, such as gerbils, hamsters, mice, rats, 


and guinea pigs; small mammal pets such as rabbits, hares, and ferrets; avian pets, such as 


canaries, parakeets, and parrots; reptile pets, such as turtles, lizards and snakes; and aquatic pets, 


such as tropical fish and frogs that is customarily kept for personal use or enjoyment primarily 


within a principal residence. 


 


Pet Rescue.  A nonprofit organization or individual providing temporary welfare, protection, and 


humane treatment of animals while searching for permanent adoptive homes. 


 


Pet Store.  A retail establishment engaged in the sale of household pets and/or associated 


accessories and supplies, and may in addition provide grooming and/or training services. 
 


Section 3. The Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 20. Zoning Ordinance (2010), as 


amended, is hereby further amended by amending Article V (GENERAL PROVISIONS) by 


amending Sec. 5-20. Accessory Stuctures and Uses, C. Number and Size, 3. to reads as follows 


and by adding Sec. 5-28. Keeping of Animals in Residential and Agricultural-Residential 


Districts, in its entirety to read as follows: 


 


3. A well/pump house, dog house, or playhouse consisting of 70 square feet or less; dog 


pen/run; swimming pool, hot tub, or recreational court; Aircraft Hangar, Farm Outbuilding, 


Commercial Greenhouse, Horse Stable, or Auxiliary Structure (as regulated under Article 


VII.); ground/pole mounted solar panel consisting of less than 200 square feet or ground-


mounted wind turbine/windmill; uncovered outdoor kitchen, fireplace, or 


 


Sec. 5-28.  Keeping of Animals in Residential and Agricultural-Residential Districts.  


The number of animals allowed per principal dwelling unit is limited to three in the following 


zoning districts: EST, C-S, R-85, R-80,  R-78,  R-75, R-72,  R-70, R-55, R-50, R-45, R-40, R-20, 


DR-15,  RMF,  MHP, PUD-PRD, PUD-PRL, PUD-PEF, O-I, C-C, C-H, L-C, M-1, M-2, and 


BTP.  One (1) litter of animals of not more than six (6) months of age shall not count toward this 


limit.  The number of animals allowed in the A-R zoning district kept for personal use or hobby 


breeding is unlimited.  A dog house and dog pen/run as regulated in Article V. and similar open 


air animal enclosures are allowed in side and rear yards only and shall meet the setbacks of the 


applicable zoning district.  (Note: All subsequent Sections shall be re-numbered accordingly) 


 


Section 4. The Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 20. Zoning Ordinance (2010), as 


amended, is hereby further amended by amending Article VI (DISTRICT USE 


REQUIREMENTS) by amending Sec. 6-1. A-R Agricultural-Residential, C. Conditional Uses.  


2. and 14. to reads as follows: 


 


2. Animal Hospital, Kennel or Veterinary Clinic; 


14. Kennel (see Animal Hospital, Kennel, and/or Veterinary Clinic); 


 


 


 


 







3 


 


Section 5. The Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 20. Zoning Ordinance (2010), as 


amended, is hereby further amended by amending Article VII (CONDITIONAL USES, 


NONCONFORMAMNCES, TRANSPORTATION CORRIDOR OVERLAY ZONE AND 


COMMERCIAL DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS) by amending Sec. 7-1. Conditional Use 


Approval, B. Conditional Uses Allowed:  4. to reads as follows: 


 


4. Animal Hospital, Kennel, and/or Veterinary Clinic.   (Allowed in A-R, C-C, C-H, 


and M-1 Zoning Districts):   


 


Section 6. That the preamble of this Ordinance shall be considered to be and is hereby 


incorporated by reference as if fully set out herein. 


 


Section 7.  a. It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Board of Commissioners that all 


Sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this Article are and were, upon their 


enactment, believed by the Board of Commissioners to be fully valid, enforceable and 


constitutional. 


 


b. It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Board of Commissioners that, to the greatest 


extent allowed by law, each and every section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this 


Ordinance is severable from every other section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this 


Ordinance. It is hereby further declared to be the intention of the Board of Commissioners that, to 


the greatest extent allowed by law, no Section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this 


Article is mutually dependent upon any other Section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of 


this Article. 


 


c. In the event that any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this Article shall, for any 


reason whatsoever, be declared invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable by the valid 


judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, it is the express intent of the Board of 


Commissioners that such invalidity, unconstitutionality or unenforceability shall, to the greatest 


extent allowed by law, not render invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable any of the 


remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs or Sections of the Article and that, to the 


greatest extent allowed by law, all remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and Sections 


of the Article shall remain valid, constitutional, enforceable, and of full force and effect. 


 


Section 8.  All ordinances or resolutions and parts of ordinances or resolutions in conflict 


herewith are hereby expressly repealed except those provided for herein. 


 


Section 9.  The effective date of this Ordinance shall be the date of adoption unless otherwise 


specified herein. 


 


 So ordained this 13th day of December, 2012, by the  


 


      BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 


      FAYETTE COUNTY, GEORGIA 


 


      ____________________________ 


      HERBERT FRADY, CHAIRMAN 


 


ATTEST: 


_________________________ 


CLERK/DEPUTY CLERK 





		Planning and Zoning- Ordinance 2012-13 Agenda Request File

		Planning and Zoning- Ordinance 2012-13 Backup

		Planning and Zoning- Ordinance 2012-13 Backup-1

		Planning and Zoning- Ordinance 2012-13 Backup-2








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Commissioners Chairman Herb Frady


Approval of the reappointment of Mr. Bill Beckwith to the Fayette County Zoning Board of Appeals with said reappointment to become 


effective on January 1, 2013 and to expire on December 31, 2015.


Article IX of Fayette County's Zoning Ordinance states "The Fayette County Zoning Board of Appeals shall consist of five (5) members 


residing within the County and shall be appointed by the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County." 


 


Appointments to this body are not tied to a particular post so they are considered "at-large appointments".  The term of office for each 


member of the Zoning Board of Appeals is three years. 


 


Mr. Bill Beckwith's appointment to this body will expire on December 31, 2012.  He was first appointed to the Zoning Board of Appeals on 


December 10, 2009. 


 


The appointment process was discussed during the December 5, 2012 Workshop Meeting, and the Board consented not to advertise for 


this position.  


Approval of the reappointment of Mr. Bill Beckwith to the Fayette County Zoning Board of Appeals with said reappointment to become 


effective on January 1, 2013 and to expire on December 31, 2015.


Not Applicable.


Yes Wednesday, December 5, 2012


No


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


ConsentThursday, December 13, 2012







 


 


To:  Fayette County Board of Commissioners 


  Jack Krakeel, Interim County Administrator 


 


From:  Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk 


 


Date:  September 18, 2012 


 


Subject: Upcoming Appointments to Various Boards and Committees 


 


There are several upcoming appointments to various Boards and Committees that will require your attention.     


 


Public Facilities Authority 


 


The Fayette County Public Facilities Authority Act (House Bill 1946) reads:  the Authority shall consist of three 


(3) members who shall be residents of Fayette County and who shall be appointed by the Board of 


Commissioners of Fayette County.  The members of the Authority shall be appointed to serve for a term of one 


(1) year from the date of such appointment and until their successors shall have been selected and appointed. 


 


Currently, Brian Cardoza, Mary Shaver, and Jack Smith are the three members who are serving on the Public 


Facilities Authority.  Each was reappointed by the Board on October 27, 2011.  Their terms began on November 


1, 2011 and will expire on October 31, 2012.  In recent conversations, Brian Cardoza agreed to be reappointed 


to the Public Facilities Authority, however, both Mary Shaver and Jack Smith have decided not to be 


reappointed. 


 


Planning Commission 


 


According to Fayette County’s Zoning Ordinance (Article XII Planning Commission), vacancies on the 


Planning Commission “shall be filled by the member of the Board of Commissioners hailing from the district 


which has the vacancy.”  Furthermore, the terms for each member of the Planning Commission “shall be three 


(3) years.” 


 


The terms for both Al Gilbert (representing Post 1) and James A. “Jim” Graw (representing Post 2) will expire 


on December 31, 2012.  Both of these gentlemen were appointed to the Planning Commission by the Board on 


December 11, 2008, and both men have recently communicated that they are willing to be reappointed to the 


Planning Commission. 


 


Zoning Board of Appeals  


 


Article IX of Fayette County’s Zoning Ordinance states “The Fayette County Zoning Board of Appeals shall 


consist of five (5) members residing within the County and shall be appointed by the Board of Commissioners 


of Fayette County.”   


 


 







2 


 
Mailing Address:  140 Stonewall Avenue West, Fayetteville GA 30214  ·  Main Phone:  770-305-5102 · Website:  www.fayettecountyga.gov 


 


 


Appointments to this body are not tied to a particular post so they are considered “at-large appointments”   The 


term of office for each member of the Zoning Board of Appeals is three years. 


 


Mr. Bill Beckwith’s appointment to this body will expire on December 31.  He was appointed to the Zoning 


Board of Appeals on December 10, 2009.  Mr. Beckwith has recently emailed Pete Frisina stating he is willing 


to be reappointed to the Zoning Board of Appeals. 


 


Library Board 


 


The Library Board is made up of seven members.  Four of the members are nominated by the local 


municipalities they represent, and their nomination is communicated to the Board of Commissioners by the 


municipalities (Fayetteville, Peachtree City, Tyrone and Brooks).  The remaining three positions are at-large 


positions which are filled by the Board of Commissioners. The Board of Commissioners officially appoints all 


members to the Library Board regardless of whether they are nominated by the municipalities or are at-large 


members.  All appointments to the Library Board are for four-year terms. 


 


On December 31, the appointments for Jeannette Ballard, Dortha Stinson, and Jean White will expire.  Jeanette 


Ballard and Dortha Stinson are at-large members, and Jean White is the nominee from the City of Fayetteville.  


Each of these ladies was appointed to the Library Board on December 11, 2008.  Within the past week, Fayette 


County received a letter from Dortha Stinson stating that she does not desire to be reappointed to the Library 


Board. 


 


Board of Health 


 


Currently, Commissioner Robert Horgan serves on the Board of Health on the Board of Commissioners’ behalf.  


Members to the Board of Health serve for six years, and one of the members of the Board of Health must be 


“the Chief Executive Officer of the Governing Authority of the County or his appointee.”   


 


This appointment will need to be considered in the coming months. 


 


If you need any further information from me I will be glad to provide it.  If you have any questions, please feel 


free to call me at 770-305-5102. 


 


FLJ 


 


 


 





		Commissioners- Zoning Board of Appeals Agenda Request File

		Commissioners- Zoning Board of Appeals Backup






COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Planning and Zoning Pete Frisina


Consideration of Ordinance 2012-14 amending the Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 20. Zoning Ordinance, Articles IV, V, VI, 


and VII concerning the new General Business Zoning District and the area of State Routes 138 and 314.


At the June 6, 2012 Board of Commissioners workshop, Mr. Todd Brooks asked the Board to consider amending the Land Use Plan on 


State Route 138 since he had a potential buyer for his property who was proposing a movie studio even though the Land Use Plan did 


not reflect this type of environment.   


 


The Board of Commissioners instructed staff and the Planning Commission to review the Land Use Plan and to return with 


recommendations.  At the October 3, 2012 Board of Commissioners workshop meeting, staff presented the recommendations which 


included a New General Business zoning district, a new SR 138 and SR 314 Overlay Zone, and associated zoning ordinance 


amendments. 


 


The Board of Commissioners instructed staff to begin the process of public hearings of the recommendations.


Approval of Ordinance 2012-14 amending the Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 20. Zoning Ordinance, Article IV. 


Establishment of Districts, Article V. General Provisions, Article VI. District Use Requirements, and Article VII. Conditional Uses, 


Nonconformances, Transportation Corridor Overlay Zone, and Commercial Development Standards concerning the new General 


Business Zoning District and the area of State Routes 138 and 314.


Not Applicable.


Yes Wednesday, October 3, 2012


No


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Public HearingThursday, December 13, 2012











 


 


1


STATE OF GEORGIA 


COUNTY OF FAYETTE 
 


 ORDINANCE NO.  2012 - 14 


 


AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE FAYETTE COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES, 


CHAPTER 20. ZONING ORDINANCE (2010), AS AMENDED, SPECIFICALLY ARTICLE 


IV (ESTABLISHMENT OF DISTRICTS), ARTICLE V (GENERAL PROVISIONS), AND 


ARTICLE VII (CONDITIONAL USES, NONCONFORMAMNCES, TRANSPORTATION 


CORRIDOR OVERLAY ZONE AND COMMERCIAL DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS); TO 


PROVIDE FOR SEVERABILITY; TO REPEAL CONFLICTING LAWS, ORDINANCES, 


AND RESOLUTIONS; TO PROVIDE AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND FOR OTHER 


PURPOSES ALLOWED BY LAW. 


  


 WHEREAS, the duly elected governing authority of Fayette County is the Board of 


Commissioners thereof; 


 


 WHEREAS, the governing authority desires to amend the provision that provides for the 


regulation of land development as allowed by the State of Georgia; 


 


 WHEREAS, the health, safety, and welfare of the citizens of Fayette County, Georgia shall 


be improved and protected by adoption and implementation of this Ordinance. 


 


BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF FAYETTE COUNTY 


AND IT IS HEREBY ORDAINED BY AUTHORITY THEREOF: 
 


 


Section 1. The Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 20. Zoning Ordinance (2010), as 


amended, is hereby further amended by amending Article IV (ESTABLISHMENT OF 


DISTRICTS) by adding General-Business to Sec. 4-1. Zoning Districts, in its entirety to read as 


follows: 


 


26. G-B General-Business District   (Sec. 6-25) 


 


Section 2. The Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 20. Zoning Ordinance (2010), as 


amended, is hereby further amended by amending Sec. 5-24. Outside Storage. in Article V 


(GENERAL PROVISIONS), to read as follows: 


 


Sec. 5-40.  Outside Storage.   
Outside storage of merchandise, equipment, and parts shall be allowed in the side and rear yards 


subject to such requirements to the extent indicated below, as long as, such storage is screened in 


accordance with Article V.  Storage contained in a structure which is not enclosed by walls shall 


be deemed outside storage. Outside storage is allowed only within the M-1, M-2, C-C, and C-H, 


G-B, BTP, PUD-PIP, and PUD-PSBC Zoning Districts.   


 


Section 3. The Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 20. Zoning Ordinance (2010), as 


amended, is hereby further amended by amending Sec. 5-44. Manufactured Home. in Article V 


(GENERAL PROVISIONS) to correct a scribner’s error in Ordinance 2012-09, to read as 


follows: 


 







 


 


2


Sec. 5-44.  Manufactured Home.   


The placement of a manufactured home in a zoning district which allows a single-family dwelling 


as a Permitted or Conditional Use, other than MHP, shall comply with the following: 


1. The manufactured home shall comply with all applicable zoning requirements, including, 


but not limited to:  minimum heated square footage. 


2. The manufactured home shall be placed on a permanent foundation. 


3. The tongue and axles shall be removed. 


4. All applicable requirements shall be met within 90 calendar days and prior to the issuance 


of a Certificate of Occupancy.   


(Note: All subsequent Sections shall be re-numbered accordingly) 
 


Section 3. The Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 20. Zoning Ordinance (2010), as 


amended, is hereby further amended by amending Article VI (DISTRICT USE 


REQUIREMENTS) by changing “Day Care Facility (Nursery School)” to “Child Care Facility” 


throughout Article VI (DISTRICT USE REQUIREMENTS) for consistency with other Articles.  


 


Section 4. The Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 20. Zoning Ordinance (2010), as 


amended, is hereby further amended by amending Article VI (DISTRICT USE 


REQUIREMENTS) by adding Sec. 6-26. G-B General-Business District, in its entirety to read as 


follows: 


 


Sec. 6-26. G-B General -Business District  


   


A. Purpose.  The purpose of the General Business District (G-B) is to provide for 


business development that contains uses which are free from such nuisances as 


noise, vibration, smoke, gas, fume, odor, dust, radiation or other injurious or 


noxious conditions related to those uses.  The G-B Zoning District limits the 


development of retail commercial uses and reduces the resulting traffic 


generation and noise associated with this type development.  The uses allowed in 


this zoning district could lend to a business park development pattern.  


B. Permitted Uses.  The following Permitted Uses shall be allowed in the GB 


Zoning District:   


 


1. Auction house (indoor only); 


2. Banquet hall and/or catering service; 


3. Business, professional, and/or government offices; 


4. Business support centers and/or call centers; 


5. College and/or university, classrooms and/or administration only; 


6. Computer data services and/or information technology; 


7. Educational/instructional/tutoring facilities, including, but not limited to:  


art; computer; dance; driving and/or DUI; martial arts; music; 


professional/business/trade; and similar facilities; 


8. Financial, credit, real estate, and/or insurance establishments (excluding 


retail banking facilities or pawn establishments); 


9. Health club, fitness center, and/or indoor athletic facility (excluding 


bowling alleys, pool rooms and skating rinks); 


10. Medical supply and equipment sales 


11. Printing, graphic, blue printing, photography lab, and/or reproduction 


service; 


12. Private school, including, classrooms and/or administration only; 


13. Publishing and distribution; 


14. Restaurant supply; 







 


 


3


15. Scientific, medical/dental, and/or research laboratories; 


16. Television/radio broadcasting studio, recording studio, 


telecommunication, and/or movie/media productions (including on-site 


with movie/media productions, ancillary businesses that supply support 


services, equipment and resources to the movie/media industry) ; and 


17. Training center, trade school, and/or vocational centers. 


 


C.    Conditional Uses.  The following Conditional Uses shall be allowed in the G-B 


Zoning District provided that all conditions specified in Article VII.  Conditional 


Uses, Nonconformances, Transportation Corridor Overlay Zone, and 


Commercial Development Standards are met: 


 


1. Single-Family Residence and accessory structures and uses (see Article 


V.);  


2. Home Occupation;  


3. College and/or University, including, but not limited to: classrooms, 


administration, housing, athletic fields, gymnasium, and stadium; and 


4. Private School, including, but not limited to: classrooms, administration, 


playground, housing, athletic fields, gymnasium, and/or stadium. 


D.    Dimensional Requirements.   The minimum dimensional requirements in the G-B 


shall be as follows: 


   


1. Lot Area:   


a. Where public water is available:  43,560 square feet (one [1] 


acre) 


b. Where public water is not available:  65,340 square feet (one and 


one-half [1.5] acres) 


    2. Lot width: 125 feet 


             3. Front yard setback: 


 a. Major thoroughfare: 


 i.  Major Arterial: 100 feet 


 ii. Arterial:  100 feet 


 iii. Collector:  80 feet 


 b. Minor thoroughfare:  65 feet 


  4. Rear yard setback: 25 feet 


  5. Side yard setback: 25 feet 


  6.  Buffer:  If the rear or side yard abuts a residential or A-R Zoning District, 


a minimum buffer of 50 feet shall be provided adjacent to the lot line, in 


addition to the required setback.  The setback shall be measured from the 


buffer. 


  7. Height limit: 40 feet 


 8. Lot coverage limit, including structures and parking area:  70 percent of 


total lot area. 


 9. Outside Storage and Refuse Area Requirements.  The following 


requirements shall apply to outside storage and refuse areas.  Where this 


section contradicts any other requirement, the most restrictive shall 


apply. 


 a. Outside storage of merchandise, equipment, parts, and business 


vehicles shall be allowed in side or rear yards only, subject to 


screening, setback and buffer requirements.  


 b. All refuse areas shall be allowed in side or rear yards only, shall 


be screened, and comply with the required buffers and setbacks.  


 







 


 


4


Section 5. The Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 20. Zoning Ordinance (2010), as 


amended, is hereby further amended by amending Sec. 6-24. BTP Business Technology Park 


District in Article VI (DISTRICT USE REQUIREMENTS, to read as follows: 


 


Sec. 6-24.  BTP Business Technology Park District     


 
D.    Dimensional Requirements.   The minimum dimensional requirements in the 


BTP shall be as follows: 


  


    3. Lot width: 150 feet 


 


Section 6. The Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 20. Zoning Ordinance (2010), as 


amended, is hereby further amended by amending Sec. 7-1. Conditional Use Approval in Article 


VII (CONDITIONAL USES, NONCONFORMAMNCES, TRANSPORTATION CORRIDOR 


OVERLAY ZONE AND COMMERCIAL DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS), to read as follows: 


 


14. College and/or University, including, but not limited to: classrooms, 


administration, housing, athletic facility, gymnasium, and/or stadium. 


(Amended 05/24/12)  (Allowed in the A-R, BTP, G-B, O-I, C-C, and C-H 


Zoning Districts)   


 


24. Home Occupation.  (Allowed in A-R, EST, C-S, R-85, R-80,  R-78,      R-


75, R-72,  R-70, R-55, R-50, R-45, R-40, R-20, DR-15,  RMF,  MHP, 


PUD-PRD, PUD-PRL, PUD-PEF, O-I, C-C, C-H, L-C, G-B, M-1, M-2, 


and BTP Zoning Districts)   The intent of these rules and regulations is to 


protect the health, safety and welfare of the general public and ensure that 


home occupations are regulated in a manner so they do not adversely 


impact surrounding residential properties, as residential areas and uses are 


normally separated from non-residential areas and uses.  


 


35. Private School, including, but not limited to: classrooms, administration, 


playground, housing, athletic facility, gymnasium, and/or stadium.  


(Amended 05/24/12)  (Allowed in A-R, R-85, R-80, R-78, R-75, R-72, R-


70, R-55, R-50, R-45, R-40, R-20, DR-15, O-I, C-C, G-B, and C-H 


Zoning Districts) 


 


44. Single-Family Residence and accessory structures and/or uses (see Article 


V.)  (Allowed in the C-C, C-H, L-C, M-1, M-2, O-I, G-B, and BTP Zoning 


Districts) 
 


 


Section 7. The Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 20. Zoning Ordinance (2010), as 


amended, is hereby further amended by amending Article VII (CONDITIONAL USES, 


NONCONFORMAMNCES, TRANSPORTATION CORRIDOR OVERLAY ZONE AND 


COMMERCIAL DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS) by adding the S.R 138 and North S.R 314 


Overlay Zone to Sec. 7-5. Transportation Corridor Overlay Zone, in its entirety to read as 


follows: 


 


E. S.R. 138 and North S.R. 314 Overlay Zone.  All property and/or development which have 


frontage on and/or access to SR 138 and S.R 314 north of Highland Drive with 


nonresidential use or zoning shall be subject to the requirements of the SR 138 and North 







 


 


5


S.R. 314 Overlay Zone.  The intent of the overlay is to set standards specific to SR 138 


and North S.R. 314 as described above. 


1. Purpose.  The purpose of the SR 138 and North S.R. 314Overlay Zone is to 


achieve the following: 


a. To maintain the efficient traffic flow on these highways as thoroughfares 


for Fayette and Clayton Counties;    


b. To enhance and maintain the aesthetic qualities of the corridor; and 


c. To protect existing and future residential areas. 


2. Access Standards. Access to each nonresidential property and/or development 


shall be from a State Route or an adjacent street designated as an Arterial or 


Collector on the Fayette County Thoroughfare Plan.  All access points and 


interparcel access shall be required to comply with Fayette County Development 


Regulations.  A Concept Plan, submitted with a rezoning application, and/or a 


Site Plan shall illustrate compliance with these requirements.   


3. Dimensional Requirements.   


a. All parking areas shall be located at least 50 feet from any State Route 


right-of-way.  


 b. Front yard setback on S.R. 138: 100 feet                        


c. Berms for nonresidential zoning districts: Berms, when required as a 


condition of zoning, shall be a minimum of four (4) feet in height.   


4. Architectural Standards. Structures shall maintain a residential character.  


Elevation drawings denoting compliance with the following shall be submitted as 


part of the Site Plan.   


a. A pitched peaked (gable or hip) roof with a minimum pitch of four and 


one-half (4.5) inches in one (1) foot including gasoline canopies and 


accessory structures and shall be of a type and construction 


complimentary to the facade.  A pitched mansard roof facade with a 


minimum pitch of four and one-half (4.5) inches in one (1) foot and a 


minimum height of eight (8) feet around the entire perimeter of the 


structure can be used if the structure is two (2) stories or more or the use 


of a pitched peaked roof would cause the structure to not meet the 


applicable height limit requirements.  The mansard roof facade shall be 


of a residential character with the appearance of shingles, slate or terra 


cotta.    


b. Gasoline Canopy.   Gasoline canopies shall also comply with the 


following requirements:   


i. Gasoline canopies, in conjunction with a convenience store, may 


reduce the pitch to a minimum of 3” to 12” to permit the height 


of the peak of the roof to be equal to or no more than five (5) feet 


above the peak of the roof of the convenience store. 


ii. The vertical clearance under the gasoline canopy shall not 


exceed a maximum of 18 feet in height.   


iii. The support columns for the gasoline canopies shall match the 


façade of the convenience store.   


iv. The gasoline canopy roof shall match the architectural character, 


materials, and color of the convenience store.   


c. All buildings shall be constructed in a residential character of fiber-


cement siding (ie: Hardiplank), wood siding, wood textured vinyl siding, 


brick/brick veneer, rock, stone, cast-stone, or stucco (including synthetic 


stucco) on those portions of the building facing front and side yards 


and/or any property zoned agricultural-residential or residential.   


d. Framed doors and windows of a residential character.  To maintain a 


residential character, large display windows shall give the appearance of 







 


 


6


smaller individual panes and framing consistent with the standard 


residential grid pattern for doors and windows.  This does not apply to 


stained glass windows for a church or place of worship.  Large display or 


storefront windows shall have a minimum two (2) foot high knee wall 


consisting of fiber-cement siding (i.e.: Hardiplank), wood siding, wood 


textured vinyl siding, brick/brick veneer, rock, stone, cast-stone, or 


stucco (including synthetic stucco.)  


e. Structures of 35,000 square feet or greater with a minimum dimension of 


150 feet may utilize the following architectural standards, in lieu of 4. 


(a., c., and d.) above: 


i. At least 50 percent of all exterior wall finishes shall be 


comprised of at least two (2) of the following facade types: 


brick/brick veneer, wood, fiber-cement siding (i.e.: Hardi-plank), 


rock, stone, cast-stone, split-face concrete masonry unit (rough 


textured face concrete block), architectural precast concrete wall 


panels, stucco (including synthetic stucco) or any architecturally 


engineered facades which simulate these materials.    Any metal 


facades used on the remaining portions of the exterior walls shall 


establish a horizontal seam pattern. 


ii. No horizontal length of a roofline shall exceed 50 linear feet 


without a variation in elevation.  Said variation in elevation shall 


not be less than two (2) feet.  


iii. No blank or unarticulated horizontal length of a building facade 


shall exceed 25 linear feet without a variation in architectural 


elements, including but not limited to, building materials, colors, 


textures, offsets, or changes in planes.   


f. The design of accessory/out lot buildings shall reflect and coordinate 


with the general architectural style inherent in the primary structure on 


the property. 


g. When an existing nonconforming structure is enlarged by 50 percent or 


less, the enlargement does not have to meet the aforementioned 


Architectural Standards, but does have to match the architectural design 


of the existing nonconforming structure. This exemption shall only apply 


to the first occurrence of any enlargement after the effective date of 


January 24, 2008.  Only one (1) structure per lot shall be entitled to the 


exemption.   


When an existing nonconforming structure is enlarged by more than 50 


percent, the entire nonconforming structure shall be brought into 


compliance with the aforementioned Architectural Standards.   


This exemption shall expire on January 24, 2015, seven (7) years from 


the effective date of January 24, 2008.  After the expiration date, the 


entire nonconforming structure shall be brought into compliance with the 


aforementioned Architectural Standards when any enlargement is made.  


5. Landscape Requirements: In addition to the standard requirements of the 


Landscape Ordinance, the following landscape requirements shall apply to the 


Overlay Zone: 


a. Street Frontage.   SR 138 and SR 314 (Major Arterial) - Landscape area: 


50 feet along the right-of-way of SR 138 and SR 314.  The first 25 feet 


as measured from the right-of-way is for required landscape planting 


only.  The remaining 25 feet may be used for septic system placement; 


underground stormwater detention systems; and the following 


stormwater management facilities/structures, if designed in full 


accordance with the specifications provided in the most current edition of 







 


 


7


the Georgia Stormwater Management Manual: vegetated channels, 


overland flow filtration/ groundwater recharge zone, enhanced swales, 


filter strips, and grass channels.  Septic systems and stormwater 


structures shall be exclusive of each other and the minimum distance of 


separation between wastewater and stormwater structures shall be 


established by the Environmental Health Department and the County 


Engineer. Utilities (including underground stormwater piping) and multi-


use path connections may be located anywhere within the landscape area.  


b.   Side Yard Landscape Area.  10 feet in depth along side property lines, 


unless adjacent to a residential district where buffer requirements will 


apply. 


6. Lighting. 


a. Shielding standards. Lighting shall be placed in such a fashion as to be 


directed away from any adjacent roadways for nearby residential areas.  


b. Fixture height standards. Lighting fixtures shall be a maximum of 35 


feet in height within the parking lot and shall be a maximum of 10 feet in 


height within non-vehicular pedestrian areas. 


  7. Additional Requirements.  


a. All refuse areas and equipment shall be allowed in the side or rear yards 


only and shall be screened. 


b. All roof-top heating, ventilation, and air conditioning equipment and 


satellite/communications equipment shall be visually screened from 


adjacent roads and property zoned residential or A-R.  The screen shall 


extend to the full height of the objects being screened.   


c. Bay doors shall not be allowed to directly face SR 138or SR 314. 


d. All utilities shall be underground. 


8. Use of Existing Structure.  When property containing legally conforming 


structures, under the current zoning, is rezoned to O-I, the dimensional 


requirements shall be reduced to the extent of, but only at the location of, any 


encroachment by the structures and said structures shall be considered legal 


nonconforming structures. 


 


Section 8.  That the preamble of this Ordinance shall be considered to be and is hereby 


incorporated by reference as if fully set out herein. 


 


Section 9.  a. It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Board of Commissioners that all 


Sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this Article are and were, upon their 


enactment, believed by the Board of Commissioners to be fully valid, enforceable and 


constitutional. 


 


b. It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Board of Commissioners that, to the greatest 


extent allowed by law, each and every section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this 


Ordinance is severable from every other section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this 


Ordinance. It is hereby further declared to be the intention of the Board of Commissioners that, to 


the greatest extent allowed by law, no Section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this 


Article is mutually dependent upon any other Section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of 


this Article. 


 


c. In the event that any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this Article shall, for any 


reason whatsoever, be declared invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable by the valid 


judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, it is the express intent of the Board of 


Commissioners that such invalidity, unconstitutionality or unenforceability shall, to the greatest 







 


 


8


extent allowed by law, not render invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable any of the 


remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs or Sections of the Article and that, to the 


greatest extent allowed by law, all remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and Sections 


of the Article shall remain valid, constitutional, enforceable, and of full force and effect. 


 


Section 10.  All ordinances or resolutions and parts of ordinances or resolutions in conflict 


herewith are hereby expressly repealed except those provided for herein. 


 


Section 12.  The effective date of this Ordinance shall be the date of adoption unless otherwise 


specified herein. 


 


 So ordained this 13th day of December, 2012, by the  


 


      BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 


      FAYETTE COUNTY, GEORGIA 


 


 


 


      ____________________________ 


      HERBERT FRADY, CHAIRMAN 


 


ATTEST: 


 


 


 


_________________________ 


CLERK/DEPUTY CLERK 


 


 


 


 


 













































































		Planning and Zoning- Ordinance 2012-14 Agenda Request File

		Planning and Zoning- Ordinance 2012-14 Backup- Revised

		Planning and Zoning- Ordinance 2012-14 Backup

		Planning and Zoning- Ordinance 2012-14 Backup-1

		Planning and Zoning- Ordinance 2012-12 Backup-1

		Planning and Zoning- Ordinance 2012-12 Backup-2



		Planning and Zoning- Ordinance 2012-14 Backup-2



		Archive- Planning and Zoning- Ordinance 2012-12 Backup-1

		Planning and Zoning- Ordinance 2012-12 Backup-1

		Planning and Zoning- Ordinance 2012-12 Backup-2














COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Communications Cheryl Rogers, Director


Consideration of staff's request to award Bid #851- E-911 Workstation Replacement to Watson Furniture Group, Inc., in the amount of 


$122,912.50, for the installation and maintenance of ergonomic workstations, to authorize an additional purchase of 10 chairs in the 


amount of $5,500.00, and to authorize the Chairman to sign the contract and related documents after the County Attorney's review.


The workstations currently in use at the E-911 Communications Center were installed in 1996 and are made of press board and plastic 


components.  Over time the keyboard trays no longer raise or lower, and if they are raised they can slam down on an operator's knees.   


During the recent budget hearings, Communications staff informed the Board of the problems associated with the workstations.  Funds 


from the collection of 911 fees, in the amount of $150,000.00, have been set aside for this purpose. 


 


The Purchasing Department issued Request for Proposals #851 to seek proposals from companies that have the expertise to provide, 


install, and maintain  workstations that help to provide an environment that works best for E-911 professionals.  Notifications were direct-


mailed to 31 vendors and were extended via the Fayette Daily News, the county website, Georgia Local Government Access 


Marketplace, and Channel 23.  Eight vendors responded.  After careful review, staff recommends awarding the bid to Watson Furniture 


Group in the amount of $122,912.50. 


 


Staff is also asking permission to  purchase ten high-intensity chairs to complement the workstations with an anticipated cost of 


$5,500.00.  The total aggregate cost of the workstations and chairs is 128,412.50.  This will leave a balance of approximately $21,587.50 


in E-911 fees. 


Consideration of staff's request to award Bid #851- E-911 Workstation Replacement to Watson Furniture Group, Inc., in the amount of 


$122,912.50, for the installation and maintenance of ergonomic workstations, to authorize an additional purchase of 10 chairs in the 


amount of $5,500.00, and to authorize the Chairman to sign the contract and related documents after the County Attorney's review.


Funding in the amount of $150,000 is contained within the CIP fund, project 3215B, E-911 workstation replacements. 


No


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes Yes


New BusinessThursday, December 13, 2012







 
 
 
 


FAYETTE COUNTY E 9-1-1 COMMUNICATIONS 


Memorandum 


 
 
TO:  Mr. Jack Krakeel  
 
FROM: Cheryl Rogers, Director 
 
DATE: November 28, 2012 
 
RE:  Proposal #P851  Dispatch Consoles  
 
The workstations in the 9-1-1 Center were purchased in 1996 when the 
consolidation of dispatch centers took place.  These workstations are no longer 
efficient as the keyboard trays no longer work and if the operator attempts to use 
them they can fall onto the operators knees.  The under panels also have a habit 
of falling onto the operators legs.  They have served their purpose and it is time 
to replace them.  Funds from the collection of 9-1-1 fees were set aside for this 
project in the amount of $150,000.  At the time, it was felt that we could provide 
eight ergonomic workstations for that price. 
 
Seven vendors submitted proposals for ergonomic workstations and intensive 
use chairs and one vendor just on the chairs. The highest proposal submitted 
was $149,555. And the lowest proposal was $43,850.  In the request vendors 
were asked to provide layout designs for eight consoles and ten consoles (this 
was for expansion purposes).  The lowest bidder (Sheffield) is more of a 
distributor of general use furniture.  It does not appear to be suited for the 
specialized needs of a Public Safety Answering Point (PSAP).  The medium and 
higher priced proposals were from vendors (e.g. Watson, Xybix and Eaton) who 
specialize in the needs of PSAP’s, they are subject matter experts in this field 
and develop their products accordingly.  
 
A review committee was set up and proposals were rated based on the 
evaluation criterion listed in the RFP: Specifics of the submitted proposal, 
Experience of the firm in providing similar services to local or state PSAPs/ 
Rerferences, Experience and qualifications of the firm, and experience, 
education, and qualifications of the individuals assigned to this project, Pricing 
and Estimated time of completion.   
 







The top two firms, Watson Furniture and Xybix Systems Inc. were selected 
based on the criterion.  After negotiations with both companies to provide their 
best and final proposed amount for a ten console design, Watson Furniture was 
the consensus recommendation of the committee. 
 
Watson has worked specifically with 9-1-1 Centers in designing workstations that 
are ergonomic and efficient to dispatchers needs.  Their product is durable and 
several surrounding centers use these consoles.  The committee checked with 
these centers and found that the customers were very happy with the product, it’s 
efficiency and the service provided by Watson.  Watson worked closely with 
these centers to ensure the layout and design met every need of the center for 
current and future growth. 
 
The layout Watson provided for the eight and ten console design appears to be 
more than adequate for this center’s needs.  As these consoles are quite large 
and heavy, it is not recommended to move them around once they are settled. 
The committee felt the request of ten consoles was in line with the intent of the 
project and would be best to get all the furniture at once and settled into one 
place so as not to move around furniture in the future.   
 
E 9-1-1 recommends the Board of Commissioners accept the proposal from 
Watson Furniture at a price of $122,912.50 for the ten consoles, well within the 
project price. 
 
Intensive use chairs to accompany the new consoles are being requested by the 
committee.  After review of the vendors proposals for intensive use chairs, it was 
felt we could do better to purchase chairs ourselves.  Chairs need to be able to fit 
a variety of heights and weights and is not a one size fits all need.  We request to 
be able to purchase chairs from the funds provided by this project as well as the 
ten consoles bid through this request for proposals.  Funds utilized for chairs 
would not exceed $5,500 for ten intensive use chairs.  The cost of the ten 
ergonomic consoles and ten intensive use chairs is expected to be $128,412.50 
leaving $21,587.50 in project funds.    







 


Mailing Address:  140 Stonewall Avenue West, Fayetteville GA 30214 Main Phone:  770-460-5730 Web Site:  www.fayettecountyga.gov 


 
To:  Jack Krakeel 
 
From:  Ted L. Burgess 
 
Date:  November 28, 2012 
 
Subject: RFP #851: E 9-1-1 Workstation Replacement 
 
Workstations at the E 9-1-1 Center are in use 24 hours a day, seven days a week.  This means 
that the desks, chairs, and other equipment must be able to withstand the constant use.  More 
importantly, it must be appropriate for the employees who remain at their duty stations for long 
hours each shift.  Workstations must be designed to minimize stress and fatigue for system 
operations during shifts of up to 12 hours, and minimize impact of repetitive-motion activities.  
The equipment currently used was acquired sixteen years ago, when the Center was first 
occupied. 
 
The Purchasing Department issued Request for Proposals #851 to seek proposals from 
companies that have the expertise to provide, install, and maintain workstations that help to 
provide an environment that works best for E 9-1-1 professionals.  Notifications were direct-
mailed to 31 vendors.  In addition, notifications were extended via the Fayette News, the county 
website, Georgia Local Government Access Marketplace (www.glga.org), and Channel 23.  Eight 
vendors responded to the RFP (please see the attached spread sheet).  Seven of the vendors 
proposed complete work stations, while one proposed to only provide chairs. 
 
A committee of E 9-1-1 staff evaluated the proposals based on the following criteria, as set forth 
in the RFP: 


1. Specifics of the proposal 
2. Experience in providing similar services 
3. Experience and qualifications of the firm, and individuals assigned to the project 
4. Price proposals 
5. Estimated time to complete the project 


 
Based on the evaluation, and numerical scores assigned for each criterion, the Watson Furniture 
Group, Inc. and Ergoflex Systems, Inc. (doing business as Xybix) were the two top-scoring 
companies. 
 
As requested in the RFP, companies provided floor plans and price proposals for eight 
workstations.  They also provided an additional floor plan for ten workstations, to allow for future 
expansion.  Upon review of price proposals, it was determined that the best value for high-
intensity chairs could be obtained by purchasing them separately.  In consideration of future 
needs, E 9-1-1 staff asked for a best-and-final offer from the two top-scoring companies, for the 
ten-workstation configuration, but without chairs. 
 



http://www.glga.org/





 
 
 
Their responses were as follows: 
 
     Equipment      Maintenance      Total 


 Watson Furniture Group, Inc. $121,412.50        $1,500.00  $122,912.50 
 Ergoflex Systems, Inc. $134,111.90          5,500.00    139,611.90 


 
Based on the best-and-final offers, E 9-1-1 recommends award of the contract to Watson 
Furniture Group.  They also recommend a set-aside of $5,500 to purchase high-intensity chairs.  
I support the recommendations. 
 
Attachment 







Vendor
Console Work 


Stations
High Intensity


Chairs
Total


Equipment
Maintenance
(Years 2-4) Total


1. C-W-C, LLC $140,936.00 $5,720.00 $146,656.00 $2,899.98 $149,555.98


2. a


ERGOFLEX SYSTEMS, INC. DBA XYBIX 
SYSTEMS, INC. - 10 Workstations 129,894.90 10,000.00 139,894.90 5,500.00 145,394.90


b


ERGOFLEX SYSTEMS, INC. DBA XYBIX 
SYSTEMS, INC. - Eight Workstations 108,201.78 10,000.00 118,201.78 5,500.00 123,701.78


3. EATON / WRIGHT LINE 100,181.65 9,168.00 109,349.65 0.00 109,349.65


4. WATSON FURNITURE GROUP, INC. 95,154.70 4,761.60 99,916.30 1,500.00 101,416.30


5. E TECHNOLOGY SYSTEMS LLC 76,360.00 12,384.00 88,744.00 0.00 88,744.00


6. DISPATCH PRODUCTS 68,890.00 6,928.00 75,818.00 1,800.00 77,618.00


7. a


SHEFFIELD OFFICE PRODUCTS -                 
BIG STANDARD


 
37,000.00 5,300.00 42,300.00 2,250.00 44,550.00


b


SHEFFIELD OFFICE PRODUCTS - 
STANDARD 37,000.00 4,600.00 41,600.00 2,250.00 43,850.00


8. GEORGIA CORRECTIONAL INDUSTRIES NO BID 6,600.00 6,600.00 0.00 6,600.00


Fayette County, Georgia
Request For Proposals #851: Console Work Stations & High Intensity Chairs


(Proposals for Eight Workstations Except Where Noted)


P:\Ted B\E911\851 Work Stations\851 Tally.xls





		Communications- Bid # 851 Agenda Request File

		Communications- Bid #851 Backup

		Dispatch Consolesb

		Dispatch Consoles - Purchasing Backup 1

		Dispatch Consoles - Purchasing Backup 2

		Sheet1










COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Planning and Zoning Pete Frisina


Consideration of Resolution 2012-21 amending the Fayette County Comprehensive Plan Land Use Element by creating a new General 


Business Land Use Category and Fayette County Future Land Use Plan Map, and by designating the area of State Route 138 with the 


General Business Land Use Category.


At the June 6, 2012 Board of Commissioners Workshop meeting, Mr. Todd Brooks asked the Board to consider amending the Land Use 


Plan on SR 138.  At the time, Mr. Brooks had a potential buyer for his property, and the buyer was proposing a movie studio even though 


the Land Use Plan did not reflect this type of development.  The Board instructed staff and the Planning Commission to review the Land 


use Plan and to return with recommendations. 


 


At the October 3, 2012 Board of Commissioners Workshop meeting, staff presented the recommendations which included amendments 


to the Fayette County Comprehensive Plan Land Use Element text for a new General Business Land Use Category and Fayette County 


Future Land Use Map, designating the area of State Route 138 within the General Business Land Use category.


Approval of Resolution 2012-21 amending the Fayette County Comprehensive Plan Land Use Element by creating a new General 


Business Land Use Category and Fayette County Future Land Use Plan Map, and by designating the area of State Route 138 with the 


General Business Land Use Category.


Not Applicable.


Yes Wednesday, October 3, 2012


No


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Public HearingThursday, December 13, 2012







































































STATE OF GEORGIA; 
COUNTY OF FAYETTE 


 
RESOLUTION NO. 2012 -21 


 
A RESOLUTION TO AMEND FAYETTE COUNTY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 


LAND USE ELEMENT AND  


FAYETTE COUNTY FUTURE LAND USE PLAN MAP FOR THE AREA OF 
SR 138  


 
WHEREAS, Fayette County has prepared amendments to the Fayette County 


Comprehensive Plan Land Use Element, creating a new General Business Land Use 
category, and Fayette County Future Land Use Plan Map, designating the area of SR 138 
with the General Business Land Use category; 


  
WHEREAS, on the 13th day of December, 2012, the Fayette County Board of 


Commissioners conducted a public; and  
 
 BE IT THEREFORE RESOLVED THAT the Fayette County Board of Commissioners 


does hereby adopt the aforementioned amendments to the Fayette County Comprehensive 
Plan Land Use Element and Future Land Use Plan Map; 
                                  
 So resolved this 13th day of December, 2012, by the  
 
 
 
      BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
      FAYETTE COUNTY, GEORGIA 


 
 
      _________________________________ 
      Herb Frady, Chairman 
ATTEST: 
 
  
 
 
____________________________________ 
County Clerk 





		Planning and Zoning- Resolution 2012-21 Agenda Request File

		Planning and Zoning- Resolution 2012-21 Backup

		Planning and Zoning- Resolution 2012-21 Backup-1

		Planning and Zoning- Resolution 2012-21 Backup-2












COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Purchasing Ted Burgess


Approval of staff's request to loan a 2008 Ford Crown Victoria to the District Attorney's Office, to receive a previously loaned 1997 Ford 


Crown Victoria from the District Attorney's Office, to auction the 1997 Ford Crown Victoria via an internet auction website, and to deposit 


the proceeds of the sale into the Sheriff's State Seizures fund account.


For a number of years, the District Attorney's Office has used a 1997 Ford Crown Victoria ), which was 


loaned to them by the Sheriff's Office.  The Sheriff's Office acquired this vehicle in 1999 by trading two old vehicles and $2,820.00 from 


the State Seizure Program account. 


 


Now, the 1997 Ford Crown Victoria has been driven over 126,717 miles.  It needs repairs to its anti-lock brake system and its windshield 


wipers.  The District Attorney's Office has concluded that it is not economical for them to pay for the repairs.   


 


The District Attorney's Office has asked to return the 1997 Ford Crown Victoria, and to receive on loan in its place a 2008 Ford Crown 


Victoria ( ) which is being surplused by the Sheriff's Office and which was purchased with money from the 


county's Vehicle Replacement Fund. 


 


The 1997 is recommended to be sold by auction through an internet auction website.  Proceeds from the sale will be deposited into the 


Sheriff's State Seizures fund account. 


 Approval of staff's request to loan a 2008 Ford Crown Victoria to the District Attorney's Office, to receive a previously loaned 1997 Ford 


Crown Victoria from the District Attorney's Office, to auction the 1997 Ford Crown Victoria via an internet auction website, and to deposit 


the proceeds of the sale into the Sheriff's State Seizures fund account.


This action will not involve any expenditure of funds.  Please note that revenue from sale of the 1997 Ford Crown Victoria must be 


returned to the Sheriff's Office State Seizure Program account (Fund 210).


No


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes Yes


ConsentThursday, December 13, 2012







 


Mailing Address:  140 Stonewall Avenue West, Fayetteville GA 30214 Main Phone:  770-460-5730 Web Site:  www.fayettecountyga.gov 


 
 
 
To:  Jack Krakeel 
 
From:  Ted L. Burgess 
 
Date:  November 26, 2012 
 
Subject: Vehicle Loan to District Attorney’s Office 
 
In 1999, the Sheriff’s Office purchased a used 1997 Ford Crown Victoria (VIN 


.  It was paid for by trading two old vehicles, and cash of $2,850 from 
funds forfeited by violators of Georgia law relating to controlled substances.  {Note: Per O.C.G.A. 
§ 16-13-49, these funds cannot be used to supplant any other local, state, or federal funds in the 
Sheriff’s budget.}  Some time later, the vehicle was loaned to the District Attorney’s Office. 
 
On September 21, 2012 DA’s staff took the vehicle to Fleet Maintenance for diagnosis of 
problems.  The diagnosis identified electrical problems with the anti-lock braking system, and 
problems with the windshield wipers.  Given the age and condition of the vehicle, DA’s staff 
elected to not incur the repair expenses.  It has been stored at Fleet Maintenance since that time.  
Mileage on the odometer is currently 126,717. 
 
The Sheriff’s Office acquired a 2008 Ford Crown Victoria ( ) in 
October 2007 for use by the Field Operations Division.  This vehicle was purchased with county 
Vehicle Replacement Funds.  It had been driven 111,103 miles as of November 9, 2012.  While it 
is no longer considered appropriate for high-speed situations, it is in better condition than the 
1997 Ford. 
 
The DA’s Office has requested authorization to use the 2008 Ford in lieu of the 1997 Ford.  As 
before, ownership and title of the 2008 Ford would remain with the county. 
 
It is recommended that the county lend the 2008 Ford to the DA’s Office. It is further 
recommended that the county dispose of the 1997 Ford by auction through the website 
GovDeals.com.  Since this vehicle was purchased with funds from the state seizure program, 
proceeds from the sale of the vehicle will be credited to the state seizure program account in the 
Sheriff’s Office budget (Fund #210). 





		Purchasing- Vehicle Loan Agenda Request File

		Purchasing- Vehicle Loan Backup










COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Fire and EMS Deputy Chief Tom Bartlett


Approval of staff's request to increase the Fire Fund Donations / Miscellaneous Revenue Account in the amount of $1,742.00, and to 
increase the Fire Fund Food / Catered Meals Expense Account in the amount of $1,742.00 to account for various donations made to 
Fayette County Fire and Emergency Services.


Fayette County's Public Safety Division holds an annual Thanksgiving dinner for all of its employees and immediate family members.  
This dinner is paid for by donations received from various sources. 
 
The Public Safety Division is requesting authorization from the Board to accept the donations, to increase their revenue and expense 
budgets to properly account for the donations, and to utilize the funds for the annual Thanksgiving dinner. 
 


Approval of staff's request to increase the Fire Fund Donations / Miscellaneous Revenue Account (27030003-371001) in the amount of 
$1,742.00, and to increase the Fire Fund Food / Catered Meals Expense Account (27030550-531300) in the amount of $1,742.00 to 
account for various donations made to Fayette County Fire and Emergency Services.


Not Applicable.


No


No


Yes


No


Yes


Not Applicable Yes


ConsentThursday, December 13, 2012








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Sheriff's Office Major Bryan L. Woodie


Approval of the Sheriff's Office recommendation to enter into a Mutual Assistance Agreement between the City of Peachtree City Police 


Department and the Office of the Sheriff of Fayette County, and authorization for the Chairman to sign the Mutual Assistance Agreement.


The Sheriff of Fayette  County and the Chief of Police for the Peachtree City Police Department have entered into a Mutual Assistance 


Agreement.  This agreement outlines the roles and responsibilities of each entity in relation to each other during times of crises and other 


such periods when one entity requires the assistance of the other to continue or support operations. 


 


A copy of the agreement is attached for the Board of Commissioners' review.


Approval of the Sheriff's Office recommendation to enter into a Mutual Assistance Agreement between the City of Peachtree City Police 


Department and the Office of the Sheriff of Fayette County, and authorization for the Chairman to sign the Mutual Assistance Agreement.


Not Applicable.


No


No


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


ConsentThursday, December 13, 2012

























		Sheriff- Mutual Assistance Agreement Agenda Request File

		Sheriff- Mutual Assistance Agreement Backup










COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Fire and EMS M. Allen McCullough


Approval of staff's recommendation to allow Diversified Electronics, Inc. to install four Motorola High-Band, replacement mobile radios 


into Medic Units at a total cost of $5,360.00, and approval of a Fiscal Year 2013 budget amendment to increase other non-motorized 


equipment in the amount of $5,360.00,with said funding provided from the unreserved undesignated Fund Balance.


In response to requirements of the Federal Communications Commission (FCC), the Division of Public Safety initiated a project to 


convert their radio systems to minimum broadband technology.  The federal deadline for completion is January 1, 2013.  At the 


September 27, 2012 meeting, the Board of Commissioners approved a request to award Bid #84 to Trans Comm Services, in the amount 


of $45,426.25, for this purpose.  


 


Later, it was discovered that four remaining Motorola mobile radios, which are installed in Medic Units, do not meet the new 


requirements.  The costs involved to replace the four radios are lower than the threshold for competitive sealed bids, so Purchasing staff 


solicited written quotes.  The lowest quote of the three responses was from Diversified Electronics in the amount of $5,360.00. 


 


Staff is requesting permission to allow Diversified Electronics to install the new, compliant radios at a total cost of $5,360.00.  


Approval of staff's recommendation to allow Diversified Electronics, Inc. to install four Motorola High-Band, replacement mobile radios 


into Medic Units at a total cost of $5,360.00, and approval of a Fiscal Year 2013 budget amendment to increase other non-motorized 


equipment in the amount of $5,360.00,with said funding provided from the unreserved undesignated Fund Balance.


A FY2013 budget amendment is necessary to increase other non-motorized equipment by $5,360 with funding provided from Emergency 


Medical Services' unreserved undesignated fund balance of $991,175. 


No


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes Yes


The total EMS fund balance at 6/30/2012 is $2,041,210 of which $991,175 is unreserved undesignated.  


ConsentThursday, December 13, 2012







 


Mailing Address:  140 Stonewall Avenue West, Fayetteville GA 30214 Main Phone:  770-460-5730 Web Site:  www.fayettecountyga.gov 


 
 
 
To:  Jack Krakeel 
 
From:  Ted L. Burgess 
 
Date:  November 30, 2012 
 
Subject: Motorola High-Band Radios – FCC Compliance 
 
In response to requirements of the Federal Communications Commission (FCC), the Division of 
Public Safety initiated a project to convert their radio systems to minimum narrowband 
technology.  The federal deadline for completion is January 1, 2013. 
 
At the meeting of September 27, 2012 the Board of Commissioners approved a request to award 
Bid #844 to Trans Comm Services for this purpose.  Trans Comm Services was awarded a 
contract in the amount of $45,426.25 to provide equipment and programming services.   
 
Subsequently it was discovered that four remaining Motorola mobile radios, which are installed in 
Medic Units, do not meet the new requirements.  The costs involved in the four replacements will 
be lower than the threshold for competitive sealed bids, so Purchasing staff solicited written 
quotes.  Responses were received as follows: 
 


 Diversified Electronics, Inc., Forest Park, Georgia  $5,360.00 
 Trans Comm Services, Griffin, Georgia     5,640.00 
 Metropolitan Communications, Carrollton, Georgia    5,920.00 


 
The Division of Public Safety is recommending that funds be transferred from the EMS 
Undesignated Fund to pay the costs.  I support their selection of Diversified Electronics, Inc. to 
provide the equipment and installation, if the funds are transferred and made available for this 
purpose. 







 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


To:           Board of Commissioners 
 


From:       M. Allen McCullough, Fire Chief 
Director of Public Safety 


 
Date:       November 26, 2012 


 
Subject:  Approve staffs  request to accept the bid from Diversified Electronics for high 


band radio equipment in the amount of $5,360. 
 


Background/History/Details: 
The Federal Communications Commission (FCC) is mandating all public safety and 
industrial/business   licensees   convert  V H F  a n d  U H F  r a d i o s  by January 1, 
2013.  The purpose of the narrowband mandate is to promote more efficient use of the 
VHF and UHF land mobile frequency bands. 


 
All licensees must convert to and operate in at least 12.5 KHz efficiency.   Existing dual 
mode (25/12.5  KHz)  equipment must  have  the  25 KHz efficiency  mode  disabled  via 
software.  Equipment capable of operating only at 25 KHz efficiency must be replaced. 


 
Fire, EMS, & EMA currently operates within this frequency spectrum at 155.000 MHz with 
two frequencies.   One is licensed  as a fire operations channel and one on the regional 
EMS frequency.   These two channels  are used as a redundant  backup should the 800 
MHz system fail. 


 
This situation has created the functional obsolesce of four (4) mobile radios currently 
assigned to Medic Units.  These units were not identified earlier to be included in the High 
Band  Radio  CIP  due to  an  issue  with model  numbers  and  radio  name  designations. 
Once the CIP project began it was identified that 4 radios assigned to the EMS budget 
could not be narrow banded through re-programming.   To meet the requirements of the 
FCC mandate for narrow banding the radios must be replaced. 


 
Funding for this project is requested to come from the EMS Undesignated Fund. 


 
Fire & EMS recommends  awarding the bid to Diversified Electronics as they meet all bid 
requirements and are the lowest in cost. 


 
MAM:cf 


 


 
 
 
 


Mailing Address:  140 Stonewall Avenue West, Fayetteville, GA 30214 • Main Phone: 770-460-5730 •  Website: www.fayettecountyga.gov 



http://www.fayettecountyga.gov/



























		Fire and EMS- High Band Radio Agenda Request File

		Fire and EMS- High Band Radio Backup

		High Band Radio - Purchasing Backup

		Fire and EMS- High Band Radio Backup

		12_13_12 Fire & EMS Agenda     High Band Radio Memo

		12_13_12 Fire & ES      High Band Radio Quotes














COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also 


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Fire and Emergency Services M. Allen McCullough


Recognition of a donation from the Fayette County Kiwanis Club.


“Sparky” has been a key figure in fire safety education for many years. He is the product of the National Fire Protection Association’s 


effort to reach a wide variety of ages in public fire safety education programs. Being a fire dog he has the ability to sniff out fire safety 


problems and aids in the education of children all over the world. 


 


The Fayette County Kiwanis Club has donated a "Sparky" costume which will provide an additional element to the fire safety education 


program, and will allow the fire safety educators in Fayette County another opportunity and format in which to present a fire safety 


message. 


Recognize the donation by the Kiwanis Club of Fayette County and present the club with a letter thanking them for their support of fire 


safety education. 


Not applicable.


No


No


Yes


No


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Presentation/RecognitionThursday, December 13, 2012







 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Kiwanis Club of Fayette County 


President Geneva Weaver 


P.O. Box 814 


Fayetteville, Ga. 30214 


 


 


Dear Ms Weaver, 


 


On behalf of the Fayette County Board of Commissioners it gives me great pleasure to 


write to you and the other members of the Kiwanis Club of Fayette County to thank you 


for your club’s generous donation of the Sparky Fire Safety Education costume.  


 


As you are aware, the Department of Fire and Emergency Services has a very robust fire 


safety education program that targets all segments of our citizens; specifically third 


graders in our school system. The Department of Fire and Emergency personnel have 


informed me and other members of the Board that the Sparky costume has not only been 


very well received by all segments of the community but especially by children who are 


at great risk of injury and death from fires.  


 


It is because of organizations like the Kiwanis Club of Fayette County that our fire 


department personnel are able to continue the fine work of preventing fire related deaths 


and injuries in Fayette County.   


 


Please express our heartfelt appreciation to the other members of your club and rest 


assured that because of your generosity Sparky will to continue to be used for educating 


our citizens on fire safety related issues.  


 


 


Sincerely,       Sincerely.   


 


  


Herbert Frady        M. Allen McCullough  


Chairman, Fayette County     Public Safety Director 





		Fire and EMS- Sparky Agenda Request File

		Fire and EMS- Sparky Backup






COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Sheriff's Office Captain Michelle Walker


Approval of the Sheriff's Office request to amend the Fiscal Year 2013 Overtime Budget for the Criminal Investigations Division by 
$2,954.49 for reimbursement for employees assigned to work with various federal agencies.


The Fayette County Sheriff's Office- Criminal Investigations Division receives monies for reimbursement for overtime funds from federal 
programs for personnel assigned to work investigations in cooperation with those agencies.


Approval of the Sheriff's Office request to amend the Fiscal Year 2013 Overtime Budget for the Criminal Investigations Division 
(10030321-511300) by $2,954.49 for reimbursement for employees assigned to work with various federal agencies.  This would revise 
the Overtime Budgeting Category to $126,209.98.


Not Applicable.


No


No


Yes


No


Yes


Not Applicable Yes


ConsentThursday, December 13, 2012








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Stormwater Management Vanessa Birrell


Approval of Ordinance 2012-12 amending the Fayette County Code, Chapter 8, Development Regulations, Article VI, Tree Retention, 


Protection, and Replacement.


During the November 7, 2012 Board of Commissioners Workshop Meeting, Director of Stormwater Management Vanessa Birrell 


explained proposed amendments to the Fayette County Code.  Those amendments include clarifying the variance process for 


construction in critical root zones of specimen trees, and the changes are intended to bring the variance process into line with variance 


processes of Floodplain Management and Watershed Protection development ordinances. 


 


The Board directed staff to place the proposed changes on the next available Consent Agenda.


Approval of Ordinance 2012-12 amending the Fayette County Code, Chapter 8, Development Regulations, Article VI, Tree Retention, 


Protection, and Replacement.


Funds are not needed at this time, but will be part of an overall cost to update the Fayette County Code of Ordinances.


Yes Wednesday, November 7, 2012


No


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


ConsentThursday, December 13, 2012







ARTICLE VI.  TREE RETENTION, PROTECTION AND REPLACEMENT 
(Came into existence on 12/14/89) 


 


 


 
Sec. 8-176.  Introduction.   


 


It is hereby determined that: 


 


Trees are a valuable asset to the rural/urban environment of Fayette County and can generate such 
benefits as:  the purification of air; moderation of the microclimate; reduction of noise and glare; 
conservation of energy in terms of heating and cooling; prevention of soil erosion; reduced stormwater 
management costs; minimization of flood potential; improved water quality; enhancement and 
stabilization of property values; increased aesthetics; and preservation of the rural character of 
unincorporated Fayette County. 
 
Therefore, Fayette County adopts this ordinance to provide requirements to protect the rural and wooded 
character of unincorporated Fayette County through the preservation and replanting of trees when new 
development occurs. 


 


 
Sec. 8-177.  Definitions. 


 
Certified Arborist.  An arborist certified by the International Society of Arboriculture (ISA).   
 


Clearing.  An activity that removes or disturbs the vegetative cover including trees. 
 
Critical Root Zone (CRZ). The minimum area beneath a tree which must be left undisturbed.  The 
critical root zone shall be equal to one and one half (1.5) feet of radial distance for every inch of the tree’s 
DBH, with a minimum of eight feet.  (Ord. No. 2000-02) 
 
Deciduous Tree.  A tree that annually loses leaves. 
 
Dripline.  A line on the ground established by a vertical plane extending from a tree’s outermost  branch 
tips down to the ground; i.e., the line enclosing the area directly beneath the tree’s crown from which 
rainfall would drip. 


 
Diameter-at-breast-height DBH.  Standard measure of existing tree size and is the trunk diameter 
measured in inches at height of four and one-half (4½) feet above the ground.  If a tree splits into multiple 
trunks below four and one-half (4 ½) feet, then the trunk is measured at its most narrow point beneath the 
split.  A tree that splits into multiple trunk above 4 ½ feet is measured as a single tree at 4 ½ feet. 
 
Erosion, Sedimentation and Pollution Control Plan.  A plan required by the Erosion, Sedimentation 
and Pollution Control Act. O.C.G.A., 12-7-1 et seq., that includes, at a minimum, protections at least as 
stringent as this ordinance. 
 
Evergreen Tree.  Tree that retains its foliage throughout the year. 
 







Existing Density Unit (EDU).  A tree density unit assigned for the preservation of existing trees that will 
remain on site and protected during construction and where one (1) EDU is equivalent to one (1) inch of 
DBH when the DBH is a minimum size of four (4) inches.  
 
Land-disturbing activity.  Any land change which may result in soil erosion from water or wind and the 
movement of sediment into State water or onto lands within the State, including, but not limited to, 
clearing, dredging, grading, excavating, transporting and filling of land, other than federal lands. 
 
Land Disturbance Permit.  Authorization to conduct a land-disturbing activity under the provisions of 
Article IX, Soil Erosion, Sedimentation and Pollution Control.  
 
Landscaping.  Any additions to the natural features of a plot of ground to restore construction 
disturbance and to make an area more attractive. 
 
Landscape Areas.  An area set aside for the installation and maintenance of ornamental planting 
materials. 
 
Overstory (Canopy) Tree.   Any tree that, under normal forest conditions, will compose the top layer or 
canopy of vegetation and generally will reach a mature height of greater than 40 feet. Examples include: 
Oak, Maple, Elm, Bald Cypress, Cryptomeria. 
 
Replacement Density Unit (RDU).  A tree density unit assigned to a new tree planted to achieve the site 
density unit (SDU) and is equivalent to the number of inches of trunk diameter measured at six (6) inches 
above the ground.   
 


Shrub.  A plant with persistent woody stems and a relatively low growth habit, distinguished from a tree 
by producing several basal stems instead of a single trunk. 


 
Site.  That portion of a tract of land that will be dedicated to a proposed development, including the land 
containing trees that will be counted toward satisfying the requirements of these provisions. 
 
Site Density Unit (SDU).  The minimum number of tree density units that must be achieved on a non-
residential site after development and is equal to Existing Density Units (EDU) plus Replacement Density 
Units (RDU.)  


 
Specimen Tree or Stand.  Any tree or grouping of trees that is determined to be of high value and 
qualifies for special consideration for preservation because of its species, size, or historical significance.   


 
Tree.  A self-supporting woody perennial plant that, at maturity, has one (1) or more stems or trunks that 
attain a diameter of at least three (3) inches; a more or less definitely formed crown of foliage; and a 
height of 10 feet or more. 
 
Tree Density Units (TDU).  A unit of measurement for tree density based on the diameter of the tree.  
 
Tree Protection Area.  A barrier constructed around trees at construction sites sufficient to prevent 
damage or injury to tree trunks, limbs, and roots. The tree protection area shall be either the dripline of the 
tree or the critical root zone of a tree or clusters of trees to be retained, whichever is greater.  
 
Understory Tree.  A tree that, under normal forest conditions, grows to maturity beneath overstory trees 
and will generally reach a mature height of at least 10 feet, but less than 40 feet.  Examples include 
dogwood, red bud, fringe tree, lusterleaf holly, and red cedar. (Ord. No. 2000-02) 







 
Utility. Public or private water or sewer piping systems, water or sewer pumping stations, electric power 
lines, fuel pipelines, telephone lines or other utilities identified by a local government. 
 
Variance.  A grant of relief from the CRZ requirements of this ordinance that permits construction in 


a manner otherwise prohibited by this ordinance. 
 
Sec. 8-178. General Provisions 


 


(a) Purpose and Intent. The purpose of this ordinance is to establish minimum requirements for tree 
retention, protection and replacement in Fayette County and to protect the rural and wooded 
character of Fayette County through the preservation and replanting of trees when new 
development occurs.  It is the intent of this ordinance that all site planning and design for 
development of land be undertaken with a survey of trees on the property and that the grading, 
final placement of buildings, structures, and roads, utilities, and other features minimizes the 
removal of existing trees, and insures aesthetic replacement and distribution. 


 
(b) Applicability.  This ordinance shall apply to any activity that requires or precedes submittal of a 


Preliminary Plat, an Erosion, Sedimentation, and Pollution Control Plan, or a site plan as defined 
in Article II.  Non-residential subdivisions without common infrastructure are still required to 
submit a TPP but are not required to submit TDUs. 


   
(c) Exemptions.  


 
(i) Removal of trees determined to be dead, diseased, or infested as determined by the Georgia 


Forestry Commission or a Certified Arborist and approved by the Stormwater Management 
Department. 


 
(ii) Construction of single-family or two-family residential structures, accessory structures, or 


any minor land-disturbing activities. 
 
(iii) Orchards and tree nurseries in active commercial operation. 
 
(iv) Agricultural operations as exempted in Article IX, Section 8-243.(5). 


 
(v) Public roads, public utilities (as exempted in Article IX, Section 8-243(9-11)), and 


telecommunication towers.  
 
(vi) Commercial forestry operations, including timber harvesting. 


 (Ord. No. 2000-02) 
 


(d) Designation of Ordinance. Administrator.  The Fayette County Stormwater Management 
Department shall administer this ordinance. 


 
(e) Compatibility with Other Regulations. This ordinance is not intended to modify or repeal any other 


ordinance, rule, regulation, statute, easement, covenant, deed restriction or other provision of law.  
The requirements of this ordinance are in addition to the requirements of any other ordinance, rule, 
regulation or other provision of law, and where any provision of this ordinance imposes restrictions 
different from those imposed by any other ordinance, rule, regulation or other provision of law, 
whichever provision is more restrictive or impose higher protective standards for human health or 
the environmental shall control. 







 
(f) Severability.  If the provisions of any section, subsection, paragraph, subdivision or clause of this 


ordinance shall be adjudged invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, such judgment shall not 
affect or invalidate the remainder of any section, subsection, paragraph, subdivision or clause of 
this ordinance. 


 
(g) Effective Date. This Ordinance becomes effective upon adoption by the Board of Commissioners. 


 
(h) Technical Standards.  Standards for plant selection and installation listed below are incorporated by 


reference: 


(i) “American Standard for Nursery Stock”  (ANSI Z60.1-2004) 


(ii) “Manual for Woody Landscape Plants”  (Michael Dirr, 2009, Stipes)” 


(iii) “Principles and Practices of Planting Trees and Shrubs”(Watson and Himelick, 1997, ISA)  


(iv) “American National Standards for Tree Care Operations” (ANSI A300) 


(v) University of Georgia Cooperative Extension Service Bulletin No. 625 Landscape Plants for 
Georgia 


 
Sec. 8-179.  Tree Retention, Protection and Replacement Requirements.  
For all sites with three (3) acres or less, all trees used in the SDU calculation shall be individually 
inventoried.   For all sites over three (3) acres industry standard sampling methods may be used to prepare 
a tree survey  when trees are of such density to make individual tree identification impractical.  In such 
cases the tree surveyor shall show tree stands and provide estimates of size and species on the Tree 
Protection Plan. 
 


(a) Site Density Requirements. The required tree density for each non-residential site is referred to 
as the Site Density Unit (SDU).  Each property subject to this article shall have a minimum 
required SDU based on total number of disturbed acres on the project site. 
 
(i) The total SDU required equals Existing Density Units (EDU) plus Replacement Density 


Units (RDU). 
 
(ii) Property subject to this Article that is greater than or equal to three (3) acres shall have or 


exceed an average SDU of 100 TDU’s per acre. 
 
(iii) Property subject to this Article that is less than three (3) acres shall have or exceed an 


average SDU of fifty (50) TDU’s per acre. 
 


(iv) Credit will be given to trees retained on a property having a DBH of four (4) inches or 
more. 


 
(v) At least 50 percent of the EDU’s per acre must be located outside of any zoning or 


watershed buffers as referenced in Articles V and VII. 
 


(vi) Palm trees are not acceptable for SDU credit. 
 


(b) Specimen Trees. 







 
(i) Criteria for determination of specimen trees or stands are as follows: 
  


1) Any deciduous canopy tree where the DBH equals or exceeds 24 inches. 
   


2) Any evergreen canopy tree where the DBH equals or exceeds 30 inches. 
 


3) Any understory tree where the DBH equals or exceeds ten (10) inches. 
 


4) Any tree which has significant historical value and can be documented through 
historical records or otherwise. (Ord. No. 2000-02) 


 
(ii) Removal.  Any specimen tree removed without prior approval of the Stormwater 


Management Department will be replaced by trees equaling two (2) times an inch-for-
inch replacement of the tree removed.  Size alone will determine whether a tree was of 
specimen quality if the tree is removed without approval and there is no evidence of its 
condition.  Such action may result in a stop work order issued by the Stormwater 
Management Department. 


  
 Written justification must be given for any specimen tree designated for removal.  The 


Fayette County Stormwater Management Department may require additional information 
including, but not limited to, a certified arborist’s appraisal of the tree’s viability and 
anticipated life span. 


 
 Any specimen tree may be removed if it is shown that at least one of the following 


conditions is met: 
 


1) The location of the tree prevents the opening of reasonable and necessary vehicular 
traffic lanes. 


 
2) The location of the tree prevents the construction of utility lines or drainage facilities 


which may not feasibly be relocated. 
 


3) The location of the tree prevents reasonable access to the property, if no alternate 
exists.  


 
4) The tree is diseased, dead, or dying to the point that repair or restoration is not 


practical or the disease may be transmitted to other trees.   
 


5) There is no reasonable assurance that if the tree is saved with proper construction 
precautions, it will continue to live as an asset to the site. 


 
(iii)  Preservation.  All reasonable efforts should be made to preserve specimen trees and 


incorporate them into the design of the project.  Specimen trees saved by a specifically 
designed feature of the building, hardscape, or utilities shall be given EDU credit of two 
(2) inches per inch DBH. 


(c) Replacement Tree Requirements. 


All trees selected for replacement density units must meet the following requirements: 







(i)      Trees must be free of disease, injury, or infestation, and must be ecologically compatible 
with the specifically intended growing area (see Section 8-184), and planted in 
accordance with standards established by the International Society of Arboriculture. 


(ii) At a minimum, four (4) species mixture of different trees, with at least three (3) being 
deciduous hardwoods should be utilized. (Ord. No. 2000-02).  


(iii) No more than thirty (30) percent of replacement trees may be of a single species.   


(iv) A fifty percent mix of overstory and understory trees shall be maintained.  See Sec, 8-
184. (Ord. No. 2000-02) 


(v)   Trees shall have a minimum caliper requirement of two and one half (2½) inches in 
diameter as measured at six (6) inches above the ground at time of planting.  


(vi)   All trees planted to fulfill the replacement tree requirements shall be in place before a 
Certificate of Occupancy is granted.  In the event that the requirements of this Article 
cannot be met at the time a Certificate of Occupancy is otherwise granted, refer to 
“Buffer and Landscape Areas,” Section 8-162 Performance Surety, in these Development 
Regulations.  (Ord. No. 2000-02) 


(vii)   All tree planted under the requirements of this Article which do not survive for 24 
months after issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy will be replaced as a condition of 
occupancy.  Trees shall be bonded via a maintenance agreement in the amount of (100%) 
of their replacement cost.  Bonds will be released after the 24 month period has passed, 
and the health of the trees have been certified and accepted by the County.  Refer to 
“Buffer and Landscape Areas,” Section 8-163 General Maintenance, in these 
Development Regulations. (Ord. No. 2000-02) 


(viii) See Section 8-160.d.2 and Section 8-161 for suggested tree species.  For additional tree 
species, especially understory (small) trees, see University of Georgia Cooperative 
Extension Service Bulletin No. 625 Landscape Plants for Georgia.   


(d) Tree Protection Requirements.   


(i) A tree protection area shall be maintained around all trees and stands of trees to be 
retained throughout the duration of construction by tree protection fencing.  


 
(ii)   The tree protection area of stand-alone trees and stands of trees shall be marked with 


standard tree protection fencing (orange) or chain-link fencing and “Tree Protection 
Area” signs.  At least two (2) “Tree Protection Area” signs shall be posted at each 
individual tree protection area. (Ord. No 2000-02) 


 
(iii) All tree protection fencing shall be inspected for proper installation by the Stormwater 


Management Department during the initial erosion and sediment control inspection.   
 
(iv) During subdivision street construction, land disturbance allowed by a development 


permit shall be limited to areas needed for street right-of-way, drainage easements, 
erosion and sediment control practices and utilities.  All other areas shall remain 
undisturbed for tree protection purposes. 


 







(v) If utilities must run through the tree protection area and the running of those utilities will 
encroach into the critical root zone CRZ of any trees to be saved, the utility must be 
tunneled at a depth of 24 inches.  When feasible, utilities will run along streets, roadways, 
driveways, or sidewalks.  Reasonable efforts shall be made to save as many trees as 
possible.  (Ord. NO. 2000-02) 


 
(vi) If it is determined that irreparable damage has occurred to a tree or trees within a 


designated tree protection area, as determined by the Fayette County Stormwater 
Management Department, the Georgia Forestry Commission, or a Certified Arborist, it 
shall be the responsibility of the developer/builder to remove and replace the tree or trees 
and guarantee survival after the issuance of the Certificate of Occupancy as references in 
Section 8-179.c.vii and Article V. (Ord. No. 2000-02) 


 


(e) Tree Protection Plan.  
 


(i) Procedures. 
 


1) The TPP shall be submitted with the Preliminary Plat, Erosion, Sedimentation and 
Pollution Control Plan or the Site Plan, whichever is the first submittal required by 
Fayette County Planning and Zoning Department. 


 
2) The Tree Protection Plan shall be prepared by either a licensed Landscape Architect 


or Forester; Certified Arborist, or other licensed professional of similar design 
discipline licensed in Georgia. 


 
3) The Stormwater Management Department shall have a maximum of 14 calendar days 


from the submittal date, or each re-submittal date, for plan review.  If the plan is not 
approved a deficiency checklist will be submitted back to the applicant.  


 
(ii) Submittal. 
  
 The Tree Protection Plan shall be submitted on a scale of no less than one (1) inch to 100 


feet and shall include project name, design professional’s name and contact information, 
north arrow, graphic scale, and date.  The plan should clearly show and label the 
following: 


 
1) Tree save areas noting the location, size, DBH, dripline, CRZ, and species name 


(common name) of each tree that will be retained to fulfill the SDU requirements.  
Five or more trees whose dripline and CRZ combine into one tree protection area 
may be outlined as a group with the exception of specimen trees. 


 
2) Summary table listing the DBH and species name of each RDU and EDU tree used to 


obtain the required SDU under “Notes.” 


 
3) If a group of trees is outlined on the plan as a tree save area, include a summary table 


listing the size, DBH and species name of each tree within that group under “Notes.” 


 
4) Location of all new replacement trees including species name and DBH that fulfill 


RDU requirements. 


 







5) Location of any specimen tree designated in a tree protection area including the 
DBH, CRZ and species name even if contained in a group.  If construction is limited 
to streets, drainage easements and utilities the TPP only needs to show all specimen 
trees located within 100 feet of the centerline of any right-of-way, or drainage/utility 
easements. (Ord. No. 2000-02) 


 
6) Location of any specimen trees designated for removal during construction including 


the size, DBH and species name.  See Sec. 8-181. 


 
7) Location, depth and height of all existing and proposed utility lines that could impact 


any trees. 


 
8) Boundaries of property, buffer and landscaped areas, buildings and structures, vehicle 


use areas, and other impervious areas. (Ord. No. 2000-02) 


 
9) Calculations for meeting all required site density units under “Notes.”  If a scientific 


method is used to determine the site density units, label all sample areas and provide 
a listing of trees by size and species as based on sampling method requirements. 


 
10) Under “Notes” state the following:  “No land disturbance, construction processes, or 


storage of equipment or materials shall take place within a designated tree protection 
area in order to prevent direct physical root damage, indirect root damage, and trunk 
and crown damage. (Ord. No. 2000-02) 


 
 


Sec. 8-180.  Appeals and Variances.   
 


The following variance and appeals procedures shall apply to an applicant who has been 


denied a permit for a development activity or to an owner or developer who has not applied for 


a permit because it is clear that the proposed development activity would be inconsistent with 


the provisions of this ordinance. 


 


(a) Requests for variances shall only be given for a reduction in the Critical Root Zone 


(CRZ).  


 


(b) Requests for a variance from the CRZ requirements of this ordinance shall be 


submitted to the Stormwater Management Department.  All such requests shall be 


heard and decided in accordance with procedures to be published in writing by the 


Stormwater Management Department.   


 


(c) Any person adversely affected by any decision of the Stormwater Management 


Department shall have the right to appeal such decision to the Fayette County Zoning 


Board of Appeals as established by Fayette County in accordance with Article IX of the 


Fayette County Zoning Ordinance.  At a minimum, such procedures shall include 


notice to all affected parties and the opportunity to be heard. 


 







(d) Any person aggrieved by the decision of the Fayette County Zoning Board of Appeals 


may appeal such decision to the Fayette County State Court, as provided in Section 5-


4-1 of the Official Code of Georgia Annotated. 


 


(e) In reviewing such requests, the Stormwater Management Department and Fayette 


County Zoning Board of Appeals shall consider all technical evaluations, relevant 


factors, and all standards specified in this and other sections of this ordinance.  


 


 


(f) Variances shall only be considered based on the follow criteria: 


 


(i) Disturbance of the CRZ of less than 30%; 


(ii) A reduction in the CRZ based on industry standards less stringent than outlined 


in this ordinance.  


 


(g) Conditions for Variances:  


 


(i) A variance shall be issued only when all of the following conditions are met:  


 


1) a finding of good and sufficient cause; and  


 


2) a determination that failure to grant the variance would result in 


exceptional hardship.  


 


(ii) Any person to whom a variance is granted shall be given written notice 


specifying the difference between the current CRZ(s) requirements and the 


CRZ(s) requested in the variance. 


 


(iii) The Fayette County Stormwater Management Department shall maintain the 


records of all appeal actions. 


  


(iv) Any person requesting a variance shall, from the time of the request until the 


time the request is acted upon, submit such information and documentation as 


Fayette County Stormwater Management Department and Fayette County 


Zoning Board of Appeals shall deem necessary to the consideration of the 


request including, but not limited to, a certified arborist’s appraisal of the tree’s 


viability and anticipated life span. 


 


(v) Upon consideration of the factors listed above and the purposes of this Ordinance, 


Fayette County Stormwater Management Department and the Fayette County Zoning 


Board of Appeals may attach such conditions to the granting of variances as they deem 


necessary or appropriate, consistent with the purposes of this Ordinance.  


 


1) Variances shall not be issued “after the fact.” 


 


2) At a minimum, a variance request shall include the following information: 







 


3) A site map that includes locations of all streams, wetlands, floodplain 


boundaries and other natural features, as determined by field survey; 


4)  


5) A description of the shape, size, topography, slope, soils, vegetation and 


other physical characteristics of the property; 


 


6) A detailed site plan that shows the locations of all existing and proposed 


structures and other impervious cover, the limits of all existing and 


proposed land disturbance, both inside and outside CRZ.  The exact area of 


the CRZ to be affected shall be accurately and clearly indicated; 


 


7) Documentation of unusual hardship should the CRZ be maintained; 


 


8) At least one alternative plan, which does not include CRZ disturbance or 


reduction, or an explanation of why such a site plan is not possible; 


 


9) A calculation of the total area and length of the proposed intrusion; 


 


10) Proposed mitigation, for the intrusion.  If mitigation is not proposed, the 


request must explain why. 


 


(vi) The following factors may considered in determining whether to issue a 


variance: 


 


1) The shape, size, topography, slope, soils, vegetation and other physical 


characteristics of the property; 


 


2) The location and extent of the proposed CRZ intrusion; and, 


 


3) Whether alternative designs are possible which require less intrusion or no 


intrusion; 


 


4) The long-term impacts of the proposed variance; and, 


 


5) Whether issuance of the variance is at least as protective of natural 


resources and the environment. 
 
 
Any applicant who is aggrieved by any decision of the Fayette County Stormwater Management 
Department relating to the application of this ordinance shall have the right to appeal as provided under 
Article IX of the Fayette County Zoning Ordinance.  


 


Sec. 8-181. Violations, Enforcement and Penalties. 


 


Any action or inaction which violates the provisions of this ordinance or the requirements of an approved 
stormwater management application may be subject to the enforcement actions outlines in this Section.  







Any such action or inaction, which is continuous with respect to time, is deemed to be a public nuisance 
and may be abated by injunctive or other equitable relief.  The imposition of any of the penalties 
described below shall not prevent such equitable relief. 
 


(h) Notice-of-Violation.  If the Stormwater Management Department determines that an applicant or 
other responsible person has failed to comply with the terms and conditions of a permit, an 
approved Stormwater Management Plan or the provisions of this ordinance, it shall issue a 
written notice of violation to such applicant or other responsible person.  Where a person is 
engaged in activity covered by this ordinance without having first secured a permit, the notice of 
violation shall be served on the owner of the responsible person in charge of the activity being 
conducted on the site.  
 
The notice-of-violation shall contain: 


 
(iii) The name and address of the owner or the applicant or the responsible person; 
 
(iv) The address or description of the site upon which the violation is occurring; 


 
(v) A statement specifying the nature of the violation; 


 
(vi) A description of the remedial measures necessary to bring the action or inaction into 


compliance with the permit, the Stormwater Management Action Plan or this ordinance 
and the date for the completion of such remedial action; and, 


 
(vii) A statement of the penalty or penalties that may be assessed against the person to whom 


the notice of violation is directed. 
 


(i) Penalties. In the event the remedial measures described in the notice of violation have not been 
completed by the date set forth for such completion in the notice of violation, any one or more of 
the following actions or penalties may be taken or assessed against the person to whom the notice 
of violation was directed.  Before taking any of the following actions or imposing any of the 
following penalties, the Stormwater Management Department shall first notify the applicant or 
other responsible person in writing of its intended action, and shall provide a reasonable 
opportunity, of not less than ten (10) days (except, that in the event the violation constitutes an 
immediate danger to public health or public safety, 24-hours notice shall be sufficient) to cure 
such violation.  In the event the applicant or other responsible person fails to cure such violation 
after such notice and cure period, the Stormwater Management Department may take one or more 
of the following action or impose any one or more of the following penalties:  


 


(i) Stop Work Order.  The Stormwater Management Department may issue a stop work order 
that shall be served on the applicant or other responsible person.  The stop work order 
shall remain in effect until the applicant other responsible person has taken the remedial 
measures set forth in the notice of violation or has otherwise cured the violation or 
violations described therein, provided the stop work order may be withdrawn or modified 
to enable the applicant or other responsible person to take the necessary remedial measures 
to cure such violation or violations. 
 


(ii) Withhold Certificate-of-Occupancy.  The Stormwater Management Department may 
recommend to the Fayette County Permits and Inspection Department refuse to issue a 
Certificate-of-Occupancy for the building other improvements constructed or being 
constructed on the site until the applicant or other responsible person has taken the 







remedial measures set forth in the notice of violation or has otherwise cured the violations 
described therein. 


 
(iii) Suspension, Revocation or Modification of Permit.  The Stormwater Management 


Department may suspend, revoke or modify the permit authorizing the land-development 
project.  A suspended, revoked or modified permit may be reinstated after the applicant or 
other responsible person has taken the remedial measures set forth in the notice-of-
violation(s) or has otherwise cured the violations described therein, provided such permit 
may be reinstated (upon such conditions as the Stormwater Management Department may 
deem necessary) to enable the applicant or other responsible person to take the necessary 
remedial measures to cure such violations. 


 
(j) Citations.   For intentional and flagrant violations of this ordinance, or in the event the applicant 


or other responsible person fails to take the remedial measures set forth in previously issued 
notice-of-violations(s) or otherwise fails to cure the violations within ten days, the Stormwater 
Management Department may issue a citation to the applicant or other responsible person, 
requiring such person to appear in State Court of Fayette County to answer charges of such 
violation.  Upon conviction, such person shall be punished by a fine not to exceed $1,000 or 
imprisonment for 60 days or both.  Each act of violation and each day upon which any violation 
shall occur shall constitute a separate offense.   


 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 


 







Section 8-176.  STATE OF GEORGIA;  
COUNTY OF FAYETTE 


 
ORDINANCE NO. 2012-02 


 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CODE OF ORDINANCES, FAYETTE 
COUNTY, GEORGIA CHAPTER 8, THE FAYETTE COUNTY DEVELOPMENT 
REGULATIONS, AS AMENDED SPECIFICALLY ARTICLE VI TREE RETENTION, 
PROTECTION AND REPLACEMENT; TO PROVIDE FOR CODIFICATION; TO 
PROVIDE FOR SEVERABILITY; TO PROVIDE FOR PENALTIES; TO REPEAL 
CONFLICTING ORDINANCES; TO PROVIDE AN ADOPTION DATE; TO 
PROVIDE AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES ALLOWED BY 
LAW. 


 


WHEREAS, the duly elected governing authority of Fayette County is the Board of 
Commissioners thereof; 
 


WHEREAS, the governing authority desires to amend the provision that provides for the ethical 
standards of county officials as allowed by the State of Georgia; 
 


WHEREAS, the health, safety, and welfare of the citizens of Fayette County, Georgia shall be 
improved and protected by adoption and implementation of this Ordinance. 


  
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF FAYETTE COUNTY, 


GEORGIA AND IT IS HEREBY ORDAINED BY AUTHORITY THEREOF: 
 
Section 1.  That Article VI of Chapter 8 Development Regulations of the Code of Ordinances, Fayette 
County, Georgia is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 


 
ARTICLE VI.  TREE RETENTION, PROTECTION AND REPLACEMENT 


 


 
Sec. 8-176.  Introduction.   


 


It is hereby determined that: 


 


Trees are a valuable asset to the rural/urban environment of Fayette County and can generate such 
benefits as:  the purification of air; moderation of the microclimate; reduction of noise and glare; 
conservation of energy in terms of heating and cooling; prevention of soil erosion; reduced stormwater 
management costs; minimization of flood potential; improved water quality; enhancement and 
stabilization of property values; increased aesthetics; and preservation of the rural character of 
unincorporated Fayette County. 
 
Therefore, Fayette County adopts this ordinance to provide requirements to protect the rural and wooded 
character of unincorporated Fayette County through the preservation and replanting of trees when new 
development occurs. 
 


 


 







Sec. 8-177.  Definitions. 


 
Certified Arborist.  An arborist certified by the International Society of Arboriculture (ISA).   
 


Clearing.  An activity that removes or disturbs the vegetative cover including trees. 
 
Critical Root Zone (CRZ). The minimum area beneath a tree which must be left undisturbed.  The 
critical root zone shall be equal to one and one half (1.5) feet of radial distance for every inch of the tree’s 
DBH, with a minimum of eight feet.  (Ord. No. 2000-02) 
 
Deciduous Tree.  Any tree which drops its leaves at the end of the growing season.  A tree that annually 
loses leaves. 
 
Dripline.  A line on the ground established by a vertical plane extending from a tree’s outermost  branch 
tips down to the ground; i.e., the line enclosing the area directly beneath the tree’s crown from which 
rainfall would drip. 


 
Diameter-at-breast-height DBH.  Standard measure of existing tree size and is the trunk diameter 
measured in inches at height of four and one-half (4½) feet above the ground.  If a tree splits into multiple 
trunks below four and one-half (4 ½) feet, then the trunk is measured at its most narrow point beneath the 
split.  A tree that splits into multiple trunk above 4 ½ feet is measured as a single tree at 4 ½ feet. 
 
Erosion, Sedimentation and Pollution Control Plan.  A plan required by the Erosion, Sedimentation 
and Pollution Control Act. O.C.G.A., 12-7-1 et seq.,that includes, at a minimum, protections at least as 
stringent as this ordinance. 
 
Evergreen Tree.  Tree that retains its green foliage throughout the year. 
 
Existing Density Unit (EDU).  A tree density unit assigned for the preservation of existing trees that will 
remain on site and protected during construction and where EDU is equivalent to inch of DBH when the 
DBH is a minimum size of four (4) inches.  
 
Land-disturbing activity.  Any land change which may result in soil erosion from water or wind and the 
movement of sediment into State water or onto lands within the State, including, but not limited to, 
clearing, dredging, grading, excavating, transporting and filling of land, other than federal lands. 
 
Land Disturbance Permit.  Authorization to conduct a land-disturbing activity under the provisions of 
Article IX, Soil Erosion, Sedimentation and Pollution Control.  
 
Landscaping.  Any additions to the natural features of a plot of ground to restore construction 
disturbance and to make an area more attractive. 
 
Landscape Areas.  An area set aside for the installation and maintenance of ornamental planting 
materials 
 
Overstory (Canopy) Tree.   Any tree that, under normal forest conditions, will compose the top layer or 
canopy of vegetation and generally will reach a mature height of greater than 40 feet. Examples include: 
Oak, Maple, Elm, Bald Cypress, Cryptomeria. 


 







Replacement Density Unit (RDU).  A tree density unit assigned to a new tree planted to achieve the site 
density unit (SDU) and is equivalent to the number of inches of trunk diameter measures at six (6) inches 
above the ground..   
 


Shrub.  A plant with persistent woody stems and a relatively low growth habit, distinguished from a tree 
by producing several basal stems instead of a single trunk. 


 


Site.  That portion of a tract of land that will be dedicated to a proposed development, including the land 
containing trees that will be counted toward satisfying the requirements of these provisions. 
 
Site Density Unit (SDU).  The minimum number of tree density units which must be achieved on a non-
residential site after development and is equal to Existing Density Units (EDU) plus replacement Density 
Units (RDU).  


 
Specimen Tree or Stand.  Any tree or grouping of trees that is determined to be of high value and 
qualifies for special consideration for preservation because of its species, size, or historical significance.   


 
Tree.  A self-supporting woody perennial plant that, at maturity, has one (1) or more stems or trunks that 
attain a diameter of at least three (3) inches; a more or less definitely formed crown of foliage; and a 
height of 10 feet or more. 
 


Tree Density Units (TDU).  A unit of measurement for tree density based on the diameter of the tree.  
 
Tree Protection Area.  A barrier constructed around trees at construction sites sufficient to prevent 
damage or injury to tree trunks, limbs, and roots. The tree protection area shall be either the dripline of the 
tree or the critical root zone of a tree or clusters of trees to be retained, whichever is greater.  
 
Understory Tree.  A tree that, under normal forest conditions, grows to maturity beneath overstory trees 
and will generally reach a mature height of at least 10 feet, but less than 40 feet.  Examples include 
dogwood, red bud, fringe tree, lusterleaf holly, and red cedar. (Ord. No. 2000-02) 
 
Utility. Public or private water or sewer piping systems, water or sewer pumping stations, electric power 
lines, fuel pipelines, telephone lines, roads, driveways, bridges, river/lake access facilities, stormwater 
systems, railroads, or other utilities identified by a local government. 
 
Variance.  A grant of relief from the CRZ requirements of this ordinance that permits construction in a 
manner otherwise prohibited by this ordinance. 
 
 
Sec. 8-178. General Provisions 


 


(a) Purpose and Intent. The purpose of this ordinance is to establish minimum requirements for tree 
retention, protection and replacement in Fayette County and to protect the rural and wooded 
character of Fayette County through the preservation and replanting of trees when new 
development occurs.  It is the intent of this ordinance that all site planning and design for 
development of land be undertaken with a survey of trees on the property and that the grading, 
final placement of buildings, structures, and roads, utilities, and other features minimizes the 
removal of existing trees, and insures aesthetic replacement and distribution. 


 
(b) Applicability.  This ordinance shall apply to any activity that requires a Preliminary Plat, Erosion, 


Sedimentation, and Pollution Control Plan or site plan as defined in Article II.  Residential 







Subdivisions without common infrastructure are still required to submit a Tree Protection Plan 
but are not required to submit tree density units. 


   
(c) Exemptions.  


 
(i) Trees determined to be dead, diseased, or infested as determined by the Georgia Forestry 


Commission or a Certified Arborist and approved by the Stormwater Management 
Department.  


 
(ii) Orchards and tree nurseries in active commercial operation. 
 
(iii) Agricultural operation as defined in Article IX. 
 
(iv) Non-residential subdivisions development projects without common infrastructure.  
 
(v) Public roads as exempted in Article IX, Section 8-243(9).  
 
(vi) Public utilities, as exempted in Article IX, Section 8-243(10–11), including 


telecommunication towers. 
 
(vii) Commercial forestry operations, including timber harvesting. 
 
(viii)   Residential and non-residential subdivision development projects are exempt from Tree 


Density Requirements, but are required to submit a TPP.(Ord. No. 2000-02) 
 


(d) Designation of Ordinance. Administrator.  The Fayette County Stormwater Management 
Department shall administer this ordinance. 


 
(e) Compatibility with Other Regulations. This ordinance is not intended to modify or repeal any other 


ordinance, rule, regulation, statute, easement, covenant, deed restriction or other provision of law.  
The requirements of this ordinance are in addition to the requirements of any other ordinance, rule, 
regulation or other provision of law, and where any provision of this ordinance imposes restrictions 
different from those imposed by any other ordinance, rule, regulation or other provision of law, 
whichever provision is more restrictive or impose higher protective standards for human health or 
the environmental shall control. 


 


(f) Severability.  If the provisions of any section, subsection, paragraph, subdivision or clause of this 
ordinance shall be adjudged invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, such judgment shall not 
affect or invalidate the remainder of any section, subsection, paragraph, subdivision or clause of 
this ordinance. 


 


(g) Effective Date. This Ordinance becomes effective upon adoption by the Board of Commissioners. 
 


(h) Technical Standards.  Standards for plant selection and installation listed below are incorporated by 
reference: 


(i) “American Standard for Nursery Stock”  (ANSI Z60.1-2004) 


(ii) “Manual for Woody Landscape Plants”  (Michael Dirr, 2009, Stipes)” 


(iii) “Principles and Practices of Planting Trees and Shrubs”(Watson and Himelick, 1997, ISA)  







(iv) “American National Standards for Tree Care Operations” (ANSI A300) 


(v) University of Georgia Cooperative Extension Service Bulletin No. 625 Landscape Plants for 
Georgia 


 
Sec. 8-179.  Tree Retention, Protection and Replacement Requirements.  
For all sites with three (3) acres or less, all trees used in the SDU calculation shall be individually 
inventoried.   For all sites over three (3) acres industry standard sampling methods may be used to prepare 
a tree survey  when trees are of such density to make individual tree identification impractical.  In such 
cases the tree surveyor shall show tree stands and provide estimates of size and species on the Tree 
Protection Plan. 
 


(a) Site Density Requirements. The required tree density for each non-residential site is referred to 
as the Site Density Unit (SDU).  Each property subject to this article shall have a minimum 
required SDU based on total number of disturbed acres on the project site. 
 
(i) The total SDU required equals Existing Density Units (EDU) plus Replacement Density 


Units (RDU). 
 
(ii) Property subject to this Article that is greater than or equal to three (3) acres shall have or 


exceed an average SDU of 100 TDU’s per acre. 
 
(iii) Property subject to this Article that is less than three (3) acres shall have or exceed an 


average SDU of fifty (50) TDU’s per acre. 
 


(iv) Credit will be given to trees retained on a property having a DBH of four (4) inches or 
more. 


 
(v) At least 50 percent of the EDU’s per acre must be located outside of any zoning or 


watershed protection buffers as referenced in Articles V and VII. 
 


(vi) Palm trees are not acceptable for SDU credit. 
 


(b) Specimen Trees. 
 
(i) Criteria for determination of specimen trees or stands are as follows: 
  


1) Any deciduous canopy tree whose DBH equals or exceeds twenty-four (24) inches. 
   


2) Any evergreen canopy tree whose DBH equals or exceeds thirty (30) inches. 
 


3) Any understory tree whose DBH equals or exceeds ten (10) inches. 
 


4) Any tree which has significant historical value and can be documented through 
historical records or otherwise. (Ord. No. 2000-02) 


 
(ii) Removal.  Any specimen tree removed without prior approval of the Stormwater 


Management Department will be replaced by trees equaling two (2) times an inch-for-
inch replacement of the tree removed.  Size alone will determine whether a tree was of 
specimen quality if the tree is removed without approval and there is no evidence of its 







condition.  Such action may result in a stop work order issued by the Stormwater 
Management Department. 


  
 Written justification must be given for any specimen tree designated for removal.  The 


Fayette County Stormwater Management Department may require additional information 
including, but not limited to, a certified arborist’s appraisal of the tree’s viability and 
anticipated life span. 


 
 Any specimen tree may be removed if it is shown that at least one of the following 


conditions is met: 
 


1) The location of the tree prevents the opening of reasonable and necessary vehicular 
traffic lanes. 


 
2) The location of the tree prevents the construction of utility lines or drainage facilities 


which may not feasibly be relocated. 
 


3) The location of the tree prevents reasonable access to the property, if no alternate 
exists.  


 
4) The tree is diseased, dead, or dying to the point that repair or restoration is not 


practical or the disease may be transmitted to other trees.   
 


5) There is no reasonable assurance that if the tree is saved with proper construction 
precautions, it will continue to live as an asset to the site. 


 
(iii)  Preservation.  All reasonable efforts should be made to preserve specimen trees and 


incorporate them into the design of the project.  Specimen trees saved by a specifically 
designed feature of the building, hardscape, or utilities shall be given EDU credit of two 
(2) inches per inch DBH. 


(c) Replacement Tree Requirements. 


All trees selected for replacement density units must meet the following requirements: 


(i)      Trees must be free of disease, injury, or infestation, and must be ecologically compatible 
with the specifically intended growing area (see Section 8-184), and planted in 
accordance with standards established by the International Society of Arboriculture. 


(ii) At a minimum, four (4) species mixture of different trees, with at least three (3) being 
deciduous hardwoods should be utilized. (Ord. No. 2000-02).  


(iii) No more than thirty (30) percent of replacement trees may be of a single species.   


(iv) A fifty percent mix of overstory and understory trees shall be maintained.  See Sec, 8-
184. (Ord. No. 2000-02) 


(v)   Trees shall have a minimum caliper requirement of two and one half (2½) inches in 
diameter as measured at six (6) inches above the ground at time of planting.  







(vi)   All trees planted to fulfill the replacement tree requirements shall be in place before a 
Certificate of Occupancy is granted.  In the event that the requirements of this Article 
cannot be met at the time a Certificate of Occupancy is otherwise granted, refer to 
“Buffer and Landscape Areas,” Section 8-162 Performance Surety, in these Development 
Regulations.  (Ord. No. 2000-02) 


(vii)   All tree planted under the requirements of this Article which do not survive for 24 
months after issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy will be replaced as a condition of 
occupancy.  Trees shall be bonded via a maintenance agreement in the amount of (100%) 
of their replacement cost.  Bonds will be released after the 24 month period has passed, 
and the health of the trees have been certified and accepted by the County.  Refer to 
“Buffer and Landscape Areas,” Section 8-163 General Maintenance, in these 
Development Regulations. (Ord. No. 2000-02) 


(viii) See Section 8-160.d.2 and Section 8-161 for suggested tree species.  For additional tree 
species, especially understory (small) trees, see University of Georgia Cooperative 
Extension Service Bulletin No. 625 Landscape Plants for Georgia.   


(d) Tree Protection Requirements.   


(i) A tree protection area shall be maintained around all trees and stands of trees to be 
retained throughout the duration of construction by tree protection fencing.  


 
(ii)   The tree protection area of stand-alone trees and stands of trees shall be marked with 


standard tree protection fencing (orange), chain-link fencing, stakes, and/or continuous 
engineering tape and “Tree Protection Area” signs.  At least two (2) “Tree Protection 
Area” signs shall be posted at each individual tree protection area. (Ord. No 2000-02) 


 
(iii) All tree protection fencing shall be inspected for proper installation by the Stormwater 


Management Department during the initial erosion and sediment control inspection.   
 
(iv) During subdivision street construction, land disturbance allowed by a development 


permit shall be limited to areas needed for street right-of-way, drainage easements, 
erosion and sediment control practices and utilities.  All other areas shall remain 
undisturbed for tree protection purposes. 


 
(v) If utilities must run through the tree protection area and the running of those utilities will 


encroach into the critical root zone CRZ of any trees to be saved, the utility must be 
tunneled at a depth of 24 inches.  When feasible, utilities will run along streets, roadways, 
driveways, or sidewalks.  Reasonable efforts shall be made to save as many trees as 
possible.  (Ord. NO. 2000-02) 


 
(vi) If it is determined that irreparable damage has occurred to a tree or trees within a 


designated tree protection area, as determined by the Fayette County Stormwater 
Management Department, the Georgia Forestry Commission, or a Certified Arborist, it 
shall be the responsibility of the developer/builder to remove and replace the tree or trees 
and guarantee survival after the issuance of the Certificate of Occupancy as references in 
Section 8-179.c.vii and Article V. (Ord. No. 2000-02) 


 


(e) Tree Protection Plan.  
 







(i) Procedures. 
 


1) The TPP shall be submitted with the Preliminary Plat, Erosion, Sedimentation and 
Pollution Control Plan or the Site Plan, whichever is the first submittal required by 
Fayette County Planning and Zoning Department. 


 
2) The Tree Protection Plan shall be prepared by either a licensed Landscape Architect 


or Forester; Certified Arborist, or other licensed professional of similar design 
discipline licensed in Georgia. 


 
3) The Stormwater Management Department shall have a maximum of 14 calendar days 


from the submittal date, or each re-submittal date, for plan review.  If the plan is not 
approved a deficiency checklist will be submitted back to the applicant.  


 
(ii) Submittal. 
  
 The Tree Protection Plan shall be submitted on a scale of no less than one(1) inch to 100 


feet and shall include project name, design professional’s name and contact information, 
north arrow, graphic scale, and date.  The plan should clearly show and label the 
following: 


 
1) Tree save areas noting the location, size, DBH, dripline, CRZ, and species name 


(common name) of each tree that will be retained to fulfill the SDU requirements.  
Five or more trees whose dripline and CRZ combine into one tree protection area 
may be outlined as a group with the exception of specimen trees. 


 
2) Summary table listing the DBH and species name of each RDU and EDU tree used to 


obtain the required SDU under “Notes.” 


 
3) If a group of trees is outlined on the plan as a tree save area, include a summary table 


listing the size, DBH and species name of each tree within that group under “Notes.” 


 
4) Location of all new replacement trees including species name and DBH that fulfill 


RDU requirements. 


 
5) Location of any specimen tree designated in a tree protection area including the 


DBH, CRZ and species name even if contained in a group.  If construction is limited 
to streets, drainage easements and utilities the TPP only needs to show all specimen 
trees located within 100 feet of the centerline of any right-of-way, or drainage/utility 
easements. (Ord. No. 2000-02) 


 
6) Location of any specimen trees designated for removal during construction including 


the size, DBH and species name.  See Sec. 8-181. 


 
7) Location, depth and height of all existing and proposed utility lines. 


 
8) Boundaries of property, buffer and landscaped areas, buildings and structures, vehicle 


use areas, and other impervious areas. (Ord. No. 2000-02) 


 







9) Calculations for meeting all required site density units under “Notes.”  If a scientific 
method is used to determine the site density units, label all sample areas and provide 
estimates of trees by size and species as based on sampling method requirements. 


 
10) Under “Notes” state the following:  “No land disturbance, construction processes, or 


storage of equipment or materials shall take place within a designated tree protection 
area in order to prevent direct physical root damage that occurs during site clearing 
and grading and can cause transport or feeder roots to be cut, torn, or removed;  
indirect root damage caused from grade changes; and trunk and crown damage 
caused by direct contact with land clearing machinery or galling of adjacent trees.”  
(Ord. No. 2000-02) 


 
 


Sec. 8-180.  Appeals and Variances 


 


The following variance and appeals procedures shall apply to an applicant who has been denied a permit 
for a development activity or to an owner or developer who has not applied for a permit because it is clear 
that the proposed development activity would be inconsistent with the provisions of this ordinance. 
 


(a) Requests for variances shall only be given for a reduction in the Critical Root Zone (CRZ).  
 


(b) Requests for a variance from the CRZ requirements of this ordinance shall be submitted to the 
Stormwater Management Department.  All such requests shall be heard and decided in 
accordance with procedures to be published in writing by the Stormwater Management 
Department.   
 


(c) Any person adversely affected by any decision of the Stormwater Management Department shall 
have the right to appeal such decision to the Fayette County Zoning Board of Appeals as 
established by Fayette County in accordance with Article IX of the Fayette County Zoning 
Ordinance.  At a minimum, such procedures shall include notice to all affected parties and the 
opportunity to be heard. 
 


(d) Any person aggrieved by the decision of the Fayette County Zoning Board of Appeals may 
appeal such decision to the Fayette County State Court, as provided in Section 5-4-1 of the 
Official Code of Georgia Annotated. 
 


(e) In reviewing such requests, the Stormwater Management Department and Fayette County Zoning 
Board of Appeals shall consider all technical evaluations, relevant factors, and all standards 
specified in this and other sections of this ordinance.  
 
 


(f) Variances shall only be considered based on the follow criteria: 
 


(i) Disturbance of the CRZ of less than 30%; 
(ii) A reduction in the CRZ based on industry standards less stringent than outlined in this 


ordinance.  
 


(g) Conditions for Variances:  
 


(i) A variance shall be issued only when all of the following conditions are met:  
 







1) a finding of good and sufficient cause; and  
 
2) a determination that failure to grant the variance would result in exceptional hardship.  


 
(ii) Any person to whom a variance is granted shall be given written notice specifying the 


difference between the current CRZ(s) requirements and the CRZ(s) requested in the 
variance. 


 
(iii) The Fayette County Stormwater Management Department shall maintain the records of all 


appeal actions. 
  
(iv) Any person requesting a variance shall, from the time of the request until the time the 


request is acted upon, submit such information and documentation as Fayette County 
Stormwater Management Department and Fayette County Zoning Board of Appeals shall 
deem necessary to the consideration of the request including, but not limited to, a certified 
arborist’s appraisal of the tree’s viability and anticipated life span. 


 
(v) Upon consideration of the factors listed above and the purposes of this Ordinance, Fayette County 


Stormwater Management Department and the Fayette County Zoning Board of Appeals may 
attach such conditions to the granting of variances as they deem necessary or appropriate, 
consistent with the purposes of this Ordinance.  


 
1) Variances shall not be issued “after the fact.” 


 
2) At a minimum, a variance request shall include the following information: 


 
3) A site map that includes locations of all streams, wetlands, floodplain boundaries and 


other natural features, as determined by field survey; 
4)  
5) A description of the shape, size, topography, slope, soils, vegetation and other 


physical characteristics of the property; 
 
6) A detailed site plan that shows the locations of all existing and proposed structures 


and other impervious cover, the limits of all existing and proposed land disturbance, 
both inside and outside CRZ.  The exact area of the CRZ to be affected shall be 
accurately and clearly indicated; 


 
7) Documentation of unusual hardship should the CRZ be maintained; 


 
8) At least one alternative plan, which does not include CRZ disturbance or reduction, 


or an explanation of why such a site plan is not possible; 
 


9) A calculation of the total area and length of the proposed intrusion; 
 


10) Proposed mitigation, for the intrusion.  If mitigation is not proposed, the request must 
explain why. 


 
(vi) The following factors may considered in determining whether to issue a variance: 


 
1) The shape, size, topography, slope, soils, vegetation and other physical characteristics 


of the property; 







 
2) The location and extent of the proposed CRZ intrusion; and, 


 
3) Whether alternative designs are possible which require less intrusion or no intrusion; 


 
4) The long-term impacts of the proposed variance; and, 


 


5) Whether issuance of the variance is at least as protective of natural resources and the 
environment. 


  
 
Any applicant who is aggrieved by any decision of the Fayette County Stormwater Management 
Department relating to the application of this ordinance shall have the right to appeal as provided under 
Article IX of the Fayette County Zoning Ordinance.  


 


Sec. 8-181. Violations, Enforcement and Penalties. 


 


Any action or inaction which violates the provisions of this ordinance or the requirements of an approved 
stormwater management application may be subject to the enforcement actions outlines in this Section.  
Any such action or inaction, which is continuous with respect to time, is deemed to be a public nuisance 
and may be abated by injunctive or other equitable relief.  The imposition of any of the penalties 
described below shall not prevent such equitable relief. 
 


(h) Notice-of-Violation.  If the Stormwater Management Department determines that an applicant or 
other responsible person has failed to comply with the terms and conditions of a permit, an 
approved Stormwater Management Plan or the provisions of this ordinance, it shall issue a 
written notice of violation to such applicant or other responsible person.  Where a person is 
engaged in activity covered by this ordinance without having first secured a permit, the notice of 
violation shall be served on the owner of the responsible person in charge of the activity being 
conducted on the site.  
 
The notice-of-violation shall contain: 


 
(iii) The name and address of the owner or the applicant or the responsible person; 
 
(iv) The address or description of the site upon which the violation is occurring; 


 
(v) A statement specifying the nature of the violation; 


 
(vi) A description of the remedial measures necessary to bring the action or inaction into 


compliance with the permit, the Stormwater Management Action Plan or this ordinance 
and the date for the completion of such remedial action; and, 


 
(vii) A statement of the penalty or penalties that may be assessed against the person to whom 


the notice of violation is directed. 
 


(i) Penalties. In the event the remedial measures described in the notice of violation have not been 
completed by the date set forth for such completion in the notice of violation, any one or more of 
the following actions or penalties may be taken or assessed against the person to whom the notice 
of violation was directed.  Before taking any of the following actions or imposing any of the 
following penalties, the Stormwater Management Department shall first notify the applicant or 







other responsible person in writing of its intended action, and shall provide a reasonable 
opportunity, of not less than ten (10) days (except, that in the event the violation constitutes an 
immediate danger to public health or public safety, 24-hours notice shall be sufficient) to cure 
such violation.  In the event the applicant or other responsible person fails to cure such violation 
after such notice and cure period, the Stormwater Management Department may take one or more 
of the following action or impose any one or more of the following penalties:  


 


(i) Stop Work Order.  The Stormwater Management Department may issue a stop work order 
that shall be served on the applicant or other responsible person.  The stop work order 
shall remain in effect until the applicant other responsible person has taken the remedial 
measures set forth in the notice of violation or has otherwise cured the violation or 
violations described therein, provided the stop work order may be withdrawn or modified 
to enable the applicant or other responsible person to take the necessary remedial measures 
to cure such violation or violations. 
 


(ii) Withhold Certificate-of-Occupancy.  The Stormwater Management Department may 
recommend that the Fayette County Permits and Inspection Department refuse to issue a 
certificate of occupancy for the building other improvements constructed or being 
constructed on the site until the applicant or other responsible person has taken the 
remedial measures set forth in the notice of violation or has otherwise cured the violations 
described therein. 


 
(iii) Suspension, Revocation or Modification of Permit.  The Stormwater Management 


Department may suspend, revoke or modify the permit authorizing the land-development 
project.  A suspended, revoked or modified permit may be reinstated after the applicant or 
other responsible person has taken the remedial measures set forth in the notice-of-
violation(s) or has otherwise cured the violations described therein, provided such permit 
may be reinstated (upon such conditions as the Stormwater Management Department may 
deem necessary) to enable the applicant or other responsible person to take the necessary 
remedial measures to cure such violations. 


 
(j) Citations.   For intentional and flagrant violations of this ordinance, or in the event the applicant 


or other responsible person fails to take the remedial measures set forth in previously issued 
notice-of-violations(s) or otherwise fails to cure the violations within ten days, the Stormwater 
Management Department may issue a citation to the applicant or other responsible person, 
requiring such person to appear in State Court of Fayette County to answer charges of such 
violation.  Upon conviction, such person shall be punished by a fine not to exceed $1,000 or 
imprisonment for 60 days or both.  Each act of violation and each day upon which any violation 
shall occur shall constitute a separate offense.   


 
Section 2. That the preamble of this Ordinance shall be considered to be and is hereby incorporated by 
reference as if fully set out herein. 
 
Section 3. a. It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Board of Commissioners that all Sections, 
paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this Article are and were, upon their enactment, believed by 
the Board of Commissioners to be fully valid, enforceable and constitutional. 
 
b. It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Board of Commissioners that, to the greatest extent 
allowed by law, each and every section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is 
severable from every other section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance. It is hereby 
further declared to be the intention of the Board of Commissioners that, to the greatest extent allowed by 







law, no Section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Article is mutually dependent upon any 
other Section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Article. 
 
c. In the event that any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this Article shall, for any reason 
whatsoever, be declared invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable by the valid judgment or 
decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, it is the express intent of the Board of Commissioners that 
such invalidity, unconstitutionality or unenforceability shall, to the greatest extent allowed by law, not 
render invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable any of the remaining phrases, clauses, 
sentences, paragraphs or Sections of the Article and that, to the greatest extent allowed by law, all 
remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and Sections of the Article shall remain valid, 
constitutional, enforceable, and of full force and effect. 
 
Section 4.  All ordinances or resolutions and parts of ordinances or resolutions in conflict herewith are 
hereby expressly repealed. 
 
Section 5.  The effective date of this Ordinance shall be the date of adoption unless otherwise specified 
herein. 
 


IT IS SO ORDAINED THIS 13th DAY OF December, 2012. 
 
  


BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 


FAYETTE COUNTY, GEORGIA 
 
 
 
 ________________________________________ 
                                  Herbert E. Frady, Chairman 


 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
    Floyd Jones, County Clerk 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 


 





		Stormwater- Ordinance 2012-12 Agenda Request File

		Stormwater- Ordinance 2012-12 Backup

		Stormwater- Article VI Backup-1

		Stormwater- Article VI Backup-2








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Fire and Emergency Services M. Allen McCullough


Approval of staff's recommendation to allow W.W. Williams to complete the repair of a generator at Fire Station #5, in an amount not to 


exceed $17,821.07, to pay an additional invoice to Pro Power Solutions in the amount of $869.50 for service calls already completed for 


repair work, and approval of a Fiscal Year 2013 budget amendment of $18,691.00 to cover this repair cost.


On October 3, 2012, an alarm was recognized on the station panel indicating trouble with the backup power station generator at Fire 


Station #5.  Fleet Maintenance was called to evaluate and schedule needed repairs.   


 


Pro Power Solution was called to diagnose and repair the unit.  They identified a bad circuit board and had to order it since one was not 


readily available.  After the bad circuit board was received and installed, the generator still failed. It was later discovered that burnt wires 


were leading to the alternator "rotor".  The technician indicated that the rotor appeared to have either a dead short or that the unit took a 


lightening strike.  Pro Power initially provided a written quote to replace the rotor assembly, but then indicated that the work could be 


more extensive and costly.   


 


Pro Power and four other vendors then provided responses and amounts to repair the generator  The responses and amounts are based 


on a worst case scenario, although the actual expenditures may be significantly lower than the amounts provided.  Staff requests utilizing 


W.W. Williams to repair the generator in an amount to exceed $17,821.07, while, in addition, to pay Pro Power Solution for the work they 


have already performed in the amount of $869.50.  The potential aggregate cost for this request is $18,690.57.


Approval of staff's recommendation to authorize W.W. Williams to complete the repair of a generator at Fire Station #5, in an amount not 


to exceed $17,821.07, to pay an additional invoice to Pro Power Solutions in the amount of $869.50 for service calls already completed 


for repair work, and approval of Fiscal Year 2013 budget amendments to increase operating equipment services for $14,018 in Fire 


(75%) and $4,673 in EMS (25%) with funding provided from the unreserved undesignated Fund Balances. 


FY2013 budget amendments are necessary to increase operating equipment services for $14,018 in Fire (75%) and $4,673 in EMS 


(25%) with funding provided from the unreserved undesignated Fund Balances. 


No


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable Yes


The total EMS fund balance at 6/30/2012 is $2,041,210 of which $991,175 is unreserved undesignated.  


The total Fire fund balance at 6/30/2012 is $2,663,651 of which $658,195 is unreserved undesignated. 


ConsentThursday, December 13, 2012









		Fire and EMS- Station 5 Agenda Request File

		Fire and EMS- Station 5 Generator Backup






COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Health Department Rick Fehr or Jeff Kilgore


Approval of the Board of Health's recommendation to approve proposed body art fees.


The State of Georgia requires Boards of Health to approve body art regulations.  On October 9, 2012, the Fayette County Board of 


Health adopted body art regulations, and those regulations included body art fees. 


 


By Georgia State Law, environmental health fees require the governing authority to approve proposed fees. 


 


A copy of the fee schedule and regulations are attached as backup. 


 


This item was discussed by the Board of Commissioners at the December 5 Workshop meeting and the Board directed it be placed on 


the December 13 Agenda for formal consideration.


Approval of the Board of Health's recommendation to approve proposed body art fees.


Not Applicable.


Yes Wednesday, December 5, 2012


No


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


ConsentThursday, December 13, 2012

































































































































		Health Department- Body Art Agenda Request File

		Health Department- Body Art Backup

		Health Department- Body Art Agenda Request File

		Health Department- Body Art Backup












COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Tax Assessors Joel T. Benton


Approval of the disposition of tax refunds as recommended by the Tax Assessor's Office.


When a taxpayer feels that an error has occurred with respect to taxes paid to Fayette County on Real Estate and Personal Property tax 


bills, they have a right to request a refund under O.C.G.A Sec. 48-5-380.  This request is given to the Tax Assessor's Office in order to be 


reviewed in detail, and the appropriate recommendation(s) are then forwarded to the Board of Commissioners for their final approval of 


said requests.


Approval of the disposition of tax refunds as recommended by the Tax Assessor's Office.


The funding required will be for those refund requests where the overpayment of taxes (voluntarily or involuntarily) was a direct result of 


property that had been previously and erroneously assessed and taxed and have already been collected from the taxpayer(s).


No


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable Yes


ConsentThursday, December 13, 2012





		Tax Assessor- Tax Refund Agenda Request File

		Tax Assessor- Tax Refund Backup

		Pending












MinutesMinutesMinutesMinutes
Board of Commissioners


November 7, 2012
 3:30 P.M.


Notice: A complete audio recording of this meeting can be heard by accessing Fayette
County’s Website at www.fayettecountyga.gov.  Click on “Board of Commissioners”, then
“County Commission Meetings”, and follow the instructions.  The entire meeting or a single
topic can be heard.


                       
The Board of Commissioners of Fayette County, Georgia, met in Official Session on November 7, 2012 at 3:30 p.m. in
the Public Meeting Room of the Fayette County Administrative Complex, 140 Stonewall Avenue, Fayetteville, Georgia.


Commissioners Present: Herb Frady, Chairman
Robert Horgan, Vice Chairman
Steve Brown
Lee Hearn
Allen McCarty


Staff Present: Jack Krakeel, County Administrator
Scott Bennett, County Attorney
Floyd Jones, County Clerk


______________________________________________________________________________________


Call to Order.


Chairman Frady called November 7, 2012 Board of Commissioners Workshop meeting to order at 3:31 p.m.


Acceptance of Agenda.


Commissioner Brown moved to accept the Agenda as published.  Commissioner Horgan seconded the motion.  No
discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.


OLD BUSINESS:


1. Appointment of members to the Ethics Board.


County Attorney Scott Bennett informed the Board that the last time the Board selected a committee, Jack
Smith was the Chairman of the Board.  He said at that time there was a process where the Board would
nominate people for each post, and then staff would pass out sheets of paper for each Commissioner to circle
whom they wanted to serve in each position.  Chairman Frady suggested that each Commissioner should pick
a name and what post the person should serve in, and whoever gets the most votes wins.  Discussion followed
on how to best nominate and vote on appointments to the various posts on the Ethics Board.  Commissioner
Brown said he appreciated Mayor Langford’s willingness to serve on the Ethics Board, but he suggested that







Minutes
November 7, 2012
Page Number 2


there probably should not be an elected official on the Ethics Board since it would essentially have people
engaged in the County’s politics engaged on the Ethics Board.  He said that the mayor’s appointment would
not be kosher for what was being done with the Ethics Board.  He said any of the other candidates would be
fine, but he was not sure the County wanted someone who is engaged in local county politics and in a political
position on the Ethics Board.  County Attorney Scott Bennett replied that there is nothing illegal about having
the mayor on the Ethics Board, so it would essentially be a policy matter for the Board, and that he did not have
an opinion about the issue since the Board could pick whomever it wanted.  Chairman Frady said he did not
have a problem with the mayor since he knew the mayor to be an honest person who would do what he thought
was right.    


Three-Year Appointment to the Ethics Board:  Commissioner Hearn nominated Mr. Dan Langford to serve
for three years on the Ethics Board.  Commissioner Brown nominated Ms. Larris Marks to the three-year post
on the Ethics Board.  No other nominations were submitted and Chairman Frady called for a vote on the
nominations.  The nomination to appoint Mr. Dan Langford to serve for three years on the Ethics Board passed
3-2 with Commissioners Brown and McCarty voting in opposition.  Ms. Marks’ nomination failed by default.


Two-Year Appointment to the Ethics Board: Commissioner Hearn nominated Ms. Sheila Huddleston to serve
for two years on the Ethics Board.  Commissioner Brown nominated Ms. Pota Coston to the two-year post on
the Ethics Board.  No other nominations were submitted and Chairman Frady called for a vote on
the nominations.  The nomination to appoint Ms. Sheila Huddleston to serve for two years on the Ethics Board
passed 3-2 with Commissioners Brown and McCarty voting in opposition.  Ms. Coston’s nomination failed by
default.


One-Year Appointment to the Ethics Board: Commissioner Hearn nominated Mr. Scott Rowland to serve
for one year on the Ethics Board.  Commissioner Brown nominated Ms. Larris Marks to the one-year post on
the Ethics Board.  No other nominations were submitted and Chairman Frady called for a vote on the
nominations.  The nomination to appoint Mr. Scott Rowland to serve for one year on Ethics Board passed 3-2
with Commissioners Brown and McCarty voting in opposition.  Ms. Marks’ nomination failed by default.


Three-Year Alternate Appointment to the Ethics Board: Commissioner Hearn nominated Ms. Larris Marks
to serve as an alternate member on the Ethics Board with said appointment to run concurrent with the three-
year appointment.  No other nominations were submitted and Chairman Frady called for a vote on the
nomination.  The nomination to appoint Ms. Larris Marks as the three-year alternate member to the Ethics
Board passed unanimously.


Two-Year Alternate Appointment to the Ethics Board: Commissioner Brown nominated Ms. Pota E. Coston
to serve as an alternate member on the Ethics Board with said appointment to run concurrent with the two-year
appointment. No other nominations were submitted and Chairman Frady called for a vote on the nomination.
The nomination to appoint Ms. Pota E. Coston as the two-year alternate member to the Ethics Board passed
unanimously.


The Board directed the County Marshal to conduct background checks on each of the appointees and to report
any problems discovered with the appointees to the Board.  The Board further directed that County Clerk Floyd
Jones should arrange a meeting of the Ethics Board by November 9, 2012, and should distribute the Ethics
complaint to the Ethics Board once the background checks are complete.  It was noted that the Ethics Board
would have to meet by November 9, 2012 for an organizational meeting, to determine its next steps, and to
actually receive the Ethics complaint.  He explained that Ethics complaints come to the County Clerk, and the
Clerk will then distribute the Ethics complaints to the members for scheduling and to take action.  A copy of the
request, identified as “Attachment 1", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.







Minutes
November 7, 2012
Page Number 3


2. Discussion of proposed amendments to Fayette County Code, Chapter 8, Development Regulations,
Article VI, Tree Retention, Protection and Replacement.


Stormwater Management Director Vanessa Birrell stated that the proposed amendments were housekeeping
items.  She continued that the Board approved the Ordinance last March, however, staff needed to add a more
detailed variance section to the ordinance after it ran into a couple of items where it needed more details on
the variance process.  She said the proposed amendments are in accordance with other development
regulations.  Commissioner Brown said he had no problems with the proposed amendments.  Chairman Frady
agreed.  Ms. Birrell stated she would place the proposed amendments on the next Consent Agenda for a formal
vote.


The Board directed that the proposed amendments be placed on the November 15, 2012 Consent Agenda for
a vote.  The Board took no formal action with this request.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 2",
follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


NEW BUSINESS:


1. Mrs. Elizabeth Whitlock requests the Board’s consideration to amend Fayette County’s Zoning
Ordinance as it relates to pet grooming in the O-I (Office-Institutional) Zoning District.


Zoning Director Dennis Dutton briefly explained that Ms. Elizabeth  Whitlock called him a few weeks ago saying
she had a potential tenant for a building she owns at the intersection of Georgia Highway 54 and Sumner Road.
He said she asked if pet grooming would be allowed at the location since it was zoned O-I.  He then asked Ms.
Whitlock to explain her case.


Ms. Whitlock passed photographs of the location in question to each of the Board members and to the County
Clerk, and she said her request to allow pet grooming into O-I zoned properties was reasonable and
appropriate since the area is already approved for veterinarians.  Ms. Whitlock said Ms. Theresa Franks had
accompanied her to the meeting that Ms. Franks has operated a successful pet grooming business in
Peachtree City in one location for the last eight years.  She said in Peachtree City, pet salons and dog
groomers and similar operations are approved for O-I zoning.   She said she was recently approached by two
other businesses which have far more traffic and will have much more of a presence in that location than the
groomers will.  She felt that the pet salon is in keeping with the spirit of the ordinance that protects the corridor.
She said the business would be quiet that there would not be a lot of traffic, and that the pictures also show the
interior of Ms. Frank’s current operation.  She stated that nonetheless, she would rather lease to the pet
groomers based on what she knows about their business.  She asked the Board to consider adding pet salons
to the approved businesses along the corridor.


Commissioner Brown asked what current zoning allows for pet grooming at this time.  Mr. Dutton replied that
Fayette County does not have pet grooming specified, but that they have been allowed into retail
establishments.  Commissioner Brown clarified if the pet grooming business wanted to move into the Publix
Shopping Center then they could move in per the ordinance.  Mr. Dutton replied that they would be able to
move into the Publix Shopping Center.  


Chairman Frady asked Mr. Dutton if he had any comments or suggestions on the request.  Mr. Dutton replied
that he did not have any comments other than if the Board decided to allow for pet grooming in O-I then there
would have to be a change to the Zoning Ordinance.  







Minutes
November 7, 2012
Page Number 4


Commissioner Hearn noted that if veterinary clinics could be allowed in the zoning district then pet grooming
businesses could too since they have similarities.  He said he was not a veterinary expert, but he did not have
a problem with going forward to include pet grooming in O-I since it made good sense.  Chairman Frady agreed
with Commissioner Hearn.  Commissioner Horgan added that while growing up in Fayette County his parents
had two pet shops, and he agreed that allowing pet grooming in O-I was not a nuisance.  He said the pet
groomers are not boarding dogs since usually people pick their pets up that afternoon.  He thought there was
no problem at all.


Commissioner Brown noted that veterinary clinics are allowed under certain conditions, and he asked what the
downside would be to changing the ordinance, before suggesting that if the whole ordinance was changed then
the County might have a business park with really nice offices for white collar jobs with the possibility of a pet
grooming facility in the middle of all that.  He asked how that would work with the uses and what would the
downside be to amending the ordinance to allow for pet grooming services.  Mr. Dutton replied that the
downside would be if you open up an O-I for too much development, then the intention was to have either an
office-institutional such as medical, office uses, anything of a low-impact, basically as a transitional zone next
to residential areas.  He said that in this area, the County actually has C-C and C-H zoning districts on the same
side of the street.  He said the answer depends on whether the Board wants to look at institutional uses as a
service industry, and how does it indicate if it wants animals.  Mr. Dutton said he did not know if he had a total
objection to that, but in some places it could affect the character of the County since it could affect retail
business.  He said he has seen pet grooming in other zoning districts where it is allowed.


Commissioner Brown said that with that facility under consideration, since it is a stand-alone unit, there would
probably be no problems, but he questioned if it were an office park under discussion if pet grooming could
be allowed in that office park.  He said the reason he asked that question was because in Peachtree City, the
county had aircraft hangars near the airport that would be used for aviation, but there was a gymnastics studio
in one aircraft hangar and other uses in other hangars.  He said it killed the businesses and the momentum it
was carrying.  He asked how that would be dealt with.  Mr. Dutton replied that the answer really depended on
how tight of a line the Board wanted to make the Zoning Ordinance.  He said one issue the County is already
facing in the O-I zoning district are dance studios since they involve heavy traffic.  He said it was hard for him
to say certain uses cannot be allowed since some uses have already been allowed under conditional uses.
He said other uses would also have to be considered for inclusion to the O-I such as nail salons and other uses.


The Board agreed to send the issue forward for further consideration.  


Commissioner Brown noted that the County allows the beauty salons if they are in office parks with more than
100,000 square feet.  He asked if a precedent would be set if it allowed for a pet groomer in a smaller building.
Commissioner Hearn replied that he did not believe the Board could come up with rules that work with
everything, and he felt that the County should use good common sense and when it comes up it is dealt with.
Commissioner Brown asked County Attorney Bennett at which point is the code being nullified once a number
of exceptions are made.  Mr. Bennett replied that he was not sure about the nullification, but it was really a
judgment call on what the Board would allow, and if it is compatible.  He said the purpose of zoning is to get
compatible businesses together.  He continued that the County has a zoning classification that allows it, and
that there are other properties nearby that are C-C around there.  He said that it seemed to him that the Board
was considering changing a bunch of properties in the County to accommodate one piece of property in the
County, and he asked if that was the way the Board wanted to effectuate its zoning ordinance.  He said if the
County is going to change the zoning ordinance to allow the type of business in an O-I, then the Board will have
to look at every property zoned O-I and the impact of those businesses.  He suggested that maintaining the
Zoning Ordinance’s integrity would require a lot of research and study as well as consideration on how the
county ended up with the zoning ordinance that it has in each district.  Commissioner Hearn repeated that the







Minutes
November 7, 2012
Page Number 5


county is already allowing veterinary clinics in O-I and he scoffed at the idea that a pet groomer would have
more of an impact on an office park than a veterinary clinic.  He said the grooming facility would probably have
healthy dogs and a veterinary clinic would likely have some dogs that are not so healthy.  


Chairman Frady pointed out that four of the Commissioners had decided to send the issue forward.


County Attorney Bennett suggested that as part of moving the issue forward is to have staff prepare an
analytical report with recommendations on what it considers is best for the zoning ordinance, but added the
study would take time.  He said the expedient and the short-path to the issue would be to rezone the property,
but the long term path may be to look at the issue as a change.  He said he just did not know how fast staff
would be prepared with a recommendation that is going to having bearing on properties throughout Fayette
County.  He said if the Board considered making amendments to the zoning ordinance based on one case
study or one piece of property then it might as well allow everything into every district since there will be
exceptions everywhere.  He said it is part of smart zoning ordinances that staff is allowed to conduct a
thorough review of the county, to not make a recommendation on a single parcel,  but to make
recommendations on the county’s structure as a whole. 


Commissioner Horgan asked if it made a difference if the building under consideration is a stand-alone building
whereas the other considerations involved office complexes.  He noted that veterinarians typically work in
stand-alone buildings and that he has never really found them to be in an office complex.  He suggested that
it makes sense for the pet grooming business to be in Ms. Whitlock’s building, and he agreed with
Commissioner Brown that an office complex with attorneys and doctors would not be conducive with a pet
grooming business.  Commissioner Brown agreed that reviewing stand-alone buildings versus attached
buildings or business parks should be considered.  Mr. Bennett replied that the way the zoning is structured
now is that there are certain allowances in general office uses, there are certain allowances in a big retail strip
center, and then there are conditional uses.  He said the County has already subdivided its O-I, and that it
would not likely be a far stretch to create a third category that lists stand-alone businesses, especially
businesses with a good amount of traffic.  


Ms. Whitlock stated that Ms. Franks was looking to lease the property, and that she did pet grooming in a
veterinarian office down the street in the same zoning, so the activity was going on.


The Board agreed to move forward with a study on the issue and to pay close attention to stand-alone buildings


The Board directed staff to provide an analytical report with recommendations on the impact of allowing pet
grooming in Fayette County’s Zoning Ordinance. The Board further directed that the reports take into
consideration the impact of allowing stand-alone buildings for pet grooming and similar-type businesses.  The
Board took no formal action with this request.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 3", follows these
minutes and is made an official part hereof.


2. Discussion of the Floodplain Management Program and recent Class 6 recertification through the
National Floodplain Insurance Program Customer Rating System.


Stormwater Management Director Vanessa Birrell informed the Board that during the last couple of months
Fayette County received its Class 6 recertification through the Community Rating System program.  She spoke
of its importance, and she shared information about the Floodplain Management Program and the Community
Rating System program.  She explained that the National Floodplain Insurance Program is supported by three







Minutes
November 7, 2012
Page Number 6


smaller programs, namely the Floodplain Management, Flood Insurance, and Hazard Identification programs,
and she briefly explained all three of the smaller programs.  Ms. Birrell then answered questions from the
Board. 


Commissioner Hearn noted that the whole purpose of the Floodplain Management program was to protect the
public, and that it was a good program since it keeps people out of major problems.  Ms. Birrell stressed that
Fayette County is way ahead of many other counties in this area because of its Watershed Protection
Ordinance which was required by the Environmental Protection Division when Lake Horton was designed.  She
stated that there are no repetitive losses in Fayette County unlike Gwinnett County and some of the other
larger, more developed counties in the Atlanta area since Fayette County does not allow development near
floodplains.


Commissioner Brown noted that Fayette County is rated “six” because it meets certain relevant criteria above
the federal minimum and he noted there are additional monetary savings at the rating of “five.”  He asked what
would it take to move from a rating of six to a rating of five, and he asked if it was a goal or if it was something
the federal government assigns.  Ms. Birrell replied that to achieve a five rating could be a goal, but it would
cost money.  She said the County is doing “the paper chase” in submitting the information and making it
available, and that Fayette County is not doing anything more than what is mandated to do by the state.  She
said many of the counties do not go through the process of making sure they are taking credit for all the credits
they can, and in 2008, Fayette County realized that it was not taking credit for processes that were already in
place.  She said this work does not cost Fayette County any money but it does create considerable savings.
She noted that the savings between a class seven rating to a class six rating is substantial, but it is only about
a $4,000 savings moving to a class five rating.  She noted that there is only one other community in the state
of Georgia with a rating of five, and that was the City of Griffin.  She said she did not consider it a goal to move
from a class six to a class five rating.  


  
The Board gave no direction and took no formal action with this request.  A copy of the request, identified as
“Attachment 3", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


3. Discussion of appointing two members to the Public Facilities Authority.


Interim County Administrator Jack Krakeel informed the Board of two vacancies to the Public Facilities
Authority, of the requirements that must be met by each appointee, and of the functions of the Public Facilities
Authority.  He explained that the only time the Public Facilities Authority will meet would be in an instance of
issuing bonds for the construction of some Public Facility.  He said unless there is a new structure or a new
initiative, he did not know that there would be a need for the Authority to meet, however, the County’s ordinance
requires the appointment of three members to sit on the Board.  He said there are state requirements with
respect to training for members of the Public Facilities Authority that have to be accomplished by the first year
of their appointment.  He said there are also reporting requirements to the state on an annual basis with respect
to these bodies, so the Board needed to make decisions regarding whom they want to appoint to the two
vacated terms.


The Board agreed to provide nominees for the Public Facilities Authority for the November 15, 2012 meeting.
The Board took no formal action with this request.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 4", follows
these minutes and is made an official part hereof.







Minutes
November 7, 2012
Page Number 7


4. Discussion of an appointment to the Region Six Mental Health Regional Planning Board.


Commissioner Horgan nominated Ms. Jackie Begg to fill the vacancy at the Region Six Mental Health Regional
Planning Board, but it was pointed out that Ms. Begg had already been appointed at a previous meeting.  The
Board then inquired about the person who called about the vacancy.  County Clerk Floyd Jones informed the
Board that Ms. Pam McKenzie Rumble contacted the county inquiring about the position, but that he did not
have any information about her.  


The Board agreed to provide nominees for the Region Six Mental Health Regional Planning Board for the
November 15, 2012 meeting.  The Board took no formal action with this request.  A copy of the request,
identified as “Attachment 5", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


5. Update on current SPLOST projects in Fayette County.


Public Works Director Phil Mallon updated the Board on current SPLOST projects in Fayette County, and he
answered questions from the Board.  The Board took no formal action with this request.  A copy of Mr. Mallon’s
Transportation SPLOST Update notes, identified as “Attachment 6", follows these minutes and is made an
official part hereof.


ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORTS:


There was no Administrator’s Report.


ATTORNEY’S REPORTS:


County Attorney Scott Bennett reported that litigation needed to be discussed in Executive Session.  No other Attorney’s
report was provided.


COMMISSIONERS REPORTS:


There were no Commissioners Reports.


EXECUTIVE SESSION:


Litigation: Commissioner Hearn moved to recess into Executive Session to discuss litigation.  Commissioner McCarty
seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.


The Board of Commissioners recessed into Executive Session at 4:38 p.m. and returned to Official Session at 4:59 p.m.


Executive Session Affidavit: Chairman Frady asked for the record to show that one legal item was discussed in
Executive Session and that the Board provided direction to the County Attorney.  Commissioner Hearn moved to
authorize the Chairman to sign an Executive Session Affidavit stating litigation had been discussed in Executive Session.
Commissioner Brown seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.  A copy of the
Executive Session Affidavit, identified as “Attachment 7", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.







Minutes
November 7, 2012
Page Number 8


ADJOURNMENT:


Commissioner Brown moved to adjourn the November 7, 2012 Workshop Meeting.  Commissioner McCarty seconded
the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.


The Board of Commissioners adjourned the November 7, 2012 Workshop Meeting at 5:00 p.m.


___________________________________                               __________________________________________
           Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk                        Herbert Frady, Chairman


The foregoing minutes were duly approved at an official meeting of the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County,
Georgia, held on the 13th day of December 2012.


___________________________________
         Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Library Chris Snell


Approval of staff's request to increase the Library's Fiscal Year 2013 Donations Revenue Budget Account and to increase the Library's 
Fiscal Year 2013 Subscriptions, Books, and Magazines Expenditure Account by $25.00 to recognize a donation from Ms. Susan Kay 
McWatters to the Fayette County Library.


Ms. Susan Kay McWatters has donated $25.00 to the Fayette County Public Library.  This donation is undesignated and is intended for 
the library's general use. 
 
The Library intends to purchase books and materials to enhance its collection. 
 
The Library requests the Board's approval to increase its Fiscal Year 2013 Donations Budget Account and its Subscriptions and Books 
Expenditure Budget by $25.00 to account for the donation.


Approval of staff's request to increase the Library's Fiscal Year 2013 Donations Revenue Budget Account and to increase the Library's 
Fiscal Year 2013 Subscriptions, Books, and Magazines Expenditure Account by $25.00 to recognize a donation from Ms. Susan Kay 
McWatters to the Fayette County Library.


Not Applicable.


No


No


Yes


No


Yes


Not Applicable Yes


ConsentThursday, December 13, 2012








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Tax Assessors Steven Johnson / Joel T. Benton


Mr. Steven Johnson has requested a hearing before the Board of Commissioners concerning a request for tax refunds.


Mr. Steven Johnson is stating that he paid taxes on Parcel #07-0609-007 for the years of 2010 and 2011, even though Heritage Bank 
actually held title to the property from December 1, 2009 through June 1, 2012.  He has requested a hearing before the Board to request 
tax refunds for those years. 
 
The refund amount requested for the year 2010 is $6, 994.33. 
 
The refund amount requested for the year 2011 is $5,490.86. 
 
The aggregate amount of tax refunds being requested is $12,485.19. 
 
If Mr. Johnson is unable to attend the meeting, his wife, Mrs. Donna Johnson will make the request on his behalf.


Conduct a public hearing to determine whether a refund should be granted.


The required amount of funding for this request will be determined by the Board's decision.  The aggregate refund amount requested by 
Mr. Johnson is $12,485.19.


No


No


Yes


No


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


There is a possibility that Mr. Johnson cannot attend the December 13 Board of Commissioners Meeting.  If he misses the meeting, his 
wife, Mrs. Donna Johnson, will present the request to the Board.


Public HearingThursday, December 13, 2012








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Water System Tony Parrott


Consideration of the Water Committee's recommendation to award the Flint River Pump Station Traveling Screen Installation bid to the 


low bidder, Lanier Contracting Company, in the amount of $325,271.00, and to authorize the Chairman to sign the contract and related 


documents contingent upon the County Attorney's review.


During the May 24, 2012 Board of Commissioners meeting, Water System Director Tony Parrott spoke to the Board about the need for a 


traveling screen to be installed at the Flint River Pump Station.  Essentially, the traveling screen works to prevent trash, debris and 


drudge from being pumped the Flint River to the Lake Horton Reservoir which could damage the pumps at the pump station.  The Board 


approved staff's recommendation to allow Mallett Consulting to prepare specifications and issue bids for the Flint River Pump Station at a 


cost of $19,750.00.  Mallett has provided information on five vendors who are able to install the traveling screen, however, only two of the 


vendors actually bid on the work.   


 


The Water Committee has unanimously recommended the awarding of the Flint River Pump Station Traveling Screen Installation bid to 


the low bidder, Lanier Contracting Company, at $325,271.00.


Approval of the Water Committee's recommendation to award the Flint River Pump Station Traveling Screen Installation bid to the low 


bidder, Lanier Contracting Company, in the amount of $325,271.00, and to authorize the Chairman to sign the contract and related 


documents contingent upon the County Attorney's review.


Funds for this request are available in the Water System's Renewal and Extension Fund.


No


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable Yes


Old BusinessThursday, December 13, 2012









		Water System- Flint River Tra...creen Agenda Request File

		Water System- Flint River Traveling Screen Backup






MinutesMinutesMinutesMinutes
Board of Commissioners
November 15, 2012


 7:00 P.M.


Notice: A complete audio recording of this meeting can be heard by accessing Fayette
County’s Website at www.fayettecountyga.gov.  Click on “Board of Commissioners”, then
“County Commission Meetings”, and follow the instructions.  The entire meeting or a single
topic can be heard.


                       
The Board of Commissioners of Fayette County, Georgia, met in Official Session on November 15, 2012 at 7:00 p.m.
in the Public Meeting Room of the Fayette County Administrative Complex, 140 Stonewall Avenue, Fayetteville, Georgia.


Commissioners Present: Herb Frady, Chairman
Robert Horgan, Vice Chairman
Steve Brown
Lee Hearn
Allen McCarty


Staff Present: Jack Krakeel, Interim County Administrator
Scott Bennett, County Attorney
Floyd Jones, County Clerk


______________________________________________________________________________________


Call to Order, Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance.  


Chairman Frady called the November 15, 2012 Board of Commissioners meeting to order at 7:02 p.m.
Commissioner Hearn offered the Invocation and led the audience in the Pledge of Allegiance.


Acceptance of Agenda.


Commissioner Brown moved to accept the Agenda as published.  Commissioners Horgan and McCarty seconded the
motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.


PUBLIC COMMENT:


Bob Ross: Mr. Ross said he was concerned about the appointments to Fayette County’s Ethics Board.  He then referred
to several points Commissioner Horgan made during the October 25, 2012 Board of Commissioners meeting as they
related to the procedures used by the newly elected Board of Commissioners in locating the next County Administrator.
He stated that an open process that seeks public application sis essential to the process since it would demonstrate
objectivity and opportunity, and he criticized the Board for not having an open process.  He added that while the
appointed members to the Ethics Board have the potential to adequately consider ethics cases, there were at least three
other candidates with strong resumes, who happened to be minorities, who may be better evaluate and advise other
Board members as to the legitimacy of an accused minority’s position.  He said he did not understand why a more open







Minutes
November 15, 2012
Page Number 2


appointment process does not exist where positions would be advertised, applications would be sought and reviewed,
top applicants would be interviewed, and then a decision would be made.  He closed asking the Board to redo the
process and to do it right.


Steve Smithfield: Mr. Smithfield stated that he had reviewed the November 7 Action Agenda and he learned that
Commissioner Hearn nominated all three members of the Ethics Board.  He added that the Action Agenda does not
indicate that discussions were held on the qualifications of each nominee.  He pointed out that a list of other nominees
had been provided to the Commissioners a day before the meeting, but Mr. Hearn’s nominees appeared on a second
list that was provided to the Board just before the meeting occurred.  He continued that Mayor Langford had campaigned
in favor of Commissioner Hearn’s reelection efforts, and Ms. Sheila Huddleston had campaigned alongside
Commissioner Hearn as well.  He said this creates a conflict of interest, and that it was similar to when Commissioner
Hearn nominated his cousin to the Elections Board even though he was described as a friend from church.  He said
Chairman Frady and Commissioner Horgan voted in favor of the nominees, and by doing so did not allow
Commissioners Brown and McCarty the ability to represent the people who elected them.  He stated that Commissioner
Horgan has a history of advocating for the appointment of minorities to Boards, but while there were two highly qualified
minorities available, he voted for nominees who had close political affiliations with Commissioner Hearn.


Ginger Smithfield: Mrs. Smithfield said she had attended Board meetings on a regular basis for more than four years
and that during those years she witnessed many breaches of ethics and public trust.  She stated that Ethics Ordinance
2010-10 reads “the proper operation of local government requires that the public officials be independent, impartial, and
responsible to the people” and that it reads “the public officials be free from the appearance of impropriety and that the
pubic have confidence in the integrity of its government.” She then asked several rhetorical questions related to the
appointment process and concluded that the Board’s actions were not free from the appearance of impropriety and did
not promote confidence in the integrity of Fayette County’s government.


Arnold Martin: Mr. Martin informed the Board that he attended the Ethics Board meeting held on November 9, 2012
along with about 15 other citizens.  He said there were many questions about how the Board was appointed, the issues
of the conflict of interest that arises with the Mayor of Brooks seated on the Board, and what constituted a quorum for
the Board since only two of the appointed members were present.  He said one glaring piece of information was provided
by Interim County Administrator Jack Krakeel who explained that in Fayette County the process for appointing members
to Boards and Committees is for volunteers to submit their names and that they can be appointed without any
qualifications, resumes, of other information accompanying their names.  He continued that an appointment process like
that was based on familiarity and not on qualifications.  He reminded the Commissioners that Boards and Authorities
are second only to the elected Board for the County’s leadership and operations, and that by basing appointments on
familiarity the Commissioners were opening questions on the possibility of cronyism, nepotism, political favoritism, and
a lack of demographic diversity.  He pointed out that some of the top taxpayers to Fayette County are funded people who
are demographically diverse, and he asked the Commissioners what they thought those taxpayers would think about
how they appoint people to Boards and Authorities.  He closed by saying Fayette County’s leadership is responsible for
doing better and to ensure that the leadership in the County looks like the County– with great diversity.  He called for
an immediate change to all Board ordinances concerning the selection process, and he said the community would thrive
with such a basic and easy change.


Bonnie Willis: Ms. Willis expressed concerns about the Board’s recent decisions regarding the Ethics Board.  She said
she was moved by Commissioner Hearn’s prayer that God would help Fayette County since she believed the United
States is a divided nation.  She continued that she also believes that if a person works hard and does the best they can
that they would get a fair shot in whatever pursuit they desired.  She said she looked at the resume of two of the
candidates presented for the Ethics Board, and was amazed that they were rejected.  She questioned why they were







Minutes
November 15, 2012
Page Number 3


rejected, especially in light of the presidential election last week that demonstrated a divided county and nation.  She
thought the Board did not make wise appointments, that the two rejected candidates were great candidates–irrespective
of their race– because of their experiences.  She said they have experience dealing with ethical issues, and so she did
not understand the Board’s decision in appointing other nominees to the Ethics Board.  She then asked for the Board
to reconsider their decisions for the sake of Fayette County and for the sake of a nation in an effort to restore unity.


Dawn Oparah: Ms. Oparah told the Board that she watched with great interest the process with which the newly elected
Ethics Board was seated.  She said the Commissioners and staff should be ashamed for not seating an Ethics Board
earlier since it was authorized in November 2010, and that the recent Ethics complaint put an unnecessary rush on the
Commissioners.  She said she did not object to the qualification of those seated on the Ethics Board, but she objected
to the process used to select the individuals for the Board.  She said that seating an Ethics Board should involve an open
and transparent process, and that criteria should have been established for the position, eligibility requirements should
also be established, that the positions should have been posted for qualified and interest citizens to have an opportunity
to apply and go through a screening process.  She said all of this was not done. She said the citizens of Fayette County
want transparency, openness, and fairness in its government, and that the results of the ballot box proved her point.
She suggested that the current process of selecting nominees to the Boards and Commissions involved cronyism and
pointed to a “good old boy” system.  She called on those appointed to the Ethics Board to resign in order to preserve
their personal and professional integrity, and she explained how she sought out qualified candidates who were not
associated with the NAACP on behalf of Commissioner Brown who contacted her.  (Ms. Oparah’s comments ended as
her time expired.)


Tom Halpin: Mr. Halpin said his issue was just as important, although different, from the previous speakers.  He said
he had addressed the Board about his concerns in the past, only to be told that the Board could not do anything about
his concern.  He stated that he was talking about the Fayette County Board of Education and the financial problems it
has.  He said he did not mean to suggest that the Board of Commissioners should tell the Board of Education how to
operate, but suggested that both Boards work together for the betterment of Fayette County.  He suggested that the
Boards could figure out how to have people and businesses return to Fayette County which would generate more
income, and he pointed out that all the indicators suggest that the national recession will not end in the next several
years.  He concluded that the State of Georgia would provide the Fayette County school system with $16 million less
than what is needed and in doing so Fayette County would be far worse off in the next year and the years to follow if
something is not done to solve the problem.  He suggested that by both Boards working together they would set a great
example on how to solve the problem.


Walter Hopewell: Mr. Hopewell said he was confused after listening to the previous speakers talk about appointments
to the Ethics Board.  He said he had lived in Fayette County for about a year and that he liked the county and that the
government seemed to operate in favor of the people, but that the recent comments gave him pause and concern.  He
said everybody has to put themselves forward, and that all anyone has is their word.  He alluded that an open process
should be made available for appointees to that people can read the same information and know that the appointments
were done fairly and justly and that there is nothing to be argued about.  He pointed out that he has worked many jobs,
and for each job he had to present his credentials since his future employers did not know him otherwise.  He said
without credentials the hiring or appointing process would be a sham and not worth the time to get it done.


Chairman Frady: Chairman Frady thanked everyone for coming to the meeting to express their opinions, and stated
that everyone has their opinions.







Minutes
November 15, 2012
Page Number 4


CONSENT AGENDA:


Commissioner Brown moved to approve Consent Agenda Items 1-6.  Commissioner McCarty seconded the motion.  No
discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.


1. Approval of staff’s request to accept an Adult Felony Drug Court Grant Award in the amount of
$152,711.00 and to authorize the Chairman to sign the grant application and any related documents
contingent upon the County Attorney’s review.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 1",
follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


2. Approval of staff’s recommendation to accept a grant from the Criminal Justice Coordinating Council’s
Accountability Courts / Grant Department, in the amount of $5,439.00, that has been awarded to the
Griffin Judicial Circuit Drug Court, and to authorize the Chairman to sign the grant documents
contingent upon the County Attorney’s review.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 2",
follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


3. Approval of a Fiscal Year 2013 budget amendment to property taxes for the 2012 adopted fire services
millage rate and rate and to establish additional  appropriations for the Fire Fund’s payment of property
insurance, administrative costs, and funding for vehicle replacement.  A copy of the request, identified
as “Attachment 3", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


4. Approval of staff’s request to transfer $4,532.50 from the Warning Siren Fund Capital Improvement
Projects (CIP) Account into the Public Safety & Emergency Management Account for the repair of
Warning Siren No. 25 located near the intersection of Highway 74 and Kedron Drive in Peachtree City.
A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 4", follows these minutes and is made an official part
hereof.


5. Approval of the Sheriff’s Office request to amend the Overtime Budget for the Criminal Investigations
Division by $1,780.11 for reimbursement for employees assigned to work with various federal agencies.
A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 5", follows these minutes and is made an official part
hereof.


6. Approval of staff’s recommendation to enter into Contract ID No. C38931-12-000-0 with the Georgia
Department of Transportation (GDOT) for the resurfacing of 6.47 miles of County roads (GDOT Project
No. S014261-PR), and authorization for the Chairman to sign the contract contingent upon the County
Attorney’s review.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 6", follows these minutes and is
made an official part hereof.


OLD BUSINESS:


1. Appointment of two members to the Public Facilities Authority.


Interim County Administrator Jack Krakeel said he believed the county had not received any candidate names
from the Commissioners with respect to the two appointments.  He said the issue was whether these are time-
critical appointments or not.  He said that unless the County was to issue new revenue bonds that there is
probably not a requirement for the Public Facilities Authority to meet, but he added there are legal requirements
that each member of the Authority must complete training.  He asked the Board to provide direction to staff on
how to proceed with the process of appointing the members to the Public Facilities Authority.







Minutes
November 15, 2012
Page Number 5


Chairman Frady suggested that the procedure should be that the staff is directed to start advertising for the
positions and the qualifications required to serve on the Board.  Commissioner Brown stated that he had
nominated Commissioner McCarty to serve in one of the two positions since a member of the Board of
Commissioners traditionally sits on the Public Facilities Authority.  Chairman Frady repeated his suggestion
that the positions should be advertised and that Commissioner McCarty could apply if he wanted to.


Commissioner Brown moved to officially put both of the positions for the Public Facilities Authority in the form
of a press release to the Atlanta Journal-Constitution, the Fayette Daily News, and The Citizen newspapers,
to solicit input and applications from all citizens of Fayette County.  Chairman Frady and Commissioner
McCarty seconded the motion.  Discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.  A copy of the request,
identified as “Attachment 7", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


2. Appointment of a member to the Region Six Mental Health Regional Planning Board.


Commissioner Horgan reported that he did not have anyone come to him since he was on the Board of Health
to express an interest in the position.  He suggested that the position be advertised and see if there is anyone
who is interested in being involved.


Commissioner Brown moved to do a public notice through press release to the Atlanta Journal-Constitution,
the Fayette Daily News, and The Citizen newspapers to appoint a member of the Region Six Mental Health
Regional Planning Board.  Commissioner McCarty seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion
passed unanimously.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 8", follows these minutes and is made
an official part hereof.


3. Consideration of a proposed Policies and Procedures document relating to the use of speed tables on
select County roads.


Public Works Director Phil Mallon reminded the Board that this issue had been discussed in several workshop
meetings, and at the last workshop he received some specific comments from the Board.  He said those
comments were: 1) to remove the requirement for citizens to contribute toward the initial material cost, 2) to
retain an annual fee to be applied or collected during the taxes, 3) to set a standard 80% approval by all the
people in the petition area; 4) to create a sponsor request form that would assist people who make the request
to get the process started, 5) to establish a minimum ten-miles per hour over the posted speed limit as
determined by the 85th percentile, and 6) to create a petition cover letter and signature page to assist in the
collection of signatures.  He said that was a very fast overview, and he said he would be glad to answer
questions, otherwise, he asked for the Board to consider approving the policy.


Commissioner Hearn clarified that a petition area would include all of those residents who would be impacted
by the speed table on a daily basis in their normal travels.  Mr. Mallon replied that was correct. Commissioner
Hearn said he thought this was a good starting point, that the policies were a living breathing document that
may need to be tweaked down the road to make it better, but it was an excellent starting point.


Commissioner Hearn moved to approve the proposed Policies and Procedures document relating to the use
of speed tables on select County roads.  Commissioner McCarty seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.
The motion passed unanimously. A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 9", follows these minutes and
is made an official part hereof.







Minutes
November 15, 2012
Page Number 6


4. Discussion of the results of Phase II of the segmented approach for Fayette County’s Parks and
Recreations Needs Assessment.


Mr. Darryl Hicks, Vice President of the Fayette County Recreation Commission, spoke about the results of
Phase II of the segmented approach for Fayette County’s Parks and Recreations Needs Assessment with the
Board.  The Board did not take any formal action and did not give any direction on the matter.  A copy of the
request, identified as “Attachment 10", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


NEW BUSINESS:


1. Consideration of the appointment of Mike Saul to the Post 4 seat of the Fayette County Recreation
Commission, for a four-year term which will begin April 1, 2012 and will expire March 31, 2016.


Commissioner Brown reported that a press release was sent to the Fayette Daily News, The Citizen, and the
Atlanta Journal-Constitution that there was an appointment available for this position and that everyone was
invited to apply.  He said an application was formulated for each applicant to fill out, and those applicants did
complete the applications.  He continued that he met with the Chairman of the Recreation Commission and the
Director of Parks and Recreation to discuss the applicants and their merits.   He explained that it was
determined one candidate was overwhelmingly qualified for the spot due to his experience, participation, and
attendance at the Recreation Commission meetings.  He said those factors demonstrated he was an involved
citizen and willing to pitch in.  He concluded that the gentleman under consideration was Mr. Mike Saul.  


Commissioner Brown moved to appoint Mike Saul to the Post 4 seat of the Fayette County Recreation
Commission, for a four-year term which will begin April 1, 2012 and will expire March 31, 2016.  Commissioner
McCarty seconded the motion. 


Commissioner Hearn asked how many applications arrived for the position.  Commissioner Brown recalled
receiving eight responses.  Chairman Frady stated that the Board actually nominates people from their district,
so there will be a disbursement of people from all over the county.  Commissioner Brown noted that Mr. Saul
lives in Brooks.


The motion to appoint Mike Saul to the Post 4 seat of the Fayette County Recreation Commission, for a four-
year term which will begin April 1, 2012 and will expire March 31, 2016 passed unanimously.  A copy of the
request, identified as “Attachment 11", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


2. Consideration of a proposed 2013 Local Maintenance & Improvement Grant (LMIG) project list for
unincorporated Fayette County, and authorization for the Chairman to sign the LMIG Application and
related documents contingent upon the County Attorney’s review.


Public Works Director Phil Mallon informed the Board that Fayette County receives money from the Georgia
Department of Transportation (GDOT), and, traditionally, that money has been used to fund the County’s
resurfacing program.  He said, currently, the resurfacing program is called LMIG (Local Maintenance &
Improvement Grant program), and that, effective 2013, the GDOT will change the program quite a bit.  He said
he thought the program will change for the better since the way the current system works is that the County
submits a list of projects and that the type of projects that can be funded with this money is quite broad.  He
said staff has provided is a list of projects that exceeds the amount of money Fayette County will get since
Fayette County is programmed for $549,000.00 for next year.  He said GDOT recommends the county to







Minutes
November 15, 2012
Page Number 7


submit a list larger than that amount in order to ensure that if some of the projects come in cheaper than
expected then there would be other options on how to spend the remaining money, and since it gives the
County flexibility if, during the course of next year, the County’s priorities change due to some type of
emergency.  He displayed a map on the televisions and discussed the proposed projects.  He said staff was
suggesting the majority of the money be applied to resurfacing as it has been over the years, but that staff
wanted a certain portion of money should also be appointed to Tyrone Road to start some scoping work and
preliminary engineering that would make that project competitive or eligible if additional funding sources
become available next year or in 2014.  He said another project is just south of Georgia Highway 54 in
Fayetteville, and it would be for funding to do design for a new road construction that has been talked about
in the CIP that connects Georgia Highway 54 to 1st Manassas Mile Road.  Mr. Mallon said he was looking either
for a general consensus that the list is good, and staff would prepare the application and send it to the GDOT,
or feedback for the list to be revised and returned for further discussion.


Commissioner Brown stated that one thing that staff needs to be aware of is to ensure there are no Stormwater
projects that are going to have to be conducted on the repaved roads after they have been repaved, and that
there are no other plans related to those roads after they are repaved. He asked if there is a process that is
followed to check with the other departments to make such assurances.  Mr. Mallon replied that there is a
process, and in fact he received assistance from Stormwater Management while making the map, and staff was
just talking about that very issue.  He added that making preparations are not always possible, but the work
is coordinated whenever possible.


Commissioner Hearn stated that he thought this was a good project list and he commended the County’s
partners at GDOT.  He mentioned this is the way the GDOT is divvying out the gas tax and maintenance
monies, and he thought it was a much more streamlined method than what has been seen in the past.  He said
it is a little broader in scope in allowing the County do other things other than simply buying materials.  


Commissioner Hearn moved to approve the proposed 2013 Local Maintenance & Improvement Grant (LMIG)
project list for unincorporated Fayette County, and to authorize the Chairman to sign the LMIG Application and
related documents contingent upon the County Attorney’s review.  Commissioner McCarty seconded the
motion.  Discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.  A copy of the request, identified as
“Attachment 12", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


3. Consideration of staff’s request to award Bid #850- Westbridge Road Construction, including Bridge
over Morning Creek, to the low bidder Southeastern Site Development, Inc., in the amount of
$1,798,747.29, for the realignment of Westbridge Road and construction of a new 180-ft long offset
bridge, and authorization for the Chairman to sign the contract contingent upon the County Attorney’s
review.


Public Works Director Phil Mallon reported that the project under consideration was an SPLOST project that
has been before the Board for about two years.  He said staff completed its design, is completing or finishing
up the right of way, and has put the construction of the project out for bid.  He said requests for bids were sent
to more than 28 contractors and were advertised through newspaper and cable outlets.  He stated that the
county received five bids back, and staff is recommending awarding the project to the low bidder.  He showed
an overview of the project on the televisions.  







Minutes
November 15, 2012
Page Number 8


Commissioner Hearn clarified that the purpose of the project was twofold: 1) to replace an aged bridge that
needs upgrading and 2) to get the curve so that it meets the design standards for a 45-mile per hour design
speed.  Mr. Mallon agreed with Commissioner Hearn’s explanation.  Commissioner McCarty stated that his
experience with the road is that he has driven the curve many times at the posted speed limit of 45 miles per
hour without any problems that he did not have a problem with the bridge, the work would be expensive, and
that he was against the project.  Commissioner Horgan stated that he grew up in Westbridge subdivision near
the curve, and that curve on the road has been deadly as many people have died on that road.  He said this
is something that has been coming and has taken a long time to happen.  He thought it would be a great
addition to the roundabout and the other additions to the West Fayetteville Bypass.


Commissioner Horgan moved to award Bid #850- Westbridge Road Construction, including Bridge over
Morning Creek, to the low bidder Southeastern Site Development, Inc., in the amount of $1,798,747.29, for the
realignment of Westbridge Road and construction of a new 180-ft long offset bridge, and authorization for the
Chairman to sign the contract contingent upon the County Attorney’s review.  Commissioner Hearn seconded
the motion.


Chairman Frady said that particular area has always been a thorn in citizens’ sides, it has been dangerous for
years, it has needed to be repaired for years, and the County is just getting around to doing it.  He thought the
work was “a lot of years late” and that he had received more complaints about that road and bridge than any
other in Fayette County.  Commissioner Brown said he would not vote for the project either and the main
reason he would not is because the County has maligned priorities with the SPLOST since “the get go.”  He
said he has never agreed with the priority list and the projects as selected, and the order in which they were
selected, and he said he would be consistent with his vote and vote against the motion.


The motion to award Bid #850- Westbridge Road Construction, including Bridge over Morning Creek, to the low
bidder Southeastern Site Development, Inc., in the amount of $1,798,747.29, for the realignment of Westbridge
Road and construction of a new 180-ft long offset bridge, and authorization for the Chairman to sign the
contract contingent upon the County Attorney’s review passed 3-2 with Commissioners Brown and McCarty
voting in opposition.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 13", follows these minutes and is made
an official part hereof.


4. Consideration of Commissioner Brown’s recommendation to continue imposing the Energy Excise Tax
in Fayette County.


Commissioner Brown reported that Fayette County currently receives an Energy Excise Tax, however, during
the last legislative session, the legislation created legislation which was “a little gray and a bit nebulous” He said
that, essentially, the state was going to phase out over a period of time its portion of any Energy Excise Tax.
He explained that the legislation allowed for cities and counties to keep assessing and collecting the Energy
Excise Tax in order not to capsize local governments due to a steep loss of revenue.  He reported that the
problem is that Fayette County does not know how much revenue is involved.  He said both he and Fayetteville
Mayor Greg Clifton attended a Department of Revenue meeting where this issue was discussed for
approximately twenty minutes, and during that meeting no one knew how much money was at stake.  He
suggested that, due to the unknown amount of potential loss, Fayette County should continue imposing the
Energy Excise Tax.  He then said the legislation is unusual since a manufacturing company can go to the power
company, and not the government, to receive a tax exemption, and since there is no auditing process there is
no way to know if the company actually qualifies for the exemption.  He repeated that Fayette County should
continue imposing the Energy Excise Tax so that it does not learn of a steep decline in revenue next year once







Minutes
November 15, 2012
Page Number 9


the tax is no longer collected.  Commissioner McCarty added that there were too many unknowns associated
with the Energy Excise Tax legislation.  He reported that both he and Commissioner Brown attended an
Association of County Commissioner of Georgia (ACCG) Regional meeting which addressed about this issue
in depth, and that the ACCG is just as confused as everyone else.  He thought Fayette County should continue
to impose the Energy Excise Tax, and it could decide to no longer collect the tax any time in the future.


Commissioner Hearn agreed there were too many unknowns, but he suggested Fayette County could
experience a real advantage by not having the tax since it could draw businesses into the county.  He said he
did not know how much money was involved, but he could not support the move to continue imposing the
Energy Excise Tax.  Commissioner Horgan agreed with Commissioner Hearn.


Commissioner Brown said that if the initiative failed than everybody could count on Fayette County losing
money.  He added that Fayette County is currently operating in a deficit spending mode, and that any loss of
revenue beyond what the county is currently collecting would exacerbate the deficit spending problem.  He
asked the Board to look toward the future and the budgets that will be encountered over the next years, and
to try to keep the revenue stream where it currently is.  He said if the County experiences a serious financial
impact and loses a lot of money, then the county would be in a serious bind and would have to cut into the
county’s services which are being provided.  He asked the Board to pass the measure and find out what the
tax implications are after the legislature has a chance to correct the legislation in January.


Commissioner Brown moved that the Board continues imposing the Energy Excise Tax in Fayette County.
Commissioner McCarty seconded the motion.


Chairman Frady said he would not vote to raise taxes at this time of year, especially when he did not have a
clue about what the taxes would be.  Commissioner Brown stated that it was not an attempt to raise taxes but
to keep collecting the Energy Excise Tax. 


The motion to continue imposing the Energy Excise Tax failed 2-3 with Chairman Frady, Commissioner Hearn,
and Commissioner Horgan voting in opposition.


Commissioner Horgan moved “to leave things as they currently are.”  Interim County Administrator Jack Krakeel
replied that if the motion was to leave things as they currently are, then effectively the motion would be to
continue collecting the Energy Excise Tax.  Commissioner Horgan said his wishes were to not adopt an Energy
Excise Tax as presented at the meeting.  The motion died for lack of a second.


County Attorney Scott Bennett explained that since the motion failed that no action had taken place.  He
explained that the Board could choose to take no further action or to consider a new motion.  After some
discussion, Mr. Bennett explained that the item did not fail, even though the motion did fail.  Commissioner
Brown asked if the item could be brought back up.  Mr. Bennett replied that it could be brought back up unless
there is a different motion.  He clarified that since no action had been taken on the item, and since the item had
not been defeated or approved, that essentially no motion has been passed regarding the item.  Chairman
Frady stated he was not going to raise taxes so the issue was over.


Commissioner Brown said he would try to see if he could get the issue on another agenda.  A copy of the
request, identified as “Attachment 14", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.







Minutes
November 15, 2012
Page Number 10


5. Approval of the October 25, 2012 Board of Commissioners Minutes.  Chairman Frady was not present
at this meeting.


Commissioner McCarty moved to approve the October 25, 2012 Board of Commissioners Minutes.
Commissioner Brown seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed 4-0-1 with Chairman
Frady abstaining from the vote.


ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORTS:


There were no Administrator’s Reports.


ATTORNEY’S REPORTS:


There were no Attorney’s Reports.


COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS:


Commissioner Horgan: Commissioner Horgan asked for Executive Session to discuss one personnel item.


Commissioner McCarty: Commissioner McCarty thanked the audience for coming and for providing their input, and
he welcomed the audience to return to the meeting at any time.  He added that if anyone had a problem to give the
Board a call.


Commissioner Brown: Commissioner Brown recognized Representative-elect Mabra was in attendance, and he
pointed out that the Representative would be one of Fayette County’s new elected representatives in a new district.  He
asked Representative Mabra to stand so people could recognize him.


EXECUTIVE SESSION:


Personnel: Commissioner Hearn moved to recess into Executive Session.  Commissioner Horgan seconded the motion.
No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.


The Board recessed into Executive Session at 8:15 p.m. and returned to Open Session at 8:33 p.m.


Executive Session Affidavit: Chairman Frady asked the record to reflect that one personnel matter was discussed in
Executive Session, and asked the Board to authorize the Chairman to sign an Executive Session Affidavit. The Board
consented to the request.  A copy of the Executive Session Affidavit, identified as “Attachment 15", follows these minutes
and is made an official part hereof.


Termination of County Attorney Scott Bennett’s Contract:   Commissioner Horgan stated that the Board discussed
a personnel matter regarding County Attorney Scott Bennett and his employment with Fayette County.  He said the
Board decided in light of what has been going on with possible dissensions with future Board members, to terminate Mr.
Bennett’s contract with the Board ending December 31, 2012, and to honor his contract.  Commissioner Brown asked
for a motion on the issue.


Commissioner Horgan moved to honor County Attorney Scott Bennett’s contract and to terminate his contract on
December 31, 2012.  Commissioner McCarty seconded the motion.







Minutes
November 15, 2012
Page Number 11


Chairman Frady said the Board certainly appreciates Mr. Bennett’s service to Fayette County, but that he could honor
the motion. Commissioner Horgan said Mr. Bennett has been an exemplary professional in what he does, and Fayette
County is in a better place for what he has done.  He said he appreciated Mr. Bennett’s work.  Chairman Frady added
that he though Mr. Bennett had saved Fayette County a ton of money in his years of employment.  He said the attorneys
who preceded him received percentages of bonds that the County would refinance, and that amounted to a ton of
money.  He said Mr. Bennett had never been paid for any of that work, and that he has saved the county money in just
about every corner he could, and he said the county appreciated that.  He added that Mr. Bennett is an excellent
attorney, that he told the Board that during Executive Session, and wished Mr. Bennett good luck.  Commissioner Brown
said he disagreed with the process and the way it was being handled, and he said he would vote in opposition because
of it.


The motion to honor County Attorney Scott Bennett’s contract and to terminate his contract on December 31, 2012
passed 4-1 with Commissioner Brown voting in opposition.


ADJOURNMENT:


Commissioner Brown moved to adjourn the November 15, 2012 Board of Commissioners meeting.  Commissioner
McCarty seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.


The Board adjourned the November 15, 2012 meeting at 8:36 p.m.


___________________________________                               __________________________________________
         Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk                                       Herbert Frady, Chairman


The foregoing minutes were duly approved at an official meeting of the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County,
Georgia, held on the 13th day of December 2012.


___________________________________
      Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Library Chris Snell


Approval of staff's request to increase the Library's Fiscal Year 2013 Donations Revenue Budget Account and to increase the Library's 
Fiscal Year 2013 Subscriptions, Books, and Magazines Expenditure Account by $1,000.00 to recognize a donation from the Rotary Club 
to the Fayette County Library.


The Rotary Club has donated $1,000.00 to the Fayette County Public Library.  This donation is undesignated and is intended for the 
library's general use. 
 
The Library intends to purchase books and materials to enhance its collection. 
 
The Library requests the Board's approval to increase its Fiscal Year 2013 Donations Budget Account and its Subscriptions and Books 
Expenditure Budget by $1,000.00 to account for the donation.


Approval of staff's request to increase the Library's Fiscal Year 2013 Donations Revenue Budget Account and to increase the Library's 
Fiscal Year 2013 Subscriptions, Books, and Magazines Expenditure Account by $1,000.00 to recognize a donation from the Rotary Club 
to the Fayette County Library.


Not Applicable.


No


No


Yes


No


Yes


Not Applicable Yes


ConsentThursday, December 13, 2012








AgendaAgendaAgendaAgenda
Board of Commissioners
December 13, 2012


 7:00 P.M.


Call to Order, Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance.  


Acceptance of Agenda.


PRESENTATION/RECOGNITION:


1. Recognition of the Fayette County Kiwanis Club who donated a van to
Fayette Senior Services.


2. Recognition of a donation from the Fayette County Kiwanis Club.


PUBLIC HEARING:


1. Mr. Steven Johnson has requested a hearing before the Board of
Commissioners concerning a request for tax refunds.


2. Consideration of a new Beer and Wine Package Sales License for Simpson
Grocery located at 1552 Highway 85 South.


3. Consideration to renew fourteen (14) Packaged Beer and Wine Licenses.


4. Consideration to renew four (4) On-Premises Consumption Licenses.


5. Consideration of Ordinance 2012-13 amending the Fayette County Code of
Ordinances, Chapter 20. Zoning Ordinance, Articles III, IV, V, VI, and VII
concerning the number of animals in the A-R zoning district.


6. Consideration of Ordinance 2012-14 amending the Fayette County Code of
Ordinances, Chapter 20. Zoning Ordinance, Articles IV, V, VI, and VII
concerning the new General Business Zoning District and the area of State
Routes 138 and 314.


7. Consideration of Resolution 2012-21 amending the Fayette County
Comprehensive Plan Land Use Element by creating a new General Business
Land Use Category and Fayette County Future Land Use Plan Map, and by
designating the area of State Route 138 with the General Business Land Use
Category.


PUBLIC COMMENT:


BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
Herb Frady, Chairman


Robert Horgan, Vice Chairman
Steve Brown
Lee Hearn


Allen McCarty


i


STAFF
Jack Krakeel, Interim County Administrator


Scott Bennett, County Attorney
Floyd Jones, County Clerk


i


MEETING LOCATION
Public Meeting Room
Administrative Complex
140 Stonewall Avenue
Fayetteville, GA 30214


i


MEETING TIMES
2nd and 4th Thursday each month 7:00 pm


i


COMMISSION OFFICE
Administrative Complex


Suite 100
140 Stonewall Avenue
Fayetteville, GA 30214
Phone: 770.305.5200
Fax: 770.305.5210


i


WEB SITE


www.fayettecountyga.gov


i


E-MAIL


administration@fayettecountyga.gov







Agenda
December 13, 2012
Page Number 2


CONSENT AGENDA:


1. Approval of the County Clerk’s recommendation for the November 28, 2012 Ethics Board’s Order to be included
into the December 13, 2012 Board of Commissioners’ Minutes pursuant to Ordinance 2010-10, Section 2-213,
(c)(6)(w).


2. Approval of the reappointment of Mr. Al Gilbert to Post One of the Fayette County Planning Commission with
said reappointment to become effective on January 1, 2013 and to expire on December 31, 2015.


3. Approval of the reappointment of Mr. James “Jim” Graw to Post Two of the Fayette County Planning
Commission with said reappointment to become effective on January 1, 2013 and to expire on December 31,
2015.


4. Approval of the reappointment of Mr. Bill Beckwith to the Fayette County Zoning Board of Appeals with said
reappointment to become effective on January 1, 2013 and to expire on December 31, 2015.


5. Approval of the County Clerk’s request to authorize the Chairman to sign an Executive Session Affidavit stating
matters of property acquisition, litigation, and personnel were discussed by the Board in Executive Session
during the December 5, 2012 Board of Commissioners Workshop Meeting.


6. Approval of staff’s request to extend the current Technical Support Program coverage for the Siemens Building
Automation System at the Fayette County Library for 2 ½ years (two years and six months), beginning January
1, 2013, at an aggregate cost of $23,528.00, and authorization for the Chairman to sign any contracts or related
documents contingent upon the County Attorney’s review.


7. Approval of staff’s recommendation to allow W.W. Williams to complete the repair of a generator at Fire Station
#5, in an amount not to exceed $17,821.07, to pay an additional invoice to Pro Power Solutions in the amount
of $869.50 for service calls already completed for repair work, and approval of a Fiscal Year 2013 budget
amendment of $18,691.00 to cover this repair cost.


8. Approval of staff’s recommendation to allow Diversified Electronics, Inc. to install four Motorola High-Band,
replacement mobile radios into Medic Units at a total cost of $5,360.00, and approval of a Fiscal Year 2013
budget adjustment to increase other non-motorized equipment in the amount of $5,360.00, with said funding
provided from the unreserved undesignated Fund Balance.


9. Approval of staff’s request to increase the Fire Fund Donations / Miscellaneous Revenue Account in the amount
of $1,742.00, and to increase the Fire Fund Food / Catered Meals Expense Account in the amount of $1,742.00
to account for various donations made to Fayette County Fire and Emergency Services.


10. Approval of the Board of Health’s recommendation to approve proposed body art fees.


11. Approval of staff’s request to increase the Library’s Fiscal Year 2013 Donations Revenue Budget Account and
to increase the Library’s Fiscal Year 2013 Subscriptions, Books, and Magazines Expenditure Account by
$1,000.00 to recognize a donation from the Rotary Club to the Fayette County Library.







Agenda
December 13, 2012
Page Number 3


12. Approval of staff’s request to increase the Library’s Fiscal Year 2013 Donations Revenue Budget Account and
to increase the Library’s Fiscal Year 2013 Subscriptions, Books, and Magazines Expenditure Account by
$500.00 to recognize a donation from Wal-Mart to the Fayette County Library.


13. Approval of staff’s request to increase the Library’s Fiscal Year 2013 Donations Revenue Budget Account and
to increase the Library’s Fiscal Year 2013 Subscriptions, Books, and Magazines Expenditure Account by
$25.00 to recognize a donation from Ms. Susan Kay McWatters to the Fayette County Library.


14. Approval of staff’s request to award Proposal #P852- Sports Lighting to M. Gay Constructors, Inc. in the amount
of $325,000.00 in order to upgrade lighting at Kiwanis Park and McCurry Park, and authorization for the
Chairman to sign the contract and related documents contingent upon the County Attorney’s review.


15. Approval of staff’s request to loan a 2008 Ford Crown Victoria to the District Attorney’s Office, to receive a
previously loaned 1997 Ford Crown Victoria from the District Attorney’s Office, to auction the 1997 Ford Crown
Victoria via an internet auction website, and to deposit the proceed of the sale into the Sheriff’s State Seizures
fund account.


16. Approval of the Sheriff’s Office request to amend the Fiscal Year 2013 Overtime Budget for the Criminal
Investigations Division by $2,954.49 for reimbursement for employees assigned to work with various federal
agencies.


17. Approval of the Sheriff’s Office recommendation to enter into a Mutual Assistance Agreement between the City
of Peachtree City Police Department and the Office of the Sheriff of Fayette County, and authorization for the
Chairman to sign the Mutual Assistance Agreement.


18. Approval of Ordinance 2012-12 amending the Fayette County Code, Chapter 8, Development Regulations,
Article VI, Tree Retention, Protection, and Replacement.


19. Approval of the disposition of tax refunds as recommended by the Tax Assessor’s Office.


20. Approval of the Water Committee’s recommendation to approve eleven pre-qualified contractors for the
Magnetic Ion Exchange (MIEX) Treatment Process Upgrades to the Crosstown and South Fayette Water
Treatment Plants.


21. Approval of the Water Committee’s recommendation to update information provided on the back of Fayette
County’s water bills.


22. Approval of the November 7, 2012 Board of Commissioners Workshop Minutes and the November 15, 2012
Board of Commissioners Minutes.


OLD BUSINESS:


1. Consideration of staff’s request to amend the Alcoholic Beverage Ordinance by replacing Chapter 3– Alcoholic
Beverages of the Fayette County Code of Ordinances.







Agenda
December 13, 2012
Page Number 4


2. Consideration of the Water Committee’s recommendation to award the Flint River Pump Station Traveling
Screen Installation bid to the low bidder, Lanier Contracting Company, in the amount of $325,271.00, and to
authorize the Chairman to sign the contract and related documents contingent upon the County Attorney’s
review.


NEW BUSINESS:


1. Consideration of staff’s request to award Bid #851- E-911 Workstation Replacement to Watson Furniture Group,
Inc., in the amount of $122,912.50, for the installation and maintenance of ergonomic workstations, to authorize
an additional purchase of 10 chairs in the amount of $5,500.00, and to authorize the Chairman to sign the
contract and related documents after the County Attorney’s review.


ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORTS:


ATTORNEY’S REPORTS:


COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS:


ADJOURNMENT:








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Library Chris Snell


Approval of staff's request to increase the Library's Fiscal Year 2013 Donations Revenue Budget Account and to increase the Library's 
Fiscal Year 2013 Subscriptions, Books, and Magazines Expenditure Account by $500.00 to recognize a donation from Wal-Mart to the 
Fayette County Library.


Wal-Mart has donated $500.00 to the Fayette County Public Library.  This donation is undesignated and is intended for the library's 
general use. 
 
The Library intends to purchase books and materials to enhance its collection. 
 
The Library requests the Board's approval to increase its Fiscal Year 2013 Donations Budget Account and its Subscriptions and Books 
Expenditure Budget by $500.00 to account for the donation.


Approval of staff's request to increase the Library's Fiscal Year 2013 Donations Revenue Budget Account and to increase the Library's 
Fiscal Year 2013 Subscriptions, Books, and Magazines Expenditure Account by $500.00 to recognize a donation from Wal-Mart to the 
Fayette County Library.


Not Applicable.


No


No


Yes


No


Yes


Not Applicable Yes


ConsentThursday, December 13, 2012








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Water System Tony Parrott


Approval of the Water Committee's recommendation to approve eleven pre-qualified contractors for the Magnetic Ion Exchange (MIEX) 


Treatment Process Upgrades to the Crosstown and South Fayette Water Treatment Plants.


The Board of Commissioners approved a contract with Mallett Consulting for engineering services, including design, plans, specifications, 


bid documents and contract administration, and project management of the Magnetic Ion Exchange (MIEX) Treatment Process Upgrade 


for the Crosstown and South Fayette Treatment Plants for a cost not exceed $540,000. 


 


Since that time, work pertaining to the MIEX Treatment Process Upgrades has progressed, and the Treatment Process Upgrades to both 


water treatment plans have been approved by the Georgia Department of Natural Resources.   


 


In order to allow the process of bidding the project go smoother, a Request for Qualifications was scheduled for September 24, 2012.  


The pre-qualification review was then conducted by Mallett Consulting and there were eleven submittals.  All eleven general contractors 


pre-qualified.


Approval of the Water Committee's recommendation to approve eleven pre-qualified contractors for the Magnetic Ion Exchange (MIEX) 


Treatment Process Upgrades to the Crosstown and South Fayette Water Treatment Plants.


Not Applicable.


No


No


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


ConsentThursday, December 13, 2012







Treatment Process Upgrades (MIEX) to 


Crosstown and So. Fayette Water Treatment Plants


Fayette County,  Georgia


Prequalification Review of General Contractors


In repsonse to RFQ dated September 24, 2012


No. General Contractor Telephone # Prequalified (Y/N) Comments


1 Brasfield & Gorrie, LLC Y No Comments


2 Garney Construction Co, Inc Y No Comments


3 Wharton-Smith, Inc Y No Comments


4 Heavy Constructors, Inc. Y No Comments


5 Layne Heavy Civil Y Formerly Reynolds, Inc.


Built Crabapple Booster Pump Sta


Built Horton Creek Dam


6 P.F.  Moon & Company, Inc Y Built Crosstown WTP Expansion


Built Starrs Mill Pump Station


7 Bates Engineers/Contractors, Inc. Y Built South Fayette WTP


8 Allsouth Constructors, Inc. Y Various Plant/Pump Station work


for Fayette Co. Water System


9 H.C. Coleman & Company, Inc. Y No Comments


10 Lanier Contracting Company Y Low bidder on Flint River PS 


traveling screen project


11 RDJE, Inc. Y Requires partnering with


Willow Construction 


Willow built Lake McIntosh Pump Station





		Water System- MIEX Agenda Request File

		Water System- MIEX Backup










COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Water System Tony Parrott


Approval of the Water Committee's recommendation to update information provided on the back of Fayette County's water bills.


A variety of information is printed on the back of Fayette County's water bills which includes the rates and contact information for the 


sewer companies that are billed by the Water System.  When the sewer companies change their sewer rates this information has to be 


updated. 


 


To keep the information updated and customer friendly, changing the content of the contact information for each sewer company, along 


with their web site information, would keep the back of the water bill from being too crowded and hard to read. 


 


Fayette County's Stormwater information also needs to be added to the back of the County's water bills.  Changing the format will make it 


easier to add this information to the back of the water bill.


Approval of the Water Committee's recommendation to update information provided on the back of Fayette County's water bills.


Not Applicable.


No


No


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


ConsentThursday, December 13, 2012







Detailed Statement of Charges 
 


1. Water – Minimum bill of $18.48 for the first 2,000 gallons:  $3.23 per thousand thereafter for ¾”meters-
larger meters have a base rate, plus $3.23 per 1,000 gallons used.   


 
2.   CONSERVATION RATES- Applies to residential and irrigation meters, ¾” & 1”meters; $18.48 for the   
      first 2,000 gallons; $3.23 per thousand gallons for the next 17,999 gallons; $4.39 per thousand thereafter.   
      Larger size meters- 1 ½”, 2”, 3”, & 4” residential and irrigation meters have a base rate depending on the  
      size meter installed; water used is $3.23 per thousand for the first 19,999 gallons; then $4.39 per thousand   
      thereafter.  


   
3.  There is a 10% penalty for payments received after the due date. If previous balance appears on bill, water 


service is subject to be interrupted 20 days past the due date on the last month’s bill. The reconnect charge 
is $25.00. 


 
4. PEACHTREE CITY WATER AND SEWERAGE AUTHORITY PROVIDES SEWER AND SERVICE 


 TO PEACHTREE CITY CUSTOMERS. DIRECT QUESTIONS TO 770-487-7993 OR 1127 
 HIGHWAY 74 SOUTH, PEACHTREE CITY, GA 30269.  
 Peachtree City residential sewer rates only – Base bill of $26.00 plus $4.65 per 1,000 gallons of metered 


water used each month. Industrial, Commercial, and Multi-Family sewer rates have a base bill of $26.00 
plus $6.15 per 1,000 gallons of metered water used. 


 
5. CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE PROVIDES SEWER SERVICE TO FAYETTEVILLE CUSTOMERS.  


DIRECT QUESTIONS TO 770-460-4237 OR 240 GLYNN STREET SOUTH, FAYETTEVILLE, GA  
30214. 


 City of Fayetteville residential sewer rates only – Minimum bill of $16.28 for 0 gallons to 2,000 gallons of 
metered water used each month and $2.91 for each additional 1,000 gallons of metered water used. Senior 
rates - Minimum bill $13.84 for 0 gallons to 3,000 gallons of metered water used and $2.91 for each 
additional 1,000 gallons of metered water used. Commercial sewer – Minimum bill of $28.54 for 0 gallons 
to 2,000 gallons of metered water used each month and $2.91 for each additional 1,000 gallons of metered 
water used.  Minimum charge for sewer is based upon the number of existing units which potentially may 
be served by each water meter. 


 
6. THE TOWN OF TYRONE PROVIDES SEWER SERVICE TO TYRONE CUSTOMERS.  DIRECT 


QUESTIONS TO 770-487-4038 OR 881 SENOIA ROAD, TYRONE, GA  30290. 
Town of Tyrone sewer rate – Minimum bill of $30.00 for the first 4,000 gallons of water used each month 
and $8.45 for each additional 1,000 gallons of metered water used. 


 
7.  THE TOWN OF BROOKS PROVIDES SEWER SERVICE TO BROOKS CUSTOMERS. DIRECT 


QUESTIONS TO 770-719-7666 OR, BROOKS TOWN HALL, P. O. BOX 96 BROOKS, GA 30205. 
 Town of Brooks sewer rate – Residential ¾” & 1”meters- $18.48 for the first 2,000 gallons of metered 


water used; $3.23 per thousand gallons for the next 17,999 gallons of metered water used; $4.39 per 
thousand thereafter. Larger size residential meters have a base rate depending on the size meter installed; 
metered water used is $3.23 per thousand for the first 19,999 gallons; then $4.39 per thousand thereafter. 
Commercial meters -Minimum bill of $18.48 for the first 2,000 gallons of metered water used: $3.23 per 
thousand thereafter for ¾” meters.  


 



fjones

Typewritten Text

Old Statement Information







 
  Where Quality Is a Lifestyle 


Detailed Statement of Charges 
 


1. Water – Minimum bill of $18.48 for the first 2,000 gallons:  $3.23 per thousand thereafter for ¾”meters-
larger meters have a base rate, plus $3.23 per 1,000 gallons used.   


 
2.   CONSERVATION RATES- Applies to residential and irrigation meters, ¾” & 1”meters; $18.48 for the   
      first 2,000 gallons; $3.23 per thousand gallons for the next 17,999 gallons; $4.39 per thousand thereafter.   
      Larger size meters- 1 ½”, 2”, 3”, & 4” residential and irrigation meters have a base rate depending on the  
      size meter installed; water used is $3.23 per thousand for the first 19,999 gallons; then $4.39 per thousand   
      thereafter.  


   
3.  There is a 10% penalty for payments received after the due date. If previous balance appears on bill, water 


service is subject to be interrupted 20 days past the due date on the last month’s bill. The reconnect charge 
is $25.00. 


 
4.  Stormwater Management questions and what you can do to help reduce stormwater pollution, please visit 


http://www.fayettecountyga.gov/stormwater_management or call Fayette County Stormwater Management 
at 770-305-5410. 


 
5. PEACHTREE CITY WATER AND SEWERAGE AUTHORITY PROVIDES SEWER AND SERVICE 


 TO PEACHTREE CITY CUSTOMERS. DIRECT QUESTIONS TO 770-487-7993 OR 1127 
 HIGHWAY 74 SOUTH, PEACHTREE CITY, GA 30269.  Or visit http://pcwasa.org/pcwasa-rates 


 
6. CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE PROVIDES SEWER SERVICE TO FAYETTEVILLE CUSTOMERS.  


DIRECT QUESTIONS TO 770-460-4237 OR 240 GLYNN STREET SOUTH, FAYETTEVILLE, GA  
30214. Or visit http://www.fayetteville-ga.gov 


  
7. THE TOWN OF TYRONE PROVIDES SEWER SERVICE TO TYRONE CUSTOMERS.  DIRECT 


QUESTIONS TO 770-487-4038 OR 881 SENOIA ROAD, TYRONE, GA  30290. Or visit http://tyrone.org 
 


8.  THE TOWN OF BROOKS PROVIDES SEWER SERVICE TO BROOKS CUSTOMERS. DIRECT 
QUESTIONS TO 770-719-7666 OR, BROOKS TOWN HALL, P. O. BOX 96 BROOKS, GA 30205. Or 
visit http://www.brooksga.com 


 


Water System 


 
FAYETTE COUNTY WATER SYSTEM 
Office hours: 8 A.M. – 5 P.M. Monday - Friday 
During Office Hours: 770-461-1146 
After Office Hours: 770-487-3271 
 



fjones

Typewritten Text

New Statement Information





		Water System- Water Bill Agenda Request File

		Water System- Water Bill Backup

		Backup Current Water Bill Content

		Backup New Water Bill Content












COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Marshal Chief Ed Collins


Consideration of staff's request to amend the Alcoholic Beverage Ordinance by replacing Chapter 3-Alcoholic Beverages of the Fayette 


County Code of Ordinances.


On April 26, 2012, the Fayette County Board of Commissioners adopted Resolution 2012-09 authorizing a referendum to be held on July 


31,2012 to determine whether or not the package sales by retailers of package malt beverages, wine, and distilled spirits in 


unincorporated Fayette County should be allowed on Sundays.  On July 31, 2012, Fayette County's voters passed the referendum to 


allow package sales in unincorporated Fayette County on Sundays with 65.09% of the vote. 


 


In order to effect the voters decision, the Fayette County Board of Commissioners passed Ordinance 2012-11 on August 23, 2012 which 


approved proposed amendments to the Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Part II County Code, Chapter 3 Alcoholic Beverages.  This 


Ordinance was then amended on September 5, 2012 to clarify days and hours when alcoholic beverages could be sold. 


 


This request will replace the current Chapter 3-Alcoholic Beverages with a new Chapter 3-Alcoholic Beverages that retains the current 


requirements of the existing Fayette County Code while simplifying its administration processes and changing its fees.


Consideration of staff's request to amend the Alcoholic Beverage Ordinance by replacing Chapter 3-Alcoholic Beverages of the Fayette 


County Code of Ordinances.


Not Applicable.


No


No


Yes


No


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Old BusinessThursday, December 13, 2012








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


B & G Maintenance Greg Ownby


Approval of staff's request to extend the current Technical Support Program coverage for the Siemens Building Automation System at the 


Fayette County Library for 2 1/2 years (two years and six months), beginning January 1, 2013, at an aggregate cost of $23,528.00, and 


authorization for the Chairman to sign any contracts or related documents contingent upon the County Attorney's review. 


Fayette County entered into an agreement with Siemens Building Technologies for technical support on July 1, 2010, and the agreement 


is due to expire on December 31, 2012.  The agreement provided technical support for the Fayette County Library.  Siemens has 


proposed an agreement for 2 1/2 years (two years and six months) which will become effective on January 1, 2013. 


 


The 2 1/2 year agreement allows Fayette County to align the expiration date for the library with all other contracts that Fayette County 


currently has with Siemens Building Technologies. 


 


Changes in the scope of coverage have been made to include the new addition to the Library.  The aggregate cost for this 2.5 year 


agreement is $23,528.00. 


 


A similar request was made of the Board during the June 28, 2012 Board of Commissioners meeting with agreements associated with 


the Fayette County Justice Center, the Jail, and the Annex Building.


Approval of staff's request to extend the current Technical Support Program coverage for the Siemens Building Automation System at the 


Fayette County Library for 2 1/2 years (two years and six months), beginning January 1, 2013, at an aggregate cost of $23,528.00, and 


authorization for the Chairman to sign any contracts or related documents contingent upon the County Attorney's review. 


Funding for technical support by Siemens Building Technologies is included in the FY2013 Library maintenance budget. Funding for 


fiscal year 2014 and after will need to be approved with the annual operations budget. 


No


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes Yes


ConsentThursday, December 13, 2012







 


Mailing Address:  140 Stonewall Avenue West, Fayetteville GA 30214 Main Phone:  770-460-5730 Web Site:  www.fayettecountyga.gov 


 
 
 
To:  Jack Krakeel 
 
From:  Ted L. Burgess 
 
Date:  November 29, 2012 
 
Subject: Siemens Technical Support Agreement - Library 
 
The Heating, Ventilation, & Air Conditioning (HVAC) systems in several county facilities are 
controlled through automated building control systems using proprietary Siemens equipment and 
technology.   
 
As with other equipment, the control systems require maintenance.  Automation controls can drift 
out of calibration with changes in HVAC component performance characteristics, building use, 
and climatic conditions.  Software must be updated and maintained.  Worn out components must 
be replaced.  Proper maintenance of the control systems will extend equipment life, reduce 
energy consumption, and reduce the risk of breakdowns. 
 
At the June 28, 2012 meeting, the Board of Commissioners approved a three-year agreement, 
ending June 30, 2015 with Siemens to provide technical support for the Jail Complex and the 
Justice Center, and a separate technical support agreement for the Fayette County Annex 
Building. 
 
The current technical support agreement for the Library will expire on December 31, 2012.  
Siemens has offered a new agreement for the Library, ending in 2 ½ years, so that its expiration 
would coincide with the other agreements listed above.  Prices of the current and proposed 
agreements are as follows: 
   
        Annual 
Current Agreement:     Amount 


7/1/2010 – 12/31/2010   $3,967 
1/1/2011 – 12/31/2011     8,173 
1/1/2012 – 12/31/2012     8,418 


     $20,558 
Proposed Agreement: 


1/1/2013 – 12/31/2013   $8,948 
1/1/2014 – 12/31/2014     9,520 
1/1/2015 –   6/30/2015     5,060 


     $23,528







Under the proposed agreement, Siemens would continue to provide the following support 
services: 
 


 Preventive maintenance for system equipment 
 Labor and materials to repair or replaced failed or worn components 
 Software support and updates 
 Control loop tuning 
 Emergency onsite response 24/7/365 (although emergency service costs are billable) 


 
Due to the proprietary nature of the technology involved, Building and Grounds Maintenance 
recommends renewal of the agreement with Siemens.  I concur with the recommendation. 







  


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


Advantage Services®  
  


Agreement for Fayette County - Library 
 


November 29, 2012 


s   







Advantage Services   
 


Siemens Industry, Inc. 11/29/2012 Page 1
 


 


 


Advantage Services 
Agreement for Fayette County - Library 


 
November 29, 2012 


 







Advantage Services   
 


Siemens Industry, Inc. 11/29/2012 Page 2
 


Table of Contents 
 


Advantage Services 1 


1  Overview 3 


1.1  Executive Summary 3 


1.2  Customer Objectives and Current Situation 3 


1.3  Siemens Capabilities & Commitment to Our Customers 3 


2  Service Solution 4 


2.1  HVAC CONTROL SERVICES – Automation 4 


2.1.1  Customer Support Services 4 


2.1.2  Technical Support Services 4 


2.1.3  System Performance Updates & Upgrades 6 


3  Service Implementation Plan 7 


3.1  Maintained Equipment Table 7 


3.2  Service Team 9 


4  Siemens Industry, Inc. 10 


4.1  Signature Page and Investment  By and Between: 10 


4.2  Terms And Conditions 11 


Appendix A.  Discounted Labor & Material Pricing 14 


Appendix B.  Amendment to Terms and Conditions 15 


 
 







Advantage Services   
 


Siemens Industry, Inc. 11/29/2012 Page 3
 


1 Overview 


1.1 Executive Summary 
 
You have made a significant investment in your facility and its complex technical systems which are critical to the 
profitability and productivity of your overall business.  This proposed service solution, our Service Agreement, will 
proactively serve to protect that substantial investment through a program of planned service tasks by our trained 
technical staff. 
 
This Service Agreement has been specifically developed to support your unique facility, and the services provided 
herein will help you in achieving your facility goals. 
 
___________________________________________________________________________ 


1.2 Customer Objectives and Current Situation 
 
The Fayette County Library has undergone recent expansion/renovation adding new mechanical equipment and 
controls.  The facilities department wishes to renew their existing service automation agreement and add this new 
scope. 
 
___________________________________________________________________________ 


1.3 Siemens Capabilities & Commitment to Our Customers 
 
Siemens Industry, Inc. is the leading single-source provider of cost-effective facility performance solutions for the 
comfort, life safety, security, energy efficiency and operation of some of the most technically advanced buildings 
in the world.  Siemens is pleased to offer this proposal for technical support services to your facility.  For more than 
150 years, Siemens has built a culture of long-term commitment to customers through innovation and technology.  
We are confident that we have the capabilities to meet your critical facility needs today and in the future, and we 
look forward to the opportunity to serve you. 







Advantage Services   
 


Siemens Industry, Inc. 11/29/2012 Page 4
 


2 Service Solution 
 


2.1 HVAC CONTROL SERVICES – Automation 
 


2.1.1 Customer Support Services 


 


Operator Coaching 


Through our individual Operator Coaching, we will review and reinforce learned skills, leading to greater operator 


knowledge and productivity.  This service will insure your operator’s gain full utilization of the system implemented 


in your facility.  Siemens will assist your staff in identifying, verifying and resolving problems found in executing 


daily tasks.  During the coaching sessions, we can address log book and system issues, assist your operators in 


becoming more self-sufficient, and improve the skills of your operators to better meet the needs of your facility 


and their specific job responsibilities. 


Under this agreement we shall provide (4) hours of coaching, which will be conducted on normal business days 


and hours, during software upgrade visit.          


 


2.1.2 Technical Support Services 


 


Emergency Onsite Response:  Monday through Sunday, 24 Hours per Day 


Emergency Onsite Response will be provided to reduce the costs and disruptions of downtime when an 


unexpected problem does occur.  Siemens will provide this service between scheduled service calls and respond 


onsite at your facility within 4 hours for critical emergencies, or within 24 hours for non-emergency conditions, 


Monday through Sunday, 24 hours per day, including Holidays, upon receiving notification of an emergency.  


Critical emergencies, as determined by your staff and Siemens, are failures at a system or panel level that would 


result in the loss of the operation of an entire section of a building or place the facility at high risk.  Non-


emergency conditions, as determined by your staff and Siemens, are failures at an individual component level 


resulting in minimal impact to the overall operation of the facility.  Non-emergency conditions, as determined by 


your staff and Siemens, may be incorporated into the next scheduled service call.       Costs associated with 


Emergency service will be treated as a billable service. 


 


Data Protection & Data Recovery Services  


Siemens will perform scheduled database back-ups of your workstation database & graphics and / or field panel 


databases and provide safe storage of this critical business information.  Should a catastrophic event occur, we will 







Advantage Services   
 


Siemens Industry, Inc. 11/29/2012 Page 5
 


respond onsite (or online if such service is included in this service agreement) to reload the databases and system 


files from our stored backup copy, to restore your operation as soon as possible. The equipment to be included as 


part of this service, is itemized in the List of Maintained Equipment in this service agreement.  


   


Control Loop Tuning  


Control loops drift out of calibration with changes in mechanical efficiency, building use, and climatic conditions.  


Through this service Siemens will ensure control loops for devices such as valves, dampers, actuators, etc., 


experience minimized overshooting and oscillatory behavior.  The control loops to be included as part of this 


service, are itemized in the List of Maintained Equipment in this service agreement.     


   


Preventive Maintenance 


We will provide preventive maintenance in accordance with a program of routines as determined by our 


experience, equipment application and location.  The list of field panels and/or devices, included under this service, 


is identified in the List of Maintained Equipment in this service agreement.  Automation controls can drift out of 


calibration with changes in HVAC component performance characteristics, building use, and climatic conditions.  


This service will extend equipment life, reduce energy consumption, and reduce the risk of costly and disruptive 


breakdowns.  


   


Software Maintenance 


Siemens will address any programming errors, failed points, points in alarm, unresolved points or points in 


operator priority, both at the front end workstation and at the field panel. We will perform this service using onsite 


visits and / or remote services (if applicable). 


 


 Repair & Replacement Services 


To reduce the unexpected costs of unbudgeted repairs, Siemens will provide labor and / or materials to repair or 


replace failed or worn components.  Prior to beginning any repair or replacement, Siemens will troubleshoot the 


system to diagnose your system’s problem.  Components that are suspected of being faulty may be repaired or 


replaced in advance to minimize the occurrence of system interruptions.  Equipment covered under this 


agreement is itemized on the List of Maintained Equipment, unless otherwise noted.  Items not covered will be 


brought to the owner’s attention.         


 


 


 







Advantage Services   
 


Siemens Industry, Inc. 11/29/2012 Page 6
 


2.1.3 System Performance Updates & Upgrades 


 


Software Support and Updates  


Siemens will provide you with software and documentation updates to your existing Siemens software as they 


become available (approximately annually).  Included is onsite training to familiarize you with the new features 


and their associated benefits. These updates deliver the benefits of Siemens Industry, Inc. commitment to 


compatibility by design, a commitment unique in our industry. Workstations covered under this service are 


itemized in the List of Maintained Equipment. (Upgrades to PC's and related workstation hardware are excluded 


unless specified elsewhere.)  


___________________________________________________________________________ 
 







Advantage Services   
 


Siemens Industry, Inc. 11/29/2012 Page 7
 


3 Service Implementation Plan 


3.1 Maintained Equipment Table 
  
 


 
 
 


Equipment 
Category 


Equipment 
SubCategory 


Equipment Qty 
Serial 


Number 
Location Mfg/Model 


   
Control 


Systems - 
Summary Level 


Data Protection & 
Data Recovery 


Insight 3.X B/U 
on-site 


1 
   


Services (Times per year): Data Protection & Recovery Services (4) 


   
Control 


Systems - 
Summary Level 


Control Loop 
Tuning 


Periodic Loop 
Tuning 


2 
   


Services (Times per year): Control Loop Tuning (4) 


   
Insight 


Workstation 
Components 


Insight 
Workstation 
Components 


Trunk 
Interface/IPMDA


1 
   


Services (Times per year): Preventative Maintenance (4) 


   
System 600 


ALN 
System 600 ALN MBC 40 1 


   
Services (Times per year):  Preventative Maintenance (4) - Software Maintenance (1) – R & R Labor and 
Material  


   
System 600 


ALN 
System 600 ALN RBC 1 


   
Services (Times per year):  Preventative Maintenance (4) - Software Maintenance (1) - R & R Labor and 
Material 


   
System 600 


FLN 
System 600 FLN 


TEC - Electronic 
Outputs 


17 
   


Services (Times per year): Preventative Maintenance (1) 


   







Advantage Services   
 


Siemens Industry, Inc. 11/29/2012 Page 8
 


Field Hardware Field Hardware 
Damper 
Actuator 


(Electronic) 
23 


   


Services (Times per year): Preventative Maintenance (4) 


   


Field Hardware Field Hardware 
Liquid 


Differential 
Pressure Switch 


1 
   


Services (Times per year): Preventative Maintenance (4) 


   


Field Hardware Field Hardware 
RH, Room, 4-20 


MA 
2 


   


Services (Times per year): Preventative Maintenance (4) 


   


Field Hardware Field Hardware 
Temp, Duct 
Thermistor, 
Single Point 


2 
   


Services (Times per year): Preventative Maintenance (4) 


   


Field Hardware Field Hardware 


Temp, 
Immersed/Strap-


On Pipe 
Thermistor 


4 
   


Services (Times per year): Preventative Maintenance (4) 


   


Field Hardware Field Hardware 
Temp, Outside 


Air RTD, 
Platinum 


1 
   


Services (Times per year): Preventative Maintenance (4) 


   


Field Hardware Field Hardware 
Temp, Room 
Thermistor 


19 
   


Services (Times per year): Preventative Maintenance (4) 


   
System 


Performance 
Updates 


Software Support 
and Updates 


Insight 3.X Adv 
first/single 


server Update 
1 


   


Services (Times per year): Software Update (1) 


 







Advantage Services   
 


Siemens Industry, Inc. 11/29/2012 Page 9
 


3.2 Service Team 
 
An important benefit of your Service Agreement derives from having the trained service personnel of Siemens 
Industry, Inc. familiar with your building systems.  Our implementation team of local experts provides thorough, 
reliable service and scheduling for the support of your system.   
 
The following list outlines the service team that will be assigned to the service agreement for your facility.   
 
Your Assigned Team of Service Professionals will include: 
 
Mark A. Sherry - Sales Account Representative manages the overall strategic service plan based upon your 
current and future service requirements.   
 
Everette Winkles - Service Account Engineer is responsible for ensuring that our contractual obligations are 
delivered, your expectations are being met and you are satisfied with the delivery of our services. 
 
Rick Adam - Service Operations Manager is responsible for managing the delivery of your entire support 
program and service requirements. 
 
Chylene Wallace - Service Coordinator is responsible for scheduling your planned maintenance visits, and 
handling your emergency situations by taking the appropriate action. 
 







Advantage Services   
 


Siemens Industry, Inc. 11/29/2012 Page 10
 


4 Siemens Industry, Inc. 


4.1 Signature Page and Investment  By and Between: 
Siemens Industry, Inc. County of Fayette 
1745 Corporate Drive #240 140 Stonewall Ave W. 
Norcross, GA 30093 Fayetteville, GA 30214 
Mark A. Sherry   
678-646-7476  
 
Services shall be provided at 1821 Heritage Parkway, Fayetteville, GA 30214. 
 
Siemens Industry, Inc. shall provide the services as outlined in the attached proposal dated 11/29/2012 and the 
attached terms and conditions. 
 
Duration: This agreement shall remain in effect for an Initial Term of  2-1/2 Years  beginning1/1/2013 and from 
year to year thereafter. 
 
Investments:  
Year 1 1/01/2013 to12/31/2013 $8,948 annual cost paid $2,237.00 quarterly 
Year 2 1/01/2014 to 12/31/2014 $9,520 annual cost paid $2,380.00 quarterly 
Partial Year 3 1/01/2015 to 6/30/2015 $5,060 semi-annual cost paid $2,530.00 quarterly 
 
Applicable sales taxes are included in the price of this proposal. Prices quoted in this proposal are firm for 90 days. 
 
Proposal accepted by: Proposal submitted by: 
Herb Frady Mark A. Sherry  
Chairman B.O.C. Sr. Account Executive  
Fayette County Siemens Industry, Inc. 
  
_____________________________ _____________________________ 
Signature                                Date Signature                                Date 


 
 


 


P.O.#________________________ 
 


 Customer purchase order included as an attachment to this 
agreement and will be referenced on invoices. 


Or 


 Customer purchase order not required. Invoices will be 
approved and processed with signature of authorized 
customer representative. 


 
 
 
David Anderson  
 
 
Atlanta Branch Manager  
 
 
_____________________________ 
Signature                                Date 


 
 


The Customer acknowledges that when approved by the Customer and accepted by Siemens Industry, Inc.: (i) the Proposal and the Contract 
Terms and Conditions, (together with any other documents incorporated into the forgoing) shall constitute the entire agreement of the parties with 
respect to its subject matter (collectively, hereinafter referred to as the “Agreement”) and (ii) in the event of any conflict between the terms and 
conditions of the Proposal and the terms and conditions of The Contract Terms and Conditions, the Contract Terms and Conditions shall control. 
BY EXECUTION HEREOF, THE SIGNER CERTIFIES THAT (S)HE HAS READ ALL OF THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS AND DOCUMENTS, THAT SIEMENS 
INDUSTRY, INC. OR ITS REPRESENTATIVES HAVE MADE NO AGREEMENTS OR REPRESENTATIONS EXCEPT AS SET FORTH THEREIN, AND THAT 
(S)HE IS DULY AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE THE SIGNATURE PAGE ON BEHALF OF THE CUSTOMER. 







Advantage Services   
 


Siemens Industry, Inc. 11/29/2012 Page 11
 


4.2 Terms And Conditions 


 







Advantage Services   
 


Siemens Industry, Inc. 11/29/2012 Page 12
 


 







Advantage Services   
 


Siemens Industry, Inc. 11/29/2012 Page 13
 


 
 







Advantage Services   
 


Siemens Industry, Inc. 11/29/2012 Page 14
 


 


Appendix A. Discounted Labor & Material Pricing 


CONFIDENTIAL & PROPRIETARY 
 
As a Service Agreement customer with an active contract, you will receive the benefit of a discount from our 
standard labor rates and material prices.   Standard rates and preferred customer rates are documented below. 
 


Siemens Industry, Inc., Building Technologies, Atlanta Branch 
 


Rates effective February 1, 2012 
Please note:  Rates shown are subject to change. 


 
LABOR RATES 


 
Standard 
Labor Rates: 
(Per Hour) 


Straight Time 
(M-F 8 AM to 5 PM) 
excl. Holidays 


Regular Overtime 
(M-F 5 PM to 8 AM,  & Sat) 
excl. Holidays 


Sundays & Holidays 


Automation 
Specialist 


$155.00 $232.50 $310.00 
 


Fire Life Safety  
Specialist 


$140.00 $210.00 $280.00 
 


Security 
Specialist 


$145.00 $217.50 $290.00 
 


Electrical Services 
Technician 


$165.00 $247.50 $330.00 


Service  
Mechanic 


$120.50 $180.75 $241.00 
 


Account 
Engineer/PM 


$197.50 
 


$296.25 
 


$395.00 
 


 
Only Customers with an active Service Agreement will be eligible for the preferred customer labor rates. 
 


Preferred 
Customer Labor 
Rates: 
(Per Hour) 


Straight Time 
(M-F 8 AM to 5 PM) 
excl. Holidays 


Regular Overtime 
(M-F 5 PM to 8 AM,  & Sat) 
excl. Holidays 


Sundays & Holidays 


Automation 
Specialist 


$115.00 $172.50 $230.00 
 


Fire Life Safety  
Specialist 


$110.00 $165.00 $220.00 
 


Security 
Specialist 


$115.00 $172.50 $230.00 
 


Electrical Services 
Technician 


$135.00 $202.50 $270.00 


Service  
Mechanic 


$98.50 $147.75 $197.00 


Account     
Engineer/PM 


$165.00 $247.50 $330.00 
 







Advantage Services   
 


Siemens Industry, Inc. 11/29/2012 Page 15
 


 


 
Appendix A. (cont.) 
 


CONFIDENTIAL & PROPRIETARY 


 
 
Minimum Charge: Service involving travel to the customer site will incur a four-hour minimum labor charge 
and $0.75 per mile vehicle charge. Mileage charges will be limited to $37.50 within a 50 mile radius of the city 
hall of Atlanta.  A Trip charge of $50 will be included on each on site invoice. Service for on-line support will 
incur a two-hour minimum labor charge. 


 
Material Pricing 
 
Automation 
 
Material Rates: Standard Pricing Applies: APOGEE – List x 0.6, Field Devices – List x 0.5. 
 
Training Discount: Customers with an active Service Agreement will benefit from a 5% discount off the 
standard pricing for Siemens Building Technologies Training. Classes are restricted by minimum level 
requirements.  
 
Fire Life Safety 
 
Material Rates: Customers with an active Service Agreement will benefit from a discount off the standard 
pricing for Siemens Building Technologies products in the Life Safety Pricing Guide. Customers with a service 
agreement will receive “Trade Net” pricing. Customers without a Service Agreement will pay “User Net” pricing. 
 
 
 


Appendix B. Amendment to Terms and Conditions 


 
4.2A  Amendment to Terms and Conditions 
 
The following terms and conditions shall supersede conflicting provisions in Section 4.2 of this Agreement: 
 
1.2  This Agreement shall be governed by and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of Georgia.  
Any litigation arising under this Agreement shall be brought in the State of Georgia.  TO THE EXTENT 
ALLOWED BY LAW, THE PARTIES WAIVE ANY RIGHT TO A JURY TRIAL ON MATTERS ARISING OUT 
OF THIS AGREEMENT. 
 





		Buildings and Grounds- Siemen...pport Agenda Request File

		Buildings and Grounds- Siemens Tech Support Backup

		Siemens Tech Support - Purchasing Backup

		Replaced- Fayette County Library - Siemens Service Agreement 11-29-2012








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Marshal's Office Deputy Marshal Kathy Hobbs


Consideration of a new Beer and Wine Package Sales License for Simpson Grocery located at 1552 Highway 85 South.


This request is for a new Beer and Wine Package Sales License. 


 


Due to the nature of this request, information pertaining to this request will be made available from the Fayette County Marshal's Office 


upon request. 


Approval or denial of a new Beer and Wine Package Sales License for Simpson Grocery located at 1552 Highway 85 South.


Not Applicable.


No


No


Yes


No


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Public HearingThursday, December 13, 2012








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Commissioners County Clerk Floyd Jones


Approval of the County Clerk's recommendation for the November 28, 2012 Ethics Board's Order to be included into the December 13, 


2012 Board of Commissioner's Minutes pursuant to Ordinance 2010-10, Section 2-213, (c)(6)(w).


On October 11, 2012, the County Clerk received and filed an Ethics complaint from Attorney Wayne Kendall against County Attorney 


Scott Bennett.  The Ethics Board was appointed during the November 7, 2012 Board of Commissioners Workshop meeting, and the 


Ethics Board held its first meeting on November 9 for organizational purposes and to formally receive the filed Ethics complaint. The 


Ethics Board then set November 28, 2012 as the hearing date for the complaint.   


 


On November 26, 2012 Attorney Wayne Kendall e-mailed a revised Ethics complaint against County Attorney Scott Bennett which cited 


Fayette County's current Ethics Ordinance- Ordinance Number 2010-10.  The County Clerk e-mailed the revised complaint to each Ethics 


Board member.  During the November 28 Ethics Board Hearing, both Attorney Kendall and County Attorney Bennett agreed to retain the 


allegations made against Mr. Bennett while operating with ethical standards delineated in Ordinance 2010-10; specifically Sections 2-209


(h) and (i).   


 


After hearing the cases by both attorneys, the Ethics Board voted in a 2-1 decision to dismiss all charges against County Attorney Scott 


Bennett.  Pursuant to Ordinance 2010-10, Section 2-213, (c),(6),(w):  "An order will be generated by the board and submitted to the board 


of commissioners for inclusion in the minutes within fifteen (15) days of the completed hearing."


Approval of the County Clerk's recommendation for the Ethics Board's Order to be included into the December 13, 2012 Board of 


Commissioner's Minutes pursuant to Ordinance 2010-10, Section 2-213, (c)(6)(w).


Not Applicable.


No


No


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


ConsentThursday, December 13, 2012



































































 1 


STATE OF GEORGIA  
COUNTY OF FAYETTE 
 


ORDINANCE NO. 2010-10 
 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CODE OF ORDINANCES, FAYETTE COUNTY, GEORGIA 
CHAPTER 2, ADMINISTRATION; TO PROVIDE FOR ETHICAL STANDARDS; TO PROVIDE 
FOR CODIFICATION; TO PROVIDE FOR SEVERABILITY; TO PROVIDE FOR PENALTIES; 
TO REPEAL CONFLICTING ORDINANCES; TO PROVIDE AN ADOPTION DATE; TO 
PROVIDE AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES ALLOWED BY LAW. 


 
WHEREAS, the duly elected governing authority of Fayette County is the Board of Commissioners 


thereof; 
 


WHEREAS, the governing authority desires to amend the provision that provides for the ethical 
standards of county officials as allowed by the State of Georgia; 
 


WHEREAS, the health, safety, and welfare of the citizens of Fayette County, Georgia shall be improved 
and protected by adoption and implementation of this Ordinance. 


 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF FAYETTE COUNTY, GEORGIA AND IT IS 
HEREBY ORDAINED BY AUTHORITY THEREOF: 
 
Section 1.  That Article VIII of Chapter 2 Administration of the Code of Ordinances, Fayette County, Georgia is 
hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced to read as follows: 
 
Sec. 2-207.  Purpose. 


The proper operation of local government requires that the public officials be independent, impartial and 
responsible to the people; that the government decisions and policy be made through proper channels of the 
governmental structure; that public office not be used for personal gain; that the public officials be free from the 
appearance of impropriety; and that the public have confidence in the integrity of its government. In recognition of 
these goals, a code of ethics for all county officials is adopted. The purpose of this policy is to establish ethical 
standards of conduct for all such officials by setting forth those acts or actions that are incompatible with the best 
interests of the county and by directing disclosure by such officials of private financial or other interests in matters 
affecting the county.  


Sec. 2-208.  Definitions. 


Business entity means any business, proprietorship, firm, partnership, person in either a representative or a 
fiduciary capacity, association, venture, trust, or corporation.  


Confidential information means any information which, by law or practice, is not available to the public.  


County official or official shall mean the county board of commissioners, county administrator, county attorney 
and his assistants, and any county employee who has been appointed to the position by the board of 
commissioners.  


Immediate family means an official and the spouse of an official, their parents, children, brothers and sisters 
related by blood or marriage.  







 2 


Interest means direct or indirect pecuniary or material benefit accruing to a public officer or official as a result of a 
contract or transaction which is or may be the subject of an official act or action by or with the county except for 
such contracts or transactions which, by their terms and by the substance of their provisions, confer the 
opportunity and right to realize the accrual of similar benefits to all other persons and/or property similarly 
situated.  


For purposes of this policy, a county official shall be deemed to have an interest in the affairs of:  


(1) his or her immediate family; 


(2) any business entity in which the county official is an officer, director, or member having a financial 
interest in, or employed by it; or 


(3) any business entity as to which the stock, legal ownership, or beneficial ownership of a county official 
is in excess of five percent of the total stock or total legal and beneficial ownership, or which is controlled 
or owned directly or indirectly by the county official.  


Official act or action means any legislative, administrative, appointive or discretionary act of any official of the 
county or any agency, board, committee, authority or commission thereof.  


Reprimand means an expression of disapproval.  


Sec. 2-209.  Standards. 


(a) Interest in contract or transaction. No county official having the power or duty to perform an official act or 
action related to a contract or transaction which is or may be the subject of an official act or action of the county 
shall:  


(1) have or thereafter acquire an interest in such contract or transaction, or 


(2) have an interest in any business entity involved in such contract or transactions, or  


(3) have solicited or accepted present or future employment with a person or business entity involved in 
such contract or transaction, or  


(4) have solicited or accepted a present or future gift, favor, service, or thing of value from a person 
involved in such contract or transaction, except as provided in section 2-210, below.  


(b) Pre-acquisition of interest. No county official shall acquire an interest in a contract or transaction which is or 
may be the subject of an official act or action of the county at a time when the county official believes or has 
reason to believe that such contract or transaction will be directly or indirectly affected by an official act or action 
of the county.  


(c) Disclosure of information. No county official shall without proper legal authorization, disclose confidential 
information concerning the property, government, or affairs of the county, or use such information to advance the 
financial or other private interest of himself or others.  


(d) No county official shall waive the attorney-client privilege or disclose any documents protected by the 
attorney-client privilege without the consent of the majority of the board of commissioners.  







 3 


(e)  No county official shall disclose to others matters discussed in executive session of any board or commission 
without the consent of the majority of the board of commissioners or until after the minutes of the meeting is 
required to be released as a matter of law.  


(f) Incompatible service. No county official shall engage in or accept private employment or render service for any 
private entity, when such employment or service is incompatible with the proper discharge of his official duties or 
would tend to impair his independence of judgment or action in the performance of his official duties, unless 
otherwise permitted by law and unless disclosure is made as provided in this policy.  


(g) Appearance. No county official shall appear on behalf of any private person other than himself, his spouse or 
minor children, before any county agency, authority or board. However, a member of the board of commissioners 
may appear before such groups on behalf of his constituents in the course of his duties as a representative of the 
electorate or in the performance of public or civic obligations.  


(h) Public property. No county official shall request or permit the unauthorized use of county-owned vehicles, 
equipment, materials or property for personal convenience or profit.  


(i) Special treatment. No county official shall grant any special consideration, treatment or advantage to any 
citizen beyond that which is available to every other citizen in the same or similar circumstances.  


(j) Later case interest. No county official shall, after the termination of service or employment with the county, 
accept remuneration of any kind for any appearance before any board, commission, committee, agency or 
authority of the county on behalf of any adverse party in relation to any case, proceeding, or application in which 
he personally participated during the period of his service or employment, which was under his active 
consideration during the period of his service or employment, or as to which he could have acquired knowledge 
or information during the period of his service or employment.  


(k) Political recrimination. No county official, whether elected or appointed, shall promise an appointment or 
threaten the dismissal from any county position as a reward or punishment for any political activity.  


(l) Withholding of information. No county official shall knowingly withhold any information which would impair the 
proper decision making of any of the county board, authorities, agency or commissions.  


(m) Payment of debts. All county officials shall settle all accounts between them and the county, including the 
payment of taxes, in a timely fashion.  


(n) Organizational integrity. County commissioners, as policy makers, shall refrain from interfering in the daily 
administrative affairs of department directors. Commissioners shall not, acting alone, make suggestions to the 
department directors or their employees regarding the performance of their duties, nor give instructions to 
department directors or other employees.  Commissioners shall not make recommendations regarding the hiring, 
firing or disciplining of department directors and other county employees.  


Sec. 2-210.  Exceptions. 


(a) It shall not be deemed a violation of the standards of this policy if the interest of a county official in a person or 
business entity is a contractual obligation of less than $500.00 which has not been preceded by any other 
obligation, discharged or existing, between the parties, and which is not the first in a series of two or more loans 
or debts which either of the parties is under any obligation to make or incur.  


 







 4 


(b) The following shall not be deemed a violation of the standards of this policy: 


(1) Legitimate salary, benefits, fees, commissions, or expenses associated with an official’s non-public 
business;  


(2) An award, plaque, certificate, memento, or similar item given in recognition of the official’s civic, 
charitable, political, professional, or public service;  


(3) Food, beverages, and registration at group events to which all similarly situated officials are invited; 


(4) Actual and reasonable expenses for food, beverages, travel, lodging, and registration for a meeting 
which are provided to an official so that he or she may participate or speak at the meeting;  


(5) A commercially reasonable loan made in the ordinary course of business; 


(6) Any gift with a total value less than $100.00 in any calendar year; 


(7) Promotional items generally distributed to public officials generally; 


(8) A gift from a member of the public official’s immediate family; or 


(9) Food, beverage, or expenses afforded public officials, and members of their immediate families, or 
others that are associated with normal and customary business or social functions or activities.  


(c) It shall not be deemed a violation of the standards of this policy if a county official, in his capacity as such 
official, participates in the making of a contract even if such official has a private pecuniary interest or performs in 
regard to that contract some function requiring the exercise of discretion on his part, if;  


(1) The contract is awarded through a process of public notice and competitive bidding, or 


(2) The board of commissioners at regular meeting, after determining that it is in the best interest of the 
county to do so, authorizes the participation.  


Sec. 2-211.  Disclosure of interest in legislative action. 


(a) Any member of the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County, Georgia who has financial or personal interest 
in any proposed legislation before the commission shall immediately disclose on the record the nature and extent 
of such interest.  


(b) Any other official who has a financial or personal interest in any proposed legislative action of the board of 
commissioners, and who participates in discussion with or gives an official opinion or recommendation to the 
commission, shall disclose on the record the nature and extent of such interest.  


Sec. 2-212.  Abstentions. 


A county official who has an interest that he has reason to believe may be affected by an official act or 
action shall abstain from any participation in the same.  


Sec. 2-213.  Enforcement and administration.  


(a)  Constituting the board; chairman.  







 5 


(1) The board of ethics of the county is hereby created and authorized by the board of 
commissioners.  


(2) The board of ethics of the county shall be composed of three (3) residents of the county to be 
appointed as provided herein.  Each member of the board of ethics shall have been a resident of the 
county for at least one year immediately preceding the date of taking office and shall remain a resident 
of the county while serving as a member of the board of ethics.  No person shall serve as a member of 
the board of ethics if the person has, or has had within the preceding one year period, any interest in any 
contract, transaction, or official action of the county.  


(3) The members of the board of commissioners may nominate persons to serve on the board of 
ethics, who shall be appointed by a majority vote of the board of commissioners.  These individuals must 
agree to undergo a criminal background check conducted by the County Marshal prior to designation, 
and/or redesignation, the results of which will be forwarded to the board of commissioners. These 
individuals should be available to be called upon for their term of office.  At the end of each term, the 
board of commissioners shall appoint eligible residents to fill the board.  Current members can be 
reappointed and there shall be no term limits for the members.  If a member of the board of ethics does 
not finish their term, the remainder of the term shall be filled through an appointment by the board of 
commissioners. 


(4) Alternates.  In addition to the members of the board, the board of commissioners shall appoint 
two alternate members.  These alternates shall be appointed in the same manner as members of the 
board of ethics.   


(5) If any member of the board of ethics has a conflict of interest in any matter before the board, 
the remaining two members of the board of ethics shall select an alternate to serve for that matter from 
the two alternative members appointed by the board of commissioners. 


(6) The board shall select a chairman at the beginning of each matter to be heard.   


(7) Term of Office. The term of office for each member of the board of ethics and alternates shall 
be for three (3) years; however, in the appointment of the first board, one (1) member and one (1) 
alternate shall be appointed for three (3) years; one (1) member and one (1) alternate for two (2) years 
and one (1) member for one (1) year. It is the intent of this section that their terms be staggered. Any 
vacancy in the membership shall be filled for the unexpired term in the same manner as the initial 
appointment.     


(b)  Duties of board. The board of ethics shall have the following duties and powers:  


(1)  To administer the ethics ordinance;  


(2)  To receive, review, process, make determinations on, and hear complaints of violations of standards 
required by this chapter.  The board is not designed to be an oversight board or to perform 
investigations;  


(3)  To make such response to a complaint as it deems necessary to determine whether any person has 
violated any provisions of this chapter;  


(4)  To hold such hearings and make such inquiries as deemed necessary to investigate and rule upon 
complaints; and 







 6 


(5)  To report its findings and actions to the board of commissioners.  


(c)  Administration.  


(1)  Complaints.  


a.  All complaints of ethical violations must be filed with the county clerk, in writing, signed by 
the complainant, no later than 90 days after the alleged act occurred unless the complainant, 
by exercising reasonable diligence, failed to discover the alleged ethical violation within such 90 
day period. In such a case, the complainant must file a written complaint with the county clerk 
no later than 90 days after the complainant discovered the alleged violation. In all such cases 
brought after 90 days from the date of the alleged ethical violation, the complainant bears the 
burden of convincing the board of the true date complainant learned of the alleged violation.  


b.  In no event, shall an ethical charge be filed with the county clerk more than two years from 
the date of the alleged ethical violation.  


c.  The complainant may withdraw the complaint at any time in writing.  


(2)  Pay and staff support.  


a.  The members of the board of ethics shall serve without compensation.  The governing 
authority of the county shall provide meeting space for the board of ethics. Subject to budgetary 
procedures and requirements of the county, the county shall provide the board of ethics with 
such supplies and equipment as may be reasonably necessary for it to perform its duties and 
responsibilities.  


b.  The county clerk shall serve as the recording secretary to the board and shall provide such 
administrative services to the board as may be necessary.  


c.  Subject to budgetary procedures and requirements of the county, the county shall provide 
the board of ethics with such legal staffing as may be reasonably necessary for it to perform its 
duties and responsibilities by an attorney who does not serve at the County Attorney. 


(3)  Action by the board. Within 30 days of receipt of a complaint from the county clerk, the board may 
perform one or more of the following:  


a.  Upon receipt of a complaint in proper form, review the complaint to determine whether the 
complaint is unjustified, frivolous, patently unfounded or fails to state facts sufficient to invoke 
disciplinary jurisdiction. The board of ethics shall be empowered to collect evidence and 
information concerning any complaint and to add the findings and results of its investigation to 
the file containing such complaint;  


b.  Upon completion of its review and/or investigation of a complaint, the board at a public 
meeting may dismiss those complaints which are unjustified, frivolous, patently unfounded or 
which fail to state facts sufficient to invoke disciplinary jurisdiction. Provided, however, that a 
rejection of such complaint by the board of ethics shall not deprive the complaining party of any 
action he/she might otherwise have at law or in equity against the respondent. A rejection shall 
prevent refiling of a complaint regarding the same subject(s) and alleged perpetrator(s) for the 
same offense;  







 7 


c.  Admonish, formally reprimand, publicly censure, any complaining party that files an 
unjustified, frivolous, patently unfounded or factually insufficient complaint;  


d.  Forward an order to the board of commissioners; or  


e.  Hold a public hearing within 60 days after the complaint was received.  


(4)  Parties rights. At any hearing held by the board of ethics, the official who is the subject of a 
complaint shall have the right to written notice of the allegations at least ten business days before a 
hearing, to be represented by counsel, to hear and examine the evidence and witnesses and to present 
evidence and witnesses in opposition or in extenuation according to the procedures contained in 
subparagraph (6).  


(5)  Advisory opinions. When any official has a doubt regarding the applicability of any provision of this 
chapter to a particular situation, or regarding the definition of its terms, he may apply in writing or 
verbally during a public meeting to the county attorney for an advisory opinion. The advisory opinion 
shall be written unless it is given verbally during a public meeting, and may be provided directly to the 
requestor of such opinion. Nothing in this chapter shall be construed to prohibit a request for an informal 
opinion by any public official from the county attorney regarding a potential conflict of interest. Neither a 
request for an informal opinion, nor the making of a statement concerning a potential conflict of interest 
made by a member of the governing body in the course of abstaining from voting shall create a 
presumption or inference that a public servant actually has a personal interest in the matter about which 
the opinion was requested.  


(6)  Hearing procedures.  


a.  At the hearing the conduct of the parties shall be dignified both on and off the record.  


b.  Misconduct before the board may be grounds for summary exclusion from the hearing. The 
hearing is intended to receive evidence either to refute or to substantiate specific charges. It 
shall not be a forum for discussion of extraneous or irrelevant matters having no bearing on the 
charges, and the alleged misconduct of others who may have escaped discipline in the past 
shall serve as no defense.  All parties at action and witnesses shall be given ample time and 
opportunity to develop points, subject to the discretion of the board.  


c.  It should be recognized that the board will be composed of private citizens. Accordingly, the 
board may not follow established legal procedures as might be expected in a court of law.  
However, in taking testimony and in considering the evidence, the board shall follow accepted 
legal procedure insofar as is practicable but shall not be bound by the technical rules of 
evidence observed in courts of law.  The board may decline to listen to numerous character 
witnesses or numbers of witnesses testifying to identical facts.  


d.  The chairman of the board of ethics shall conduct the hearing.  


e.  The hearing shall be recorded and the county clerk shall prepare a written summary of the 
hearing. The complainant and/or respondent may provide a court reporter at their expense for a 
verbatim transcript of the hearing, if so desired. The county clerk, or their designee shall take 
minutes of the hearing, specifically including the name of the board members who make any 
motions, the board members who second any such motions, and the names of the individuals 
on the board and  how each voted. This written report shall be presented to the board of 
commissioners at the conclusion of the board’s proceedings.  







 8 


f.  Three members of the constituted board shall be required to conduct the hearing.  The ethics 
board may, before the hearing and upon ten days notice to all parties, approve regulations 
governing conduct of ethics board hearings so long as such regulations do not conflict with this 
Article. 


g.  The person who filed the complaint (“complainant”) shall present his case to the board first.  


h.  All documentary evidence which is anticipated to be submitted to the board at the hearing by 
either the respondent or the complainant, and the names, with telephone numbers, of all 
individuals expected to present testimony to the board on behalf of either the respondent or 
complainant, must be given to the county clerk and the opposing party at least ten days in 
advance of the hearing. This requirement shall not apply to evidence used solely for purposes 
of cross-examination or rebuttal. The failure of a party to adhere to this rule shall preclude such 
party from tendering such evidence or individual’s testimony at the hearing through any form. 
The respondent, complainant, and the public shall be entitled to see all such lists which are 
placed on file with the county clerk.  


i.  The board may compel the production of any document in the possession of the county and 
subject to the Open Records Act and the testimony of any county employee.  Where the board 
compels any such document or testimony after a hearing has commenced a continuation shall 
be provided so that such order can be complied with. 


j.  Neither party shall have the right to require depositions of any individual, including the 
opposite party.  


k.  The complainant’s evidence must prove that respondent is guilty of the offense charged by 
the evidentiary standard commonly referred to as “preponderance of the evidence.”  


l.  Each witness presented by the complainant, and including the complainant, shall be subject 
to cross-examination by the individual accused of the ethical violation (“respondent”) or such 
person’s representative.  


m.  At the conclusion of the complainant’s case, the respondent shall be entitled to move for 
dismissal based on insufficient evidence on the part of complainant’s case. If respondent 
makes such a motion and the board, by majority vote, agrees to dismiss the complaint, the 
hearing shall be terminated at this point. If either the respondent fails to make such a motion, 
or, if the board decides by majority vote to overrule respondent’s motion, the hearing shall 
continue. The board may also direct a decision in favor of the respondent upon the board’s own 
initiative.  


n.  Respondent shall then be entitled to present his evidence to the board.  


o.  Respondent is not required to testify. The absence of respondent’s testimony shall not be 
viewed by the board as an admission of any sort.  


p.  If respondent testifies, then respondent shall be subject to cross-examination by 
complainant. All other witnesses who testify in the respondent’s case shall be subject to cross-
examination by complainant.  


q.  All persons who testify before the board, shall be placed under oath, by either the chairman 
or a person designated by the chairman.  







 9 


r.  At the conclusion of respondent’s case, the complainant may offer rebuttal evidence only to 
those items presented in respondent’s case. At the conclusion of complainant’s rebuttal, 
respondent shall be entitled to offer rebuttal evidence only to those matters presented in 
complainant’s rebuttal case.  


s.  During the course of testimony and at the conclusion of all the testimony and closure of all of 
the evidence, the board members may ask questions of any of the individuals who testified 
before the board.  


t.  At the conclusion of all questions by parties and board members, the chairman shall end the 
hearing and permit the board to deliberate in public. If the board decides by majority vote that 
additional evidence is needed to make a decision, the board shall have the authority to require 
either the complainant or respondent to submit additional evidence at a continuation of the 
hearing which must be held no later than 45 days after the date of the initial hearing. The board 
has no authority to continue the hearing past this 45-day deadline.  


u.  Following the conclusion of any additional evidence received at the continued hearing, the 
board shall continue to deliberate. When deliberations are concluded, the chairman shall call 
for a vote. The board may vote immediately after deliberations are concluded or they may 
continue the meeting for up to two weeks when a public vote must be taken. The board’s first 
vote must be whether the respondent violated the ethics code as charged by the complainant. 
If, by majority vote, the board rules that the respondent did not violate the ethics code as 
charged by the complainant, then the matter is concluded. If the board, by majority vote, 
concludes that the respondent did violate the ethics code as charged by the complainant, then 
the board must make a second decision by majority vote. The second decision involves the 
form of penalty. The board shall have six options of penalty which include:  


i.  No admonishment and no further action;  


ii.  A public reprimand and admonishment not to violate the ethics code in the future;  


iii.  Formal reprimand;  


iv.  Public censure;  


v.  Recommendation for termination, resignation, or recall; or  


vi.  Recommendation of prosecution in the State Court of Fayette County.  


v.  The complainant may withdraw his or her complaint at any time without the approval of the 
board. 


w.  An order will be generated by the board and submitted to the board of commissioners for 
inclusion in the minutes within fifteen (15) days of the completed hearing.  


(d)   Judicial review of decisions. 


(1)   Any public official adversely affected by any final decision of the board of ethics under subsection (f) 
of this section may obtain judicial review of such decision as provided in this subsection. 


(2)   An action for judicial review may be commenced in the Superior Court of Fayette County within 30 
days after the decision of the board of ethics becomes final. 







 10 


(3)   The effective date of the final decision of the board of ethics shall be postponed pending judicial 
review as provided for in this subsection. 


(4)   The record on review, unless otherwise stipulated by the parties, shall include the original or 
certified copies of all pleadings, testimony, evidence, exhibits, and other papers presented to or 
considered by the board of ethics and the findings and decisions of the board of ethics. As to alleged 
procedural irregularities, evidence may be taken independently by the court. 


(5)   If the court finds no error, it shall affirm the decision of the board of ethics. The court shall hold 
unlawful and set aside the decision of the board of ethics if it finds that such action was: 


i.  Arbitrary or capricious; 


ii.  A denial of a statutory right; 


iii.  Contrary to constitutional right, power, privilege, or immunity; 


iv.  In excess of statutory jurisdiction, authority, purposes, or limitation; 


v.  Not in accord with the procedures or procedural limitations of this section or as otherwise 
required by law; 


vi.  An abuse of discretion, unsupported by substantial evidence when the record is considered 
as a whole; or 


vii.  Otherwise contrary to law. 


(6)   The decision of the trial court shall be subject to appellate review in the same manner and with the 
same effect as in appeals from a final judgment or decree in any other civil action. 


Sec. 2-214.  Penalties. 


County officials are subject to the following penalties and action for breach of ethics: 


(1) Written warning or reprimand; 


(2) Cancellation of the contract or rejection of the bid or offer; 


(3) Recovery of the value transferred or received; and/or 


(4) Debarment or suspension from award of county contract for a period of up to three years. 


Sec. 2-215.  Compliance with applicable laws. 


No officer or official shall engage in any activity or transaction that is prohibited by any law, now existing 
or hereafter enacted, which is applicable to him or her by virtue of his or her office.  


Secs. 2-216—2-220. - Reserved. 


Section 2. That the preamble of this Ordinance shall be considered to be and is hereby incorporated by 
reference as if fully set out herein. 
 







 11 


Section 3. a. It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Board of Commissioners that all Sections, 
paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this Article are and were, upon their enactment, believed by the 
Board of Commissioners to be fully valid, enforceable and constitutional. 
 
b. It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Board of Commissioners that, to the greatest extent allowed by 
law, each and every section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is severable from every 
other section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance. It is hereby further declared to be the 
intention of the Board of Commissioners that, to the greatest extent allowed by law, no Section, paragraph, 
sentence, clause or phrase of this Article is mutually dependent upon any other Section, paragraph, sentence, 
clause or phrase of this Article. 
 
c. In the event that any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this Article shall, for any reason 
whatsoever, be declared invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable by the valid judgment or decree of 
any court of competent jurisdiction, it is the express intent of the Board of Commissioners that such invalidity, 
unconstitutionality or unenforceability shall, to the greatest extent allowed by law, not render invalid, 
unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable any of the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs or 
Sections of the Article and that, to the greatest extent allowed by law, all remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, 
paragraphs and Sections of the Article shall remain valid, constitutional, enforceable, and of full force and effect. 
 
Section 4.  All ordinances or resolutions and parts of ordinances or resolutions in conflict herewith are hereby 
expressly repealed. 
 
Section 5.  The effective date of this Ordinance shall be the date of adoption unless otherwise specified herein. 
 


IT IS SO ORDAINED THIS 18th DAY OF NOVEMBER, 2010. 
 
  


BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
FAYETTE COUNTY, GEORGIA 


 
 
  ________________________________________ 
                                  Jack R. Smith, Chairman 


 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
    Carol Chandler, County Clerk 
 


 


 


 


 


 







 12 


 





		Commissioners- Ethics Board Order Agenda Request File

		Commissioners- Ethics Board Order Backup

		Commissioners- Ethics Board Order Backup 1

		Commissioners- Ethics Board Order Backup 2








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Commissioners County Clerk Floyd Jones


Approval of the County Clerk's request to authorize the Chairman to sign an Executive Session Affidavit stating matters of property 


acquisition, litigation, and personnel were discussed by the Board in Executive Session during the December 5, 2012 Board of 


Commissioners Workshop Meeting.


During the December 5, 2012 Workshop Meeting, the Board of Commissioners recessed into Executive Session to discuss matters of 


property acquisition, litigation, and personnel. 


 


This request is to authorize the Chairman to sign an Executive Session Affidavit stating property acquisition, litigation, and personnel 


were discussed in Executive Session on that date.


Approval of the County Clerk's request to authorize the Chairman to sign an Executive Session Affidavit stating matters of property 


acquisition, litigation, and personnel were discussed by the Board in Executive Session during the December 5, 2012 Board of 


Commissioners Workshop Meeting.


Not Applicable.


Yes Wednesday, December 5, 2012


No


Yes


No


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


ConsentThursday, December 13, 2012








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Marshal's Office Deputy Marshall Kathy Hobbs


Consideration to renew four On-Premises Consumption Licenses.


The following four locations require renewed On-Premises Consumption Licenses.  Supporting information for each of these locations 


can be provided upon request by the Fayette County Marshal's Office. 


 


1)  Frank's at the Old Mill, 1095 Highway 54 West 


2)  Metro Sports Bar, 1950 Highway 85 North 


3)  The Italian Oven, 100 Peachtree East Shopping Center 


4)  Whitewater Creek County Club, 175 Birkdale Drive


Staff is requesting the Board to renew the On-Premises Consumption Licenses for all or some of the four (4) locations as listed.


Not Applicable.


Yes Renewals conducted annually


No


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Public HearingThursday, December 13, 2012








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Marshal's Office Deputy Marshal Kathy Hobbs


Consideration to renew fourteen Packaged Beer and Wine Licenses. 


The following 16 locations require renewed Packaged Beer and Wine Licenses.  Supporting information for each of these locations can 


be provided upon request by the Fayette County Marshal's Office. 


 


1)  QuickTrip #807, 1846 85 North                                             12)  Publix Supermarket, 130 Peachtree East Shopping Center 


2)  BP, 166 Corinth Road                                                            13)  St. Johns Crossing, 1850 Highway 85 South  


3)  Duaa Express Shell, 1183 Highway 54 East                          14)  County Line Store, 2708 Highway 92 S.                             


4)  Race Trac, 897 GA Hwy 85 South   


5)  Coleman's Store, 1467 Highway 92 North                              


6)  Chevron, 1488 Highway 92 North 


7)  MD Food Mart, 2400 Highway 138 


8)  Fayette Village BP, 1408 Highway 54 West 


9)  Hesters Grocery, 1499 Highway 54 West 


10)  One Stop BP, 2950 Highway 138 


11)  Paw Paw's Shell, 1493 Highway 92 North


Staff is requesting the Board to renew Packaged Beer and Wine Licenses for all or some of the fourteen (14) locations as listed.


Not Applicable.


Yes Renewals conducted annually


No


Yes


No


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Due to the amount and type of material associated with this request, supporting documentation can be provided to citizens through the 


Fayette County Marshal's Office upon request.


Public HearingThursday, December 13, 2012








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Commissioners Commissioner Robert Horgan


Approval of the reappointment of Mr. Al Gilbert to Post One of the Fayette County Planning Commission with said reappointment to 


become effective on January 1, 2013 and to expire on December 31, 2015.


According to Fayette County's Zoning Ordinance (Article XII Planning Commission), vacancies on the Planning Commission "shall be 


filled by the member of the Board of Commissioners hailing from the district which has the vacancy".  The Fayette County Zoning 


Ordinance also specifies that each member shall serve for three years. 


 


Mr. Al Gilbert's appointment to the Fayette County Planning Commission is due to expire on December 31, 2012.  He represents Post 


One on the Planning Commission, and his appointment is recommended by Vice-Chairman Robert Horgan who serves as the Post One 


Commissioner on the Fayette County Board of Commissioners. 


 


The appointment process was discussed during the December 5 Workshop Meeting, and the Board consented not to advertise for this 


and one other vacancy on the Planning Commission.


Approval of the reappointment of Mr. Al Gilbert to Post One of the Fayette County Planning Commission with said reappointment to 


become effective on January 1, 2013 and to expire on December 31, 2015.


Not Applicable.


Yes Wednesday, December 5, 2012


No


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


ConsentThursday, December 13, 2012







 


 


To:  Fayette County Board of Commissioners 


  Jack Krakeel, Interim County Administrator 


 


From:  Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk 


 


Date:  September 18, 2012 


 


Subject: Upcoming Appointments to Various Boards and Committees 


 


There are several upcoming appointments to various Boards and Committees that will require your attention.     


 


Public Facilities Authority 


 


The Fayette County Public Facilities Authority Act (House Bill 1946) reads:  the Authority shall consist of three 


(3) members who shall be residents of Fayette County and who shall be appointed by the Board of 


Commissioners of Fayette County.  The members of the Authority shall be appointed to serve for a term of one 


(1) year from the date of such appointment and until their successors shall have been selected and appointed. 


 


Currently, Brian Cardoza, Mary Shaver, and Jack Smith are the three members who are serving on the Public 


Facilities Authority.  Each was reappointed by the Board on October 27, 2011.  Their terms began on November 


1, 2011 and will expire on October 31, 2012.  In recent conversations, Brian Cardoza agreed to be reappointed 


to the Public Facilities Authority, however, both Mary Shaver and Jack Smith have decided not to be 


reappointed. 


 


Planning Commission 


 


According to Fayette County’s Zoning Ordinance (Article XII Planning Commission), vacancies on the 


Planning Commission “shall be filled by the member of the Board of Commissioners hailing from the district 


which has the vacancy.”  Furthermore, the terms for each member of the Planning Commission “shall be three 


(3) years.” 


 


The terms for both Al Gilbert (representing Post 1) and James A. “Jim” Graw (representing Post 2) will expire 


on December 31, 2012.  Both of these gentlemen were appointed to the Planning Commission by the Board on 


December 11, 2008, and both men have recently communicated that they are willing to be reappointed to the 


Planning Commission. 


 


Zoning Board of Appeals  


 


Article IX of Fayette County’s Zoning Ordinance states “The Fayette County Zoning Board of Appeals shall 


consist of five (5) members residing within the County and shall be appointed by the Board of Commissioners 


of Fayette County.”   


 


 







2 


 
Mailing Address:  140 Stonewall Avenue West, Fayetteville GA 30214  ·  Main Phone:  770-305-5102 · Website:  www.fayettecountyga.gov 


 


 


Appointments to this body are not tied to a particular post so they are considered “at-large appointments”   The 


term of office for each member of the Zoning Board of Appeals is three years. 


 


Mr. Bill Beckwith’s appointment to this body will expire on December 31.  He was appointed to the Zoning 


Board of Appeals on December 10, 2009.  Mr. Beckwith has recently emailed Pete Frisina stating he is willing 


to be reappointed to the Zoning Board of Appeals. 


 


Library Board 


 


The Library Board is made up of seven members.  Four of the members are nominated by the local 


municipalities they represent, and their nomination is communicated to the Board of Commissioners by the 


municipalities (Fayetteville, Peachtree City, Tyrone and Brooks).  The remaining three positions are at-large 


positions which are filled by the Board of Commissioners. The Board of Commissioners officially appoints all 


members to the Library Board regardless of whether they are nominated by the municipalities or are at-large 


members.  All appointments to the Library Board are for four-year terms. 


 


On December 31, the appointments for Jeannette Ballard, Dortha Stinson, and Jean White will expire.  Jeanette 


Ballard and Dortha Stinson are at-large members, and Jean White is the nominee from the City of Fayetteville.  


Each of these ladies was appointed to the Library Board on December 11, 2008.  Within the past week, Fayette 


County received a letter from Dortha Stinson stating that she does not desire to be reappointed to the Library 


Board. 


 


Board of Health 


 


Currently, Commissioner Robert Horgan serves on the Board of Health on the Board of Commissioners’ behalf.  


Members to the Board of Health serve for six years, and one of the members of the Board of Health must be 


“the Chief Executive Officer of the Governing Authority of the County or his appointee.”   


 


This appointment will need to be considered in the coming months. 


 


If you need any further information from me I will be glad to provide it.  If you have any questions, please feel 


free to call me at 770-305-5102. 


 


FLJ 


 


 


 





		Commissioners- Planning Commi...t One Agenda Request File

		Commissioners- Planning Commission Post One Backup






COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Commissioners Chairman Herb Frady


Approval of the reappointment of Mr. James "Jim" Graw to Post Two of the Fayette County Planning Commission with said 


reappointment to become effective on January 1, 2013 and to expire on December 31, 2015.


According to Fayette County's Zoning Ordinance (Article XII Planning Commission), vacancies on the Planning Commission "shall be 


filled by the member of the Board of Commissioners hailing from the district which has the vacancy".  The Fayette County Zoning 


Ordinance also specifies that each member shall serve for three years. 


 


Mr. James Graw's appointment to the Fayette County Planning Commission is due to expire on December 31, 2012.  He represents Post 


Two on the Planning Commission, and his appointment is recommended by Chairman Herb Frady who serves as the Post Two 


Commissioner on the Fayette County Board of Commissioners. 


 


The appointment process was discussed during the December 5 Workshop Meeting, and the Board consented not to advertise for this 


and one other vacancy on the Planning Commission.


Approval of the reappointment of Mr. James "Jim" Graw to Post Two of the Fayette County Planning Commission with said 


reappointment to become effective on January 1, 2013 and to expire on December 31, 2015.


Not Applicable.


Yes Wednesday, December 5, 2012


No


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


ConsentThursday, December 13, 2012







 


 


To:  Fayette County Board of Commissioners 


  Jack Krakeel, Interim County Administrator 


 


From:  Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk 


 


Date:  September 18, 2012 


 


Subject: Upcoming Appointments to Various Boards and Committees 


 


There are several upcoming appointments to various Boards and Committees that will require your attention.     


 


Public Facilities Authority 


 


The Fayette County Public Facilities Authority Act (House Bill 1946) reads:  the Authority shall consist of three 


(3) members who shall be residents of Fayette County and who shall be appointed by the Board of 


Commissioners of Fayette County.  The members of the Authority shall be appointed to serve for a term of one 


(1) year from the date of such appointment and until their successors shall have been selected and appointed. 


 


Currently, Brian Cardoza, Mary Shaver, and Jack Smith are the three members who are serving on the Public 


Facilities Authority.  Each was reappointed by the Board on October 27, 2011.  Their terms began on November 


1, 2011 and will expire on October 31, 2012.  In recent conversations, Brian Cardoza agreed to be reappointed 


to the Public Facilities Authority, however, both Mary Shaver and Jack Smith have decided not to be 


reappointed. 


 


Planning Commission 


 


According to Fayette County’s Zoning Ordinance (Article XII Planning Commission), vacancies on the 


Planning Commission “shall be filled by the member of the Board of Commissioners hailing from the district 


which has the vacancy.”  Furthermore, the terms for each member of the Planning Commission “shall be three 


(3) years.” 


 


The terms for both Al Gilbert (representing Post 1) and James A. “Jim” Graw (representing Post 2) will expire 


on December 31, 2012.  Both of these gentlemen were appointed to the Planning Commission by the Board on 


December 11, 2008, and both men have recently communicated that they are willing to be reappointed to the 


Planning Commission. 


 


Zoning Board of Appeals  


 


Article IX of Fayette County’s Zoning Ordinance states “The Fayette County Zoning Board of Appeals shall 


consist of five (5) members residing within the County and shall be appointed by the Board of Commissioners 


of Fayette County.”   


 


 







2 


 
Mailing Address:  140 Stonewall Avenue West, Fayetteville GA 30214  ·  Main Phone:  770-305-5102 · Website:  www.fayettecountyga.gov 


 


 


Appointments to this body are not tied to a particular post so they are considered “at-large appointments”   The 


term of office for each member of the Zoning Board of Appeals is three years. 


 


Mr. Bill Beckwith’s appointment to this body will expire on December 31.  He was appointed to the Zoning 


Board of Appeals on December 10, 2009.  Mr. Beckwith has recently emailed Pete Frisina stating he is willing 


to be reappointed to the Zoning Board of Appeals. 


 


Library Board 


 


The Library Board is made up of seven members.  Four of the members are nominated by the local 


municipalities they represent, and their nomination is communicated to the Board of Commissioners by the 


municipalities (Fayetteville, Peachtree City, Tyrone and Brooks).  The remaining three positions are at-large 


positions which are filled by the Board of Commissioners. The Board of Commissioners officially appoints all 


members to the Library Board regardless of whether they are nominated by the municipalities or are at-large 


members.  All appointments to the Library Board are for four-year terms. 


 


On December 31, the appointments for Jeannette Ballard, Dortha Stinson, and Jean White will expire.  Jeanette 


Ballard and Dortha Stinson are at-large members, and Jean White is the nominee from the City of Fayetteville.  


Each of these ladies was appointed to the Library Board on December 11, 2008.  Within the past week, Fayette 


County received a letter from Dortha Stinson stating that she does not desire to be reappointed to the Library 


Board. 


 


Board of Health 


 


Currently, Commissioner Robert Horgan serves on the Board of Health on the Board of Commissioners’ behalf.  


Members to the Board of Health serve for six years, and one of the members of the Board of Health must be 


“the Chief Executive Officer of the Governing Authority of the County or his appointee.”   


 


This appointment will need to be considered in the coming months. 


 


If you need any further information from me I will be glad to provide it.  If you have any questions, please feel 


free to call me at 770-305-5102. 


 


FLJ 


 


 


 





		Commissioners- Planning Commi...t Two Agenda Request File

		Commissioners- Planning Commission Post Two Backup






COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Parks and Recreation Anita Godbee, CPRP


Approval of staff's request to award Proposal #P852- Sports Lighting to M. Gay Constructors, Inc. in the amount of $325,000.00 in order 


to upgrade lighting at Kiwanis Park and McCurry Park, and authorization for the Chairman to sign the contract and related documents 


contingent upon the County Attorney's review.


On December 3, 2012, Parks and Recreation Director Anita Godbee discussed staff's recommendation to award Proposal #P852- Sports 


Lighting to M. Gay Constructors, Inc. in the amount of $325,000.00.  The purpose of this recommendation is to upgrade sports lighting at 


the following locations:  1)  Kiwanis Park Field #11, 2)  McCurry Park Softball Field #7, and 3)  McCurry Park Football Field #3.  This 


request is part of an on-going effort to upgrade lighting for the county's athletic fields. 


 


Requests were direct-mailed to 19 contractors.  Additionally, requests were extended via the Fayette Daily News, the county website, 


Georgia Local Government Access Marketplace, and Channel 23.  Three contractors responded to the Request for Proposals.   


 


Based on the prices received, it was decided to recommend proceeding with the three athletic fields indicated above. A team consisting 


of staff from the Parks and Recreation Department and Buildings and Grounds Maintenance evaluated, compared, and ranked the 


responses.  The team ranked M. Gay Constructors, Inc. as the best fit for the Parks and Recreation Department's needs.  M. Gay 


Constructors submitted the lowest total bid for the three chosen fields. 


 


M. Gay Constructors,Inc. has agreed to reduce their proposed price from $336,800.00 to $325,000.00 if awarded all three fields.


Approval of staff's request to award Proposal #P852- Sports Lighting to M. Gay Constructors, Inc. in the amount of $325,000.00 in order 


to upgrade lighting at Kiwanis Park and McCurry Park, and authorization for the Chairman to sign the contract and related documents 


contingent upon the County Attorney's review.


Funding has been budgeted for this request as outlined in staff notes. 


Yes Wednesday, December 5, 2012


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes Yes


Kiwanis Park Field #11 will be funded by the Kiwanis Park Field Lighting Refurbishment and Kiwanis Park Enhancements-Refurbishment 


Deficient Athletic Field Lighting System Account (Acct #s:  37560110-541210 2110K and 37560110-522251 3110B).  McCurry Park 


Softball Field #7 and Football Field #3 will be funded by the McCurry Park Field Light Refurbishment and McCurry Park Enhancements- 


Refurbishments Athletic Field Lighting Systems Accounts (Acct #s:  37560110-541210 2110L and 37560110-52221 3110C).


ConsentThursday, December 13, 2012







 


Mailing Address:  140 Stonewall Avenue West, Fayetteville GA 30214 Main Phone:  770-460-5730 Web Site:  www.fayettecountyga.gov


 
 
 
 
To:  Jack Krakeel 
 
From:  Ted L. Burgess 
 
Date:  November 19, 2012 
 
Subject: RFP #852 – Sports Lighting 
 
The Purchasing Department issued Request for Proposals (RFP) #852 to continue the on-going 
upgrade of lighting for the county’s athletic fields.  The RFP included a total of six fields at 
Kiwanis Park and McCurry Park. 
 
Requests were direct-mailed to 19 contractors.  In addition, requests were extended via the 
Fayette News, the county website, Georgia Local Government Access Marketplace 
(www.glga.org), and Channel 23.  Three contractors responded to the RFP (please see the 
attached spread sheet). 
 
Based on the prices received, it was decided to recommend proceeding with three of the six 
athletic fields.  The three chosen were Kiwanis Park Baseball Field #11, McCurry Park Softball 
Field #7, and McCurry Park Football Field #3.  A team consisting of staff from the Parks and 
Recreation Department and Building and Grounds Maintenance evaluated, compared, and 
ranked the responses.  The team ranked M. Gay Constructors’ proposal as the best fit for the 
Parks and Recreation Department’s needs.  M. Gay Constructors also submitted the lowest total 
bid for the three chosen fields. 
 
As is customary practice in the Request for Proposals process, the Purchasing Department 
contacted M. Gay Constructors to obtain their best and final offer.  In response, they reduced 
their proposed price from $336,800 to $325,000. 
 
The Purchasing Department supports the evaluation teams recommendation of M. Gay 
Constructors for sports lighting installation. 
 
Attachment 



http://www.glga.org/





Description
Donald Camp, 


Inc.


M. Gay 
Constructors, 


Inc.
Gross


Bid


Less: If 
Bonding Not 
Required on 


Lighting Equip Net Bid


KIWANIS PARK BASEBALL FIELD #11 $42,350.00 $48,900.00 $50,563.00 ($1,000.00) $49,563.00


MCCURRY PARK SOFTBALL FIELD #7 131,080.00 124,900.00 130,175.00 (2,900.00) $127,275.00


MCCURRY PARK FOOTBALL FIELD #3 172,600.00 163,000.00 No Bid No Bid No Bid


     Total Fields in Final Selection $346,030.00 $336,800.00 $180,738.00 ($3,900.00) $176,838.00


MCCURRY PARK SOFTBALL FIELD #6 120,475.00 114,000.00 118,219.00 (2,600.00) $115,619.00


MCCURRY PARK SOCCER FIELD #1 85,425.00 93,000.00 No Bid No Bid No Bid


MCCURRY PARK SOCCER FIELD #4 119,945.00 109,000.00 No Bid No Bid No Bid


     Total for All Fields Considered $671,875.00 $652,800.00 $298,957.00 ($6,500.00) $292,457.00


Discount if Awarded Any Two or More (1,000.00) (2,500.00) (2,500.00)


     Net Total After Discounts $670,875.00 $652,800.00 $296,457.00 ($6,500.00) $289,957.00


Note: Middle Georgia Outdoor Lighting offers a discount of $2,500 if McCurry Park softball fields #6 and 7 are awarded.


MIDDLE GEORGIA OUTDOOR LIGHTING


Fayette County, Georgia
Request for Proposals #852, Sports Lighting


Original Price Proposals


P:\Ted B\Parks & Rec\852 Sports Lighting\852 Tally.xls





		Parks and Recreation- Sports Lighting Agenda Request File

		Parks and Recreation- Sports Lighting Backup

		Sports Lighting - Purchasing Backup 1

		Sports Lighting - Purchasing Backup 2

		Sheet1







